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Financial Highlights and Key Performance Index

MRRBRERBREZBEER

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS MEREE
2019 2018
—E-AF —N\F
RMB million RMB million
AREBET ARBHETT
Gross revenue (V U ZE 2,729.1 3,093.1
Revenue U & 1,054.1 1,159.1
EBITDA HEYTE REHERIAE (16.4) 285.4
EBIT ((Loss)/profit from operations) B2 B AE

(& (E18),mH) (159.7) 143.5

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity AREEEMN (ER)
shareholders of the Company bl (261.6) 27.2

Basic (loss)/earnings per share

FREX (EE) BT

(11.3) cents o

1.2 cents &

At At
31 March 31 March
2019 2018
R-ZE—hIF AZE—\F
=A=+—H —A=+—H
RMB million RMB million
AREEER AREBETT
Net assets of the Group AEBEEFE 4,088.2 4,385.6
NAV per ordinary share @ BRERBKREEFEY 3.44 yuan T 3.69 yuan JT
Notes: K&t
(1 Gross revenue represents the gross amount arising from the (1 R IE ﬁ’iﬁu‘:&] AZERRP 2K
sales of goods, concession sales charged to retail customers, TERHEHE KEHEZHSBANURK
rental income from operating leases and management and AP B RITBAREE WA 2
administrative service fee income charged to tenants. EFE o
) NAV per ordinary share represents the total equity attributable (2) BREBREEFEERAQFKREEN
to equity shareholders of the Company per ordinary share. BRELBRiERSBRE-
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Financial Highlights and Key Performance Index

MBERERBRERELEER

KEY PERFORMANCE INDEX EREBER
2019 2018
RMB RMB
ZEB-hF —E-N\F
AR T AR
Sales per ticket RHEE 1,250 1,251
Annualized area efficiency (per m2) @ FEALTFH(FFEFK)@ 31,600 36,300
Notes: B &t -
) Sales per ticket represents gross revenue per total number of (1) REBBEAEASHEWNRRALERS
transactions of department stores. B

) Annualized area efficiency represents annualized gross revenue (2) FEMAENBEFRICERERABER
per department store average operating area. BTG
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Five Years Summary Financial Information

IFHMBERRE
For the year ended 31 March 2019 {2 —E—NWF=H=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi ("RMB")) (U ARKE ([AR¥K])Z7)

RESULTS
Fifteen months
ended Year ended
31 March 31 December
v ded 31 March 2016 2014
ear ende arc RMB'000 RMB'000
BE=R=t+-HLEE S e
2019 2018 2017 —E—RE  —Z-NMF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 ZA=+—H +ZA=+—H
-0 —E-\§ —Z—+% [+1fEA ILEE
ARETRE ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETR
Revenue Y &
- Continuing operations ~RHEREER 1,054,065 1,159,060 1,144,753 1,603,739 1,364,421
- Discontinued operations —RIEEEER - - - - -
1,054,065 1,159,060 1,144,753 1,603,739 1,364,421
(Loss)/profit attributable AR R e
to equity shareholders (&#8) /&
- Continuing operations ~RHEEEER (261,575) 27,234 (352,337) 22,181 95,178
- Discontinued operations —RIFREXK - - - - -
(261,575) 27,234 (352,337) 22,181 95,178
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EEREE
As at
%52%3; :_Ila_rcg 31 December
— = 2014
2019 2018 2017 2016 RMB'000
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 R =F—IF
“E-AF -“T-\F -E—+F “TF t-AS+-H
ARETRE ARETT AREFT ARETLT ARETR
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE 7,199,981 7,279,287 7,104,859 7,238,892 6,716,628
CURRENT ASSETS MBEE 1,061,670 1,200,911 1,245,330 1,587,518 1,480,097
DEDUCT: i
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEE 2,040,450 1,932,084 1,769,159 2,634,471 2,437,698
NET CURRENT RBAEFE
LIABILITIES (978,780) (731,173) (523,829)  (1,046,953) (957,601)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERLDEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 6,221,201 6,548,114 6,581,030 6,191,939 5,759,027
DEDUCT: i
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBERE 2,132,976 2,162,515 2,263,725 1,563,530 1,288,935
NET ASSETS BEFR 4,088,225 4,385,599 4,317,305 4,628,409 4,470,092
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Century
Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the audited results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2019
("the year").

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the first quarter of 2019, China’s consumer goods market
was generally stable, the consumption structure continued
to optimize and upgrade, consumption patterns continued
to innovate and develop, and the old and new kinetic energy
conversions in the consumer sector were steadily advanced,
and the consumption potential of residents was further
released. Consumption is still the first driving force for
economic growth.

The domestic retail market was generally stable, and
consumption continued to play a fundamental role. The
consumer goods market as a whole maintained a steady
growth. In terms of nominal growth rate, in the first quarter
of 2019, the total retail sales of consumer goods increased
by 8.3% year-on-year. Although the growth rate dropped by
1.5 percentage points as compared with the same period of
last year, it was the same as that of the fourth quarter of last
year. Among them, the increase in March was 8.7%, and the
growth rate was 0.5 percentage point higher than that in
January and February, which was a new high in the past six
months. In terms of actual growth rate, after deducting the
price factor, the total retail sales of consumer goods in the first
quarter increased by 6.9%, 0.9 percentage point higher than
the fourth quarter of last year.

Domestic consumption continued to play a major role in
economic growth. According to estimates, the contribution of
final consumption expenditure to economic growth in the first
quarter was 65.1%, which was significantly higher than the
contribution of the gross capital formation and net exports of
goods and services to economic growth.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ETEHE

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

In the first quarter, the online retail sales of national physical
goods increased by 21.0%, which was 12.7 percentage
points higher than the total retail sales of consumer goods,
accounting for 18.2% of the total retail sales of consumer
goods, and an increase of 2.1 percentage points over the
same period of last year. In the first quarter, the retail sales
of supermarkets and convenience stores above designated
size increased by 7.5% and 10.5% respectively, which were
3.7 and 6.7 percentage points higher than the growth rate of
retail sales of units above designated size. The business model
such as professional stores continued to maintain the trend of
growth on the basis of the recovery growth of the previous
year. Its growth rate and the growth rate of retail sales of units
above designated size was same basically.

For the Xi'an department store market in the first quarter of
2019, the city’s total retail sales of consumer goods reached
RMB117,492 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of 5.6%. The retail sales of consumer goods of units above
designated size was RMB55,508 million, representing an
increase of 0.2%. Of which, the online retail sales of units
above designated size reached RMB8,395 million, representing
an increase of 14.3%.

Following the appearance of a large number of large-scale
retail department stores in the previous year, 22 large-scale
famous shopping malls will bloom in Xi‘an in 2019, which will
create the largest scale and number of stores in Xi'an. While
enriching the retail department store market, it had further
exacerbated the competition in the department business
model, and it had reached the stage of whitewashing in the
true sense.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

In 2018, the Company persisted in fine-quality positioning,
insisted on exclusive service and adhered to distinctive
operations, achieving initial results. In order to achieve
sustainable development, the Company has implemented the
“One Store, One Positioning” strategy. The Company’s senior-
level team has determined the positioning of the stores of
the Century Ginwa Xi'an Department Stores Business Sector,
correspondingly making the positioning of the stores more
comprehensible and clearer, thereby reducing the internal
competition situation. Thirdly, in terms of management
work, the Company continued to optimize its organizational
structure, initially established a new flat management plan and
simplified the work process. On the basis of salary adjustments
in the previous year, the Company continued to optimize the
salary incentive mechanism this year. Fourthly, the Company
continued to increase the intensity of expansion work. On 6
December 2017, the Company successfully rooted in Shaanxi
Chenggu County in the form of commercial output, gradually
expanded the brand influence and scale of Century Ginwa.
The cooperation project with Qian County is proceeding in
an orderly manner, and the Company will follow the light
asset management model subsequently and increase the
layout of business outlets around Xi‘an. In the fifth place, the
ability to innovate has been continuously strengthened; new
technologies have been applied to expand business areas,
increasing office efficiency. The Company adopted “Tangerine”
paid control platform, corporate “WeChat” management
platform and the “Ding Talk” online system. The rigors of
these managements are all laying a solid foundation for the
retail transformation of the present and the future of Century
Ginwa.

G98 Omni-channel Intelligence Service Platform Project

G98 Omni-channel Intelligence Service Platform has already
finished the development of “Blue Ocean Project” in the
beginning of 2018, establishing the global shopping channel.
Currently, the platform has 12 overseas supply chains covering
5 major categories and involving 390 brands. This has
supplemented the number of brands and categories under
the offline store, broadened the cooperation channels, and
enhanced the competitive advantages of the same business
model in the Century Ginwa and the region.
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Chairman’s Statement

ETEHE

Looking ahead, despite the adverse effects brought by various
domestic and foreign unfavorable economic factors, the situation
may not have significant difference in the short run. However,
regarding the acceleration of the pace of reform and further
adjustment of economic structure, China’s economy is in progress
while maintaining stability. In particular, the Central Committee
for Comprehensive Deepening Reform organized to expand
domestic demand and increase household consumption. It
reviewed and approved a series of deepening reform documents,
two of which involved promoting consumption: “Opinions
on Improving the Mechanism of Promoting Consumption and
Further Stimulating the Consumption Potential of Residents”
((EARTEREBEBHBAE L HEEREEEND
B #HFER) )and “Implementation Plan for Improving the
Mechanism for Promoting Consumption (2018-2020)" ( {(£&
{2 3 1 2 B8 i # I B s 75 22 (2018 —2020%4F ) ) ), which will be
of great benefit to the retail industry. It is foreseen that the rapid
urbanization will lead to the gradual change of consumption
ratios and structure, which further stimulates the potential
demand under consumption upgrade. Subsequent to the vertical
deepening of the national system transformation and reform, the
national policies will create a macro-environment conducive to
enterprise development. We will also timely adjust its strategies
and develop future-proof policies for the updated situation.

In the aspect of existing business expansion, based on the
successful practice and experience of the trendy department
store and the supermarket business of the Group, the existing
business will be integrated and optimized, while considering
the coverage of second-tier cities in Shaanxi to achieve healthy
growth of scale.

In the aspect of business diversification which increases
profit sources, the Company will further develop brand
agency business and introduce well-known domestic and
foreign brands to enter the northwest market, so as to
provide consumers with more quality choices and provide
operational management services to the franchise stores. By
reducing channels to directly provide goods to consumers,
the pattern of profit distribution will be changed. With our
strong brand strength, outstanding operating efficiency, good
financial performance and loyal customer base, we believe the
Company will maintain its leading position in the marketplace
among the industry and generate better returns for our
shareholders.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Chairman’s Statement

ETEHE

APPRECIATION &)

On behalf of the Board, | would also like to extend my sincere AAZEHARAREFTERIRNE KEE &
thanks to our shareholders, investors, customers, suppliers, P EER - A RIBIT R ER B HEUARH
bankers and business associates for their continued strong HE O RBEE —EUNR IS NTE-
support.

Wu Yijian R—B
Chairman FE
Hong Kong, 28 June 2019 BB —E-NAEXAZ+NB
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWK DM

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the year under review, the performance of the Group
was illustrated as follows.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Gross revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2019 decreased to RMB2,729.1 million as
compared to RMB3,093.1 million for the year ended
31 March 2018. The decrease was primarily due to
increased market competition arising from surrounding
shopping malls and online retail shops which leads to a
decrease in concession sales during the year.

Annualized area efficiency (annualized gross revenue
per department store average operating area) for the
year ended 31 March 2019 was RMB31,600 per square
meter, as compared to RMB36,300 for the year ended
31 March 2018.

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2019 decreased to RMB1,054.1 million as compared
to RMB1,159.1 million for the year ended 31 March
2018. It was because net income from concession sales
decreased by 16% compared to the same period last
year.

The rental income and management and administrative
service fee income of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2019 were RMB133.6 million, as compared to
RMB127.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2018.

The Group's operating loss for the year ended 31
March 2019 was RMB159.7 million as compared to the
operating profit of RMB143.5 million for the year ended
31 March 2018. Regardless of the impairment losses
on goodwill of RMB194.7 million recorded in this year,
the operating profit margin (profit from operation over
gross revenue) decreased from 4.6% to 1.3%.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL RESULTS (continued)

(vi)  Net finance costs for the year ended 31 March 2019
were RMB88.1 million (2018: RMB97.0 million). The
change in net finance cost was mainly due to increase in
interest expenses capitalised.

(vii)  The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March 2019
and loss attributable to shareholders of the Company
were RMB263.8 million (profit for 2018: RMB23.6
million) and RMB261.6 million (profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company for 2018: RMB27.2
million) respectively.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s consolidated net asset value
was RMB4,088.2 million (2018: RMB4,385.6 million). As at
31 March 2019, the Group had cash at bank and on hand
amounting to RMB544.7 million (2018: RMB614.7 million).
The current ratio of the Group as at 31 March 2019 was 0.52
(2018: 0.62). The gearing ratio, being bank and other loans
less cash at bank and on hand and short-term investments
divided by the total equity, as at 31 March 2019, was 0.45
(2018: 0.36).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Looking back to the year, the PRC retail industry will continue
to face challenges and be subject to internal and external
factors including macroeconomic fluctuation, government
policy guidance, rapid growth of other retail channels such as
e-commerce and rising costs.

By adhering to the principle of managing its financial
resources in a prudent manner, the Group will optimize its cost
structure, improve its management efficiency and strengthen
its capability. It will strive to make progress in the PRC market
which is full of opportunities and challenges, in order to
create values for its customers and maximize the returns to its
shareholders.

EERENWR DM

BT (#)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWK DM

FUTURE PLAN AND OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, despite the adverse effects brought by various
domestic and foreign unfavorable economic and diplomacy
factors, the development situation of the domestic retail
market may not have significant difference in the short run.
However, regarding the acceleration of the pace of reform and
further adjustment of economic structure, China’s economy
is in progress while maintaining stability, the competition will
become more intense, then the market rules for survival of the
fittest will be more prominent.

The Company will also adjust its strategy and formulate
corresponding policies in a timely manner in the face of many
unfavorable conditions.

In the aspect of existing business expansion, based on the
successful practice and experience of the trendy department
store and the supermarket business of the Group, we will
continue to strive for the healthy growth of scale for coverage
of second-and third-tier cities.

In the aspect of business diversification which increases profit
sources, we will further develop brand agency business and
introduce well-known domestic and foreign brands to enter
the northwest market, so as to provide consumers with more
quality choices and provide operational management services
to the franchise stores. By reducing channels to directly provide
goods to consumers, the pattern of profit distribution will be
changed. With our strong brand strength, strong management
practice ability, superior geographical position and a large
number of loyal customer bases, we are confident that the
Company will maintain its leading position in the industry and
generate better returns for our shareholders.

Looking back to the year, the challenges in the PRC retail
industry have intensified and the industry will be subject
to internal and external factors including macroeconomic
fluctuation, government policy guidance, rapid growth of
other retail channels such as e-commerce, rising operational
costs, capital liquidity shortages and financing difficulties.

By adhering to the principle of managing its financial
resources in a prudent manner, the Group will optimize its cost
structure, improve its management efficiency and strengthen
its capability. It will strive to make progress in the PRC market
which is full of opportunities and challenges, in order to
create values for its customers and maximize the returns to its
shareholders.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018/19
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE PLAN AND OUTLOOK (continued)

Cooperation with Investment Fund

After successful introduction of Hony Capital, a leading
private-equity firm in China sponsored by Legend Holdings,
in late 2010 to acquire the Company’s convertible bonds
amounting to HK$1,330.5 million, the cooperation between
Hony Capital and the Group has become closer. In December
2012, Hony Capital had not only made additional capital
contribution to the Group of US$60 million (approximately
HK$470 million) for business expansion and as working
capital, but also used all of its existing convertible bonds to
subscribe for non-redeemable convertible preferred shares
which reduced the debt burden of the Group, substantially
increased shareholders’ capital and strengthened the financial
position. As at the date of this announcement, Hony Capital
held 28.07% of the Company’s ordinary share capital in issue
and was the Company’s second largest shareholder.

Optimize business structure and focus on the concept
of new retail

In 2018 and 2019, the Company will focus on the concept
of new retail, to achieve “technology upgrades, service
upgrades, management upgrades”. In the specific business
operations, brand adjustment, membership recruitment,
service techniques, teams of talents and other aspects, the
Company will abandon the original inertial thinking, and
constantly adopt new technologies and new methods to
achieve new breakthroughs in all aspects; at the same time,
the Company will implement planning and design in precise
marketing, management effectiveness, safety operations,
and other aspects one by one, and achieve the matching
of responsibilities and rights. Specific strategies include the
following five aspects:

Strategy I: Plan implementation. Thoroughly complete the
various business indicators of the year 2019. In the aspect of
brand adjustment, we must complete the brand adjustment
plan of 2019 according to the time node. It also clarifies the
overall operational planning work in the future.

Strategy Il: Active expansion. Continue to promote the work of
Xi'an’s global center project in an orderly manner. At the same
time, on the basis of comprehensive investigations, we will
continue to explore expansion projects in second-and third-tier
cities in the Shaanxi province.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWK DM

FUTURE PLAN AND OUTLOOK (continued)

Optimize business structure and focus on the concept
of new retail (continued)

Strategy lll: Capital protection. Strengthen revenue, use new
types of financing channels tools, optimize the receivable
turnover period and create a healthy capital liquidity
environment.

Strategy IV: Driven innovation. Integrate consumer finance
and internet financial products; meanwhile analyze the
consumption behavior data of members, and develop the
mobile application of shopping guides.

Strategy V: Management effectiveness. Fully embody the
corporate culture effectiveness, performance management
effectiveness and communication mechanism efficiency, and
integrate the application of new management technologies.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group’s contingent liabilities are disclosed in note 30 to
the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the reporting year (2018: HK$Nil).

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2019, the number of the Group’s staffs
was approximately 7,000 (2018: 6,900), including directly
employed approximately 1,700 (2018: 1,800) full time
employees, and the remaining were concession sales staffs
managed on behalf of the suppliers. Most of the employees
are employed in Mainland China. The directly employed
employees’ remuneration, promotion and salary increments
are assessed based on both individuals’ and the Group’s
performance, professional and working experience and by
reference to prevailing market practice and standards. Apart
from the general remuneration package, the Group also
granted share options and discretionary bonus to the eligible
staffs based on their performance and contribution to the
Group. The Group regards high-calibre staffs as one of the key
factors to corporate success.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018/19
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Decrease in carrying value of assets measured at fair
value

Due to the recent uncertainties surrounding the stock
markets in the PRC, the Group’s investments in Ginwa
Enterprise A-Shares have experienced a decrease in value by
approximately 22% since the end of the reporting period.
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Biographies of Directors

ESBER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Yijian ("Mr. Wu")

Mr. Wu, aged 58, was appointed as Chairman of the Company
on 7 January 2011 and re-designated to an Executive Director
of the Company on 19 February 2013. Mr. Wu currently holds
the directorship of certain subsidiaries of the Company, and he
was the executive director from January 2001 to May 2008,
the chairman from May 2003 to May 2008 and the non-
executive director of the Company from January 2011 to 18
February 2013 respectively.

Mr. Wu graduated in Huazhong Normal University with
a Master degree in Economic Management (Political
Economy). He was granted the national titles of “Ten Most
Outstanding Youth of China” in 1996, “Contribution
Award of International Excellent Entrepreneur” in 1997,
"Chinese Excellent Youth Entrepreneur” in 2002 and
"National Outstanding Builders of Socialism with Chinese
Characteristics” in 2004. Mr. Wu is chairman of Ginwa
Enterprise (Group) Inc. (a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange) and the chairman of the board and the
president of Ginwa Investments Holding Group Ltd. (“Ginwa
Investments”). He is also the vice-chairman of the China Civil
Chamber of Commerce, chairman of the Chairmen Board of
China Federation of Industrial Economics, vice-president of
the China Association of Small and Medium Enterprises, vice-
president of China International Chamber of Commerce for
the Private Sector, Secretary-general of Augmented Reality
Alliance China, vice-chairman of the China Red Ribbon
Foundation, expert committee member of The People’s
Government of Shaanxi Province Consult Committee, president
of Shaanxi Business Promotion Association, vice-president of
Shaanxi General Chamber of Commerce, honorable president
of Shaanxi Chamber of Commerce of Shanxi Merchant and
honorable president of Shenzhen M & A Association of Listed
Companies.

Mr. Wu is also the sole director of Maritime Century Limited
("MCL"), the substantial shareholder of the Company. MCL
is wholly and beneficially owned by Ginwa Investments.
Ginwa Investments is held as to 92% beneficially by Mr.
Wu. Therefore, Mr. Wu thru MCL was beneficially interested
in 336,166,156 ordinary shares of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO").

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter (“Mr. Chan")

Mr. Chan, aged 66, was re-designated to an Executive Director
and the Vice-chairman of the Company on 7 August 2015.
Mr. Chan graduated with a bachelor degree in Social Science
(Economics) from The University of Western Ontario, Canada,
in 1978. He has over 20 years’ experience in marketing and
business development. He was an executive director of Zhi
Cheng Holdings Limited (a company listed on the GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (”Stock Exchange”)
with Stock Code: 8130) from 8 April 2014 to 1 April 2015 and
Gold Tat Group International Limited (a company listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 8266) from 27
March 2003 to 13 October 2014.

Mr. Sha Yingjie (“Mr. Sha"”)

Mr. Sha, aged 62, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company on 1 July 2007 and holds the directorship of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Sha is currently the
deputy financial controller of Ginwa Investments. He once
worked as the financial controller of Xi'an Supply Station of
XiBei Electrical Engineering Company Limited and the financial
controller of Xi‘an Taiwan Hotel.

Mr. Sha has over 20 years of working experience in commerce
and finance. Mr. Sha received management education and
training in Mainland China. He also holds a master degree in
business administration from The Open University of Hong
Kong. He was awarded China career manager in June 2003
and was appointed taxation practice review inspector by
Xi'an Tax Bureau in the PRC since 2014. He obtained a chief
financial officer qualification certificate in respect of business
administration position in 2007. In 2012, he was admitted
as an affiliate member of The Association of International
Accountants.

Mr. Chen Shuai (“Mr. Chen”)

Mr. Chen, aged 45, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company on 3 December 2010. He was also appointed
as a member of each of the audit committee and remuneration
committee of the Company on 7 January 2011 and the
nomination committee of the Company on 7 March 2012. He
currently holds the directorship of certain subsidiaries of the
Company.
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Biographies of Directors

ESBER

Mr. Chen joined Hony Capital in 2003. As at the date of this
annual report, Hony Capital, through Glory Keen Holdings
Limited, was beneficially interested in (i) 322,727,272 ordinary
shares of the Company, representing approximately 28.07%
of the number of ordinary shares of the Company in issue, (ii)
the security interest over 336,166,156 ordinary shares held
by MCL under a share charge created in favour of Glory Keen
Holdings Limited, and (iii) 1,177,068,181 convertible preferred
shares of the Company. Mr. Chen directs city services, hotel
management, investments in financial services, culture and
media, consumer goods and retail and construction material
sectors of Hony Capital. Mr. Chen has extensive experience
in investment management, supplier management and retail
business.

Prior to joining Hony Capital in 2003, Mr. Chen had worked
in an investment company, a PRC retail chain and department
store and a PRC domestic comprehensive supermarket
company. Mr. Chen holds an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from The China Europe International
Business School. He received his bachelor degree in economics
from Beijing Forestry University. Currently, Mr. Chen acts as a
director of Shanghai SMI Holding Co., Ltd. (a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 600649)
and Shanghai Environment Group Co., Ltd. (a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 601200).

Mr. Cao Yonggang (“Mr. Cao")

Mr. Cao, aged 47, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company on 17 May 2015. He was also appointed as a
member of each of the audit committee and the nomination
committee of the Company on 17 May 2015. He has resigned
as a member of the audit committee of the Company on 16
January 2019.

Mr. Cao joined Hony Capital in 2004 and is currently its
managing director. He is responsible for the management of
the risk management and compliance department, human
resources department, department of Hony Capital. As at the
date of this annual report, Hony Capital, through Glory Keen
Holdings Limited, was beneficially interested in (i) 322,727,272
ordinary shares of the Company, representing approximately
28.07% of the number of ordinary shares of the Company in
issue, (i) the security interest over 336,166,156 ordinary shares
held by MCL under a share charge created in favour of Glory
Keen Holdings Limited, and (iii) 1,177,068,181 convertible
preferred shares of the Company.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Prior to joining Hony Capital, Mr. Cao was an attorney at the
Jingtian & Gongcheng Law Firm. He is currently a supervisor
of Happigo Home Shopping Co., Ltd. (a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 300413).
He was the chairman of supervisory board of Changsha
Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science & Technology Development
Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
with Stock Code: 157) for the period from 22 July 2010 to
29 June 2015. He received a bachelor of arts degree in civil
and commercial law from Tianjin Nankai University, a master
degree in international law from Peking University, a master of
laws degree in international law from the Erasmus University
in Rotterdam and a master of business administration degree
from the China Europe International Business School.

Mr. Qu Jiagi (“Mr. Qu")

Mr. Qu, aged 60, was re-designated to a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 19 February 2013. Mr. Qu
currently holds the directorship of certain subsidiaries of the
Company and was an Executive Director from 11 August 2007
to 18 February 2013. He is currently executive vice president
of Ginwa Investments. Mr. Qu worked with several other large
department stores and shopping malls in Xi’an, China.

Mr. Qu has over 30 years of working experience in department
store business. Mr. Qu received management education and
training in Mainland China. He also received training in High
Level Business Administration from The Open University
of Hong Kong. He was awarded the “Shaanxi Province
Outstanding Young Entrepreneur” in October 2000 and
“China Professional Operational Management Master” in
2005. Mr. Qu is also a representative of the 13th and 14th
Xi'an City People’s Assembly.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai (“Mr. Tsang”)

Mr. Tsang, aged 49, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 25 September 2008.
Mr. Tsang is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, ACCA and The Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong. Mr. Tsang has over 20 years of experience
in accounting and finance. At present, he practices public
accounting.
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Mr. Tsang is currently the company secretary of Shanxi
Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd. (a company listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 8286)
and Green International Holdings Limited (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 2700).

Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng (“Mr. Ruan”)

Mr. Ruan, aged 48, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 17 May 2015. Mr. Ruan
is currently the Deputy General Manager of Bozhi Technology
(Beijing) Limited and the chairman of the supervisory board of
New Star Energy Stock Company.

Mr. Ruan was the senior investment manager of Hony Capital
from 2003 to 2009. He previously worked in ZTE Capital
and TCL Ventures as vice president and executive director
respectively and served as a law lecturer mainly for corporate
law, tax law and securities law in the arts and law faculty in
Beijing University of Chemical Technology. During that period,
he was a part-time lawyer in a number of law firms. He has
solid legal practice experience and is familiar with corporate
governance, corporate finance and investment, mergers
and acquisition, business restructuring. He holds a master
of business administration degree from the China Europe
International Business School and a bachelor degree and a
master of economic law degree from the Law School of Jilin
University.

Dr. Cao Guogqi (“Dr. Cao")

Dr. Cao, aged 55, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 5 November 2015.
Dr. Cao graduated from the Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics, the University of Hong Kong, and the
Shanghai Academy of Social Sciences and holds a Ph.D.
degree in Economics. He has over 20 years of experience in
project financing and investment, finance, fund investment
and management, mergers and acquisitions, and corporate
advisory.
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Dr. Cao is the executive director and general manager
of Probest Limited and Master Energy Inc. He is also the
deputy president of the Asian Economics Research Institute
at the Shanghai University of Finance and Economics, an
EMBA professor of Hunan University, a MBA supervisor at
the Advanced Institute of Finance of the Shanghai Jiaotong
University, and a research fellow at the Shanghai Institute of
Development Strategy. From April 2014, he takes the position
as the chairman of SBI China Capital Group. Currently, Dr.
Cao acts as an executive director of China Smartpay Group
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange with Stock Code: 8325) and an independent non-
executive director of Dongwu Cement International Ltd. (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 695).

Dr. Cao was an independent non-executive director of
Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Information Industrial Co. Ltd. (a
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange with
Stock Code: 8205). He was a probationary economist in the
International Currency Department of the Economic and
Financial Affairs Councils, European Communities, as well
as a project coordinator of the World Bank. He co-founded
Shanghai Jingcheng Internet Consulting Co. Ltd. with
Shanghai Jiaotong University, and was elected as Chairman
and CEO.
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Directors’ Report

EEEHE

The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together
with the audited financial statements for the year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and those of the subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Environmental Protection

In order to promote corporate governance, drive environmental
protection proactively, facilitate relationships among
stakeholders and contribute to the society, the management
has established Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Committee to set targets, policies, procedures and
guidelines for ESG related matters so as to promote the
sustainable development of the community where the Group’s
business is operated. Five Task Forces are set up under the
ESG Committee. Members in the Task Forces come from
the elites of relevant departments responsible for assisting
the ESG Committee in promotion of the corresponding ESG
related matters, establishment of key performance indicators
and periodic effectiveness assessment. ESG Committee is
responsible to report to the board of directors periodically the
status of execution and recommendations of improvements.

The Group has set up an energy conservation project team to
implement a number of energy saving and emission reduction
measures in offices, department stores and supermarkets to
reduce electricity consumption, discharge of pollutants, and
to avoid wastage of resources. For achieving the concept of
“Green management and balanced development”, the Group
will continue to review and monitor the implementation of each
measure, and optimize the measures based on their effectiveness.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group has ensured and will continue to ensure full
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on its operations, including but not
limited to laws and regulations in relation to product safety
and liabilities, customer rights protection, employment and
occupational safety and laws and regulations relating to
property leasing and property management.

The management will monitor the impact for any changes in
the relevant laws and regulations from time to time and seek
external advice if considered necessary.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Principal business activities of the Group are the retail services
at its department stores. The risks associated include burglary,
fire, significant incidents, cash storage and in transit. The
Group has followed relevant laws and regulations to set up
security measures to lower the chance of these risks, to protect
the security of human lives and inventories and to minimize
any loss.

For other risks, such as credit risks, interest rate risks, liquidity
risks, currency risks and equity price risks, and risk reduction
measures, please refer to “Financial Risks Management and
Fair Value” in note 28 to the financial statements.

Relationships with key stakeholders

The Group firmly believes that maintaining good relationship
with key stakeholders (including employees, customers,
vendors, governing bodies and shareholders) is the key
element to ensure long-term success and continual profit
growth.

(1) Employees
Employees are the most important and valuable assets
of the Group. The Group has established comprehensive
talent recruitment and sound performance appraisal
polices to reward and recognize performing employees
with competitive remuneration package, and to
promote them with career development and progression
by appropriate training and providing them with equal
opportunities within the Group for career development.

(2) Customers

Our customers come from buyers of department stores.
Through good standards of the look, appearance and
actions of employees, the Group creates a good service
model to customers. The Group not only devotes to
set up a consistent labelling system and clear pricing
system, but also endeavors to eradicate the selling of
fake and inferior quality products. The Group treasures
complaints and comments from customers. In order
to provide excellent customer services and to increase
market share and business expansion, the Group has set
up various channels to strengthen the communication
with customers, including customer satisfactory surveys,
customer opinion cards and website of the Company.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Relationships with key stakeholders (continued)

(3)

(4)

(5)

Goods Suppliers and Services Providers

The Group adheres to open, fair and transparent criteria
in choosing goods suppliers and services providers and
has set up a vendor evaluation system. The evaluation
will base on prices, quality, costs, delivery and after-sales
services after strict execution of purchase procedures
and goods/services inspection standards. In order to
ensure sustainable quality of goods and services supply,
the Group will carry out continual monitoring and
periodic examination of all vendors.

Regulators

The Group operates in the retail business through
different department stores which are subject to the
jurisdictions of the national and local regulators.
Along with compliance with applicable laws, rules
and regulations, each department store of the Group
has taken steps to ensure that relevant local concerns,
customs and changes of laws or regulations have been
accounted for.

Shareholders

For communication, shareholders may contact the
Group via “contact us” section of the website of the
Company. Besides, the Group will also communicate
with shareholders through printed or online version
of notices, announcements, annual and interim
reports. Annual general meeting provides a forum for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board of the
Group.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The loss and cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2019 and the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 March 2019 are set out in the financial
statements on pages 109 to 118.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2019.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for
the three years ended 31 March 2019, 2018, 2017 and the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 and the year ended 31
December 2014 and the assets and liabilities of the Group as
at 31 December 2014 and as at 31 March 2016, 2017, 2018,
2019 are set out on page 6.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in note 27 to the
financial statements.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 17 October 2014, the Company adopted the Share
Award Scheme under which the shares of the Company
(the “Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to any member of
management and employee (either full time or part time)
of any member of the Group, Directors (including executive
Directors, non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors), any suppliers, customers, shareholders,
advisers (professional or otherwise), joint venture and service
providers to any member of the Group from time to time (the
“Selected Participants”) pursuant to the terms of the Scheme
Rules and the Trust Deed of the Share Award Scheme. The
Share Award Scheme became effective on the adoption date
and, unless otherwise terminated or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date, i.e., 16 October 2024.

The maximum aggregate nominal value of the Awarded Shares
which may be awarded to a Selected Participant under the
Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1 per cent of the issued
share capital of the Company at the date of such award.

When a Selected Participant has satisfied all vesting conditions
specified by the Board of the Company at the time of making
the award and become entitled to the shares of the Company
forming the subject of the award, the trustee shall transfer
the relevant Awarded Shares to that participant. The Selected
Participant however is not entitled to receive any income
or distribution such as dividend derived from the unvested
Awarded Shares allocated to him/her.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has
purchased 3,070,000 shares of the Company through the
trustee in the open market on the Stock Exchange for the
purpose of Share Award Scheme and no share was granted by
the Company under Share Award Scheme.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in
note 27 to the financial statements.

As at 31 March 2019, the Company’s reserves (including
retained profits, if any, and contributed surplus, subject to
equity shareholders’ approval) amounting to RMB995,255,000
(2018: RMB995,255,000) were available for distribution to the
Company'’s shareholders. In addition, the share premium of the
Company in the amount of approximately RMB1,136,595,000
(2018: RMB1,136,595,000) may be distributed in form of fully
paid bonus shares.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”).
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed
by an independent trustee. Under the MPF scheme, each of
the Group and its employees make monthly contribution to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the employer’s
and the employee’s contributions are subject to a cap of
monthly earnings of HK$30,000 and thereafter contributions
are voluntary. As stipulated by the rules and regulations in
the PRC, the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement
plans for its employees in the PRC. The Group contributes to
retirement plans at specified percentages of the basic salaries
of its employees, and has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits. The state-
sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in fixed assets of the Group during
the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in note 12 to the
financial statements.

BANK AND OTHER LOANS

Details of bank and other loans of the Group during the year
ended 31 March 2019 are set out in note 24 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements, no
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest subsisted at the end of the
year ended 31 March 2019 or at any time during the year
ended 31 March 2019.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018/19

\\

it 18

AEBRARFZ EHERBE-S—NF
A+ BLFEZEYHBERRAE
|EM 27 ©

RZE—HFE=RA=+—H AQFA#
DIRTFEBRRZFE(BREB &R (0
B)RBARG (ERBREZIE)) B
AR 995,255,000 (ZE—\F: AR
#995,255,0007T ) ° k4N ANAF Z K5
HEBEELHAARE1,136,595,0000T (=
ZT— ) \F: ARE¥1,136,595,0007T) * A A
BRABER SR -

EBEKER

AEEBLZHEFTEREZ MAHIMEATES
8l ([REeFTEl]) - RESEHETIEE
UXTAABEEZ ERHERGTE - RIRRE
TEE AEBLEEESBEATRAERE
BEFe (EXABHEREEEN) 5%
EREIHER - BEREE ZHAUET A
¥ 30,0008 LA LR - S {EE MR
IMEFR - IRIBFRBUEZERER 2T A&
EAEPEEENBEREBRARGEIED
"R AEEZREREREELAFESZETER
7 REZRIRET SR (5K - BRULDASN - 8
i — TERBNRRESIRIKERFZ
BEF-BERERKGTEEE ERRIKE
BYMRKEZ22WEL-

BEE&EE
AEEZETEERBE-_ZT—NLF=A
Z+—BLFEZEHFBEHRNPBERRE
BEE12 o

BRITREMER

REBZRITREMERREE_T—HN
FZA=Z+—HILEEZFBHERYBR
RWFE24 -

EEEANP 2R

BB A I RS R E AN RBES
T-NFZAS—HULFEEHERE
E-T-AFZ AT+ —BULFEEES
B AR S B AR AR A R SR AR
HEA RN Y AAEEANFHAE
Kz -



DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company who held office during the year
ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of this annual report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Yijian (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 31 October 2018)

Mr. Sha Yingjie

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Shuai (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Cao Yonggang
Mr. Qu Jiaqi

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng
Ms. Sun Zhili
(resigned on 19 October 2018)
Dr. Cao Guoqi

In accordance with Bye-Law 87(1) of the Company, Mr. Chan
Wai Kwong, Peter, Mr. Chen Shuai, Mr. Cao Yonggang, Mr.
Ruan Xiaofeng and Dr. Cao Guogqi will retire from the office of
directorship by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from the Independent Non-Executive Directors,
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai, Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng, Ms. Sun Zhili and Dr.
Cao Guogi, and considers them to be independent for the year
ended 31 March 2019. The Company considers that each of
such Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent
from the Group based on the Guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set
out on pages 18 to 23.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continued)

None of the directors had entered into any service contract
with any member of the Group which is not terminable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND TOP FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the directors and top five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9 to
the financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the following
transactions between certain connected parties (as defined
in the Listing Rules) and the Group have been entered into
and/or are ongoing for which relevant announcements and
independent shareholders’ approval, if necessary, had been
made and obtained by the Company in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Continuing connected transactions

On 13 February 2015, the Company’'s three subsidiaries,
as lessors, entered into tenancy agreements (the “Tenancy
Agreements”) with Xi'an Century Ginwa Epin Life Supermarket
Company Limited (“Xi‘an Epin”), as tenant, in respect of
renting at Bell Tower Store, Hi-Tech Store and Nandajie Store
for operations of supermarket business for a period of three
years commencing from 16 February 2015, at annual rental
of RMB5.6 million, RMB0.8 million and RMBO0.3 million
respectively. Xi‘an Epin terminated the Tenancy Agreement for
Nandajie Store in December 2015. Renting to Xi'an Epin for
operation of supermarket business in the Group’s department
stores can enhance the product mix. As at the date of the
Tenancy Agreements, Xi‘an Epin was wholly-owned by Ginwa
Investments, which was in turn beneficially owned as to 92%
by Mr. Wu Yijian, an Executive Director and Chairman of
the Company, and was therefore a connected person of the
Company. The transactions under the Tenancy Agreements
constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Subsequent to the entering into of the Tenancy Agreements,
Ginwa Investments transferred all its equity interests in Xi‘an
Epin to an independent third party of the Group. Following the
aforesaid transfer, Xi'an Epin ceased to be a connected person
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As a
result of which, the Tenancy Agreements and the transactions
contemplated thereunder ceased to constitute as continuing
connected transactions for the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

Further details of the significant related party transactions
undertaken in the normal course of business of the Group
are provided under note 31 to the financial statements. None
of these related party transactions constitutes a connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction as defined
under the Listing Rules that is required to be disclosed,
except for those described above in the paragraphs headed
“Continuing connected transactions”, in respect of which the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules have been complied with.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executives of the Company in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO which were required to be entered into the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or otherwise
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they are taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and/
or the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers in the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), were as
follows:

(@) Long positions in the shares of the Company
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Mr. Wu Yijian Interest in a controlled corporation 336,166,156 29.24%
R—BE4 REZEHEB A

Mr. Sha Yingjie Personal interests 1,551,500 0.13%

DENFTAE (EPN-Fe
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the BrEXAFTHEEEIN RZZE—NLF=A
directors or chief executives of the Company had, under =+t—H ARQRAIEFHEFETHAEMR

Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, nor were they taken
to or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, any
interests or short positions in the shares of HK$0.10 each
of the Company, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) or any interests which are required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code or any interests which are required to be
entered into the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)

Long position in the share options of the
Company

In accordance with the terms of the share option
scheme adopted by the Company pursuant to an
ordinary resolution of the Company passed on 15
February 2011 (the “Share Option Scheme”), the
Company may grant options to the eligible person of
the Company to subscribe for shares in the Company,
subject to a maximum of 30% of the issued ordinary
share capital of the Company from time to time
excluding for this purpose shares issued in the exercise
of options for the purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to selected eligible person for their contribution
to the Group. The Share Option Scheme became
effective on 15 February 2011 and unless otherwise
cancelled or amended according to the Share Option
Scheme, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date. Eligible person under the Share Option Scheme
includes the followings:—

(i) any director, employee or consultant of the
Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or

(ii) any discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects include any director, employee or
consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an
affiliate; or

(i)  a company beneficially owned by any director,
employee or consultant of the Company, a
subsidiary or an affiliate; or

(iv) any person or entity whose service to the
Group or business with the Group contributes
or is expected to contribute to the business or
operation of the Group as may be determined by
the directors from time to time.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)

Long position in the share options of the
Company (continued)

Without prior separate approval from the Company’s
shareholders, (i) the total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company must not exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company as at the date of the
shareholders’ approval of the option limit; and (ii) the
maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each eligible
person under the Share Option Scheme (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not (when aggregated with any shares of
the Company subject to options granted during such
period under any other share option scheme of the
Company) exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue for any time being.

Any grant of options to any directors, chief executive
or substantial shareholders (as such terms as defined
in the Listing Rules) of the Company, or any of their
respective associates under the Share Option Scheme
or any other share option scheme of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries shall be subject to the prior
approval of the independent non-executive directors
or shareholders of the Company as the case may be.
Without prior separate approval from the Company’s
shareholders, the maximum number of shares issued
and to be issued in respect of which options granted
and may be granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of
such grant shall not (i) exceed 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue on the date of such grant; and
(i) have an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant, in excess of HK$5 million.
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EERFRETHRAEREQFR
7 HEROREZZEERER

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND (&)
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
(b) Long position in the share options of the (b) ELGEREZRRE (&)

Company (continued)

The exercise price of the share options shall be at least
the higher of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant; and (iii) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant (subject to
Share Option Scheme adjustments).

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme
was 33,000,000, representing 2.87% of the issued share
capital of the Company. Set out below are the details

BREZITEERAZL B TIISRA
ZEEE  (VWRMDEE: ()P
BN BHMERAR  BOHREL
B8 2 W (8 R (i) B S P 3
ZEBRARERMAR BORERR
HAMAAEEXRA 2 FHRTE
(RBBRETEMFELRE)

HEAFHRAE RIEBRETS
Al 31T 2 f% {0 42 £1/4 33,000,000
B AEAR AR B EITRA2.87%
XEINEE T —hAhF=ZRA=1+—

B EFE - RIEEBERT 81 A9 =
RITENBRIENZE B FI5:

of movements in the outstanding share options granted
under the Share Option Scheme for the year ended 31

March 2019:
Number of share options
EREHR
Outstanding Forfeited/  Outstanding
Exercise as at Granted Exercised Expired as at
price Vesting and 1 April during during during 31 March
Name of grantee  Date of grant  (HK§) exercise period 2018 the year the year the year 2019
RZg-nf
RZg-NF =A
i%E mA-H ERgl/ =t-H
RRALE REBE (B1) BRRTEH HATE AR ERfTR X% HATE
Mr. Wu Yijian 30May2013 176 30 May 2013 to 1,150,000 - - - 1,150,000
29 May 2019
R854 “3-zf ZZ-ZERAZTRE
FA=TH ZZ-NERAZTAR
RS HEEERERA A 3 5

ZB2-NS-NEFR
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) Long position in the share options of the

Company (continued)

EERFETBRAEREAQFR
7 HEROREZZ2EERER

(#%&)

(b) ZFLATRBREZRAE (&)

Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding Forfeited/  Outstanding
Exercise as at Granted Exercised Expired as at
price Vesting and 1 April during during during 31 March
Name of grantee  Date of grant  (HKS) exercise period 2018 the year the year the year 2019
RZ®-hE
RZg-NE =B
%@ mA-A ERRY/ =t-8
ARALS RiLAH (B1) BRRGEH HATE AR TR X% AR
Mr. Qu Jiaqi 28 May 2013 173 28 May 2013 1o 4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000
27 May 2019
BREEE _F-Zf ZE-ZERACTNRE
BA-TNE ZE-NERAZTLA
Mr. Sha Yingjie 28 May2013 173 28 May 2013 to 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000
27 May 2019
DERRE Z5--F ZE-CERAZTNRE
BA-TNE ZE-NERAZTR
Other employeesof ~ 28 May 2013 1.73 28 May 2013 to 27 May 2019 33,555,000 - - 1,000,000 32,555,000
the Group
(in aggregate)
FEEAMERE  _F-= ZE-ZERACTNRE
(af) EA-TAR “3-NERAZTLA
Other eligible W S%ep2017 032 27 Sep 2017 to 26 Sep 2019 33,000,000 - - - 33,000,000
persons
HeERAL Btk E-rERACTHRE
ARZTER “E-NEAAZTAR
Total £t 74,205,000 - - 1,000,000 73,205,000

-
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) Long position in the share options of the Company
(continued)

a. The closing price per share immediately before
the date of grant of 28 May 2013 was HK$1.78.

b. The closing price per share immediately before
the date of grant of 30 May 2013 was HK$1.73.

C. The closing price per share immediately before
the date of grant of 27 September 2017 was
HK$0.26.

All the interests stated above represents long positions.
Neither long nor short positions were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO as
at 31 March 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the
directors or chief executives of the Company had, under
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, nor were they taken
to or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, any
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or
any interests which are required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange or any interests which are required to
be entered into the register kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or are required pursuant to the Model
Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
Interests of shareholders discloseable pursuant to the SFO

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 March 2019,
the Company had been notified of the following substantial
shareholders’ interests and short positions, being interests of
5% or more of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital.
These interests are in addition to those disclosed above in
respect of the directors or chief executives of the Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued) TERR (&)
Long position/short position in the shares of the (a) ZAATRGBZRAE EA&
Company

Approximate

percentage

of the issued

Number of ordinary share

Long positions/ issued ordinary capital of

Name of shareholder short positions  Nature of interests shares held the Company

BEDE

FrsE BT BRATEER

RR&% RE/fER BEnE LERYA REzBHBA L

Maritime Century Limited Long positions  Corporate interests 336,166,156 (Note 1) 29.24%
RkE NEES (Hizt1)

Ginwa Investments Holding Group  Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 336,166,156 (Note 1) 29.24%

Ltd.

FRERERREEERAT K& REAFEBR AER (Hst1)

Glory Keen Holdings Limited Long positions  Corporate interests 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.31%
REARERAT kB NAER (Hi2)

Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.31%
K& REAFEBR AR (Ht2)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.31%
kB RIEHZERARER (Hiet2)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited  Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.31%
K& REAFEBRAER (Hit2)

Hony Group Management Limited  Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.31%
RE RIEHZERARER (Hie2)

Hony Managing Partners Limited Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.31%
K& RGN EBR AER (Ht2)

Exponential Fortune Group Limited  Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.31%
kB RIEHZERAER (Hie2)

Mr. Zhao John Huan Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.31%
BeRE K& REAFEBRAER (Ht2)



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

(b)
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Report
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TERR(&E)

Long position/short position in the underlying (b) RAEQATRETEIRZHEBER
shares of equity derivatives of the Company (as BeRRE ER(EERIZHKE
defined in Part XV of the SFO) B RBIZEXVER)

Approximate

percentage

of the issued

Number of ordinary share

Long positions/ issued ordinary capital of

Name of shareholder short positions Nature of interests shares held the Company

BALT

e g BRIEER

Y RE/ER BENE EEBRAUE REZBHBA L

Glory Keen Holdings Limited Long positions Corporate interests 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
RERRERAT RkE NAER (Ht3)

Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
RkE REEHZERAER (Kiit3)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, P Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
RkE RREHZERAER (Kiit3)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
RkE REEHZERAER (Kiit3)

Hony Group Management Limited  Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
RkE REEHZERAER (Kiit3)

Hony Managing Partners Limited  Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
RkE REEHZERAER (Kiit3)

Exponential Fortune Group Limited  Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
RkE REEHZERAER (Kiit3)

Mr. Zhao John Huan Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 1,294,774,999 (Note 3) 112.62%
BOBAE RkE REEHZERAER (Kiit3)

HRESTEHEERERAT

ZB2-NS-NEFR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

(b)

Long

position/short position in the underlying

shares of equity derivatives of the Company (as
defined in Part XV of the SFO) (continued)

Notes:

(1

MCL held 336,166,156 Shares. Ginwa Investments
holds the entire issued share capital of MCL. Mr. Wu
Yijian beneficially owns 92% equity interests in Ginwa
Investments. As such, Mr. Wu Yijian was deemed to
be interested in 336,166,156 Shares by virtue of his
shareholding in MCL.

The long position of 658,893,428 Shares represents (i)
the 322,727,272 Shares held by Glory Keen Holdings
Limited (“Glory Keen”); and (ii) the security interest
held by Glory Keen over the 336,166,156 Shares
held by MCL under share charge. Hony Capital Fund
2008, L.P. holds the entire issued share capital of
Glory Keen. Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P. is the
sole general partner of Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P.
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hony Group Management Limited, is
the sole general partner of Hony Capital Fund 2008
GP, L.P.. Hony Managing Partners Limited owns 80%
equity interests in Hony Group Management Limited.
Hony Managing Partners Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Exponential Fortune Group Limited. Mr.
Zhao John Huan held 49% of the issued share capital
of Exponential Fortune Group Limited. Each of the
above-mentioned parties is therefore deemed to be
interested in the interest held by Glory Keen.

The long position of 1,294,774,999 underlying
Shares represents the interest in the 1,294,774,999
conversion shares which may be issued under the
Hony Convertible preferred shares. The exercise of the
conversion rights attaching to the Hony Convertible
preferred shares are subject to the restrictions as stated
in the paragraph headed “Other terms of the Preferred
Shares” under the section headed “Subscription
Agreement” in the circular dated 19 November 2012.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Save as disclosed above, the directors and chief executives of
the Company are not aware that there is any person who, as at
31 March 2019, had an interest or short position in the Shares
and underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or who is, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meeting of any
other member of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2019, director of the Company had the
following interests in business which competed or were likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s
business:

Name of director Name of company

Nature of business
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FHA B EF R

Nature of interests

EsnE NEERE FBMHE EEMEE

Mr. Wu Yijian Ginwa Investments Project investment, entity 92% of the equity
investment, real estate interest in Ginwa
development, property sales, Investments
leasing and agency services,
department store and
supermarket operations

R—BELE TIERE EARE GRERE LWHE RIEREZ292%KE
WEHE HERAERS -
RE[BEEG RBERTIS

Note: K&t

Although Mr. Wu Yijian has competing interests in Ginwa Investments
by virtue of his common directorship, the Directors consider that such
competition, if any, is neither significant nor material to the Group as
a whole. Furthermore Mr. Wu Yijian will fulfill his fiduciary duties in
order to ensure that he will act in the best interest of the Shareholders
and the Company as a whole at all times. Hence, the Group is capable
of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm’s length
from, the businesses of such companies.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their
respective associates had any interest which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.

BEERNR - BALZAREZSFNHERNETE
RERABRF RS ETR/ZREHT (WH)
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers taken together were
less than 30% of the Group’s total sales for the year ended
31 March 2019. The aggregate purchases attributable to
the Group’s largest supplier and five largest suppliers taken
together were less than 30% of the Group's total purchases
for the year ended 31 March 2019.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest major customers
and suppliers during the year ended 31 March 2019.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in the note 27 to the financial statements,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 March 2019.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-Laws and the laws in Bermuda.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed, no contract concerning the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group was entered into or existed during the
year ended 31 March 2019.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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MATERIAL LITIGATION

None of the members of the Group was engaged in any
litigation, arbitration or claim of material importance and no
litigation, arbitration or claim of material importance was
known to the directors to be pending or threatened by or
against any member of the Group during the year ended 31
March 2019 and as at the date of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors as at
the date of this annual report, there is sufficient public float
of more than 25% of the Company’s shares in the market as
required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wu Yijian
Executive Director
Hong Kong, 28 June 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance practices and business ethics in the firm
belief that they are essential for maintaining and promoting
investors’ confidence and maximizing shareholders’ returns.

The Board perpetually reviews its corporate governance
practices, risk management and internal control policy and
procedures from time to time in order to meet the rising
expectations of stakeholders and comply with increasingly
stringent regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its commitment
to excellence in corporate governance.

The Board considers that the Company has complied
throughout the year ended 31 March 2019 with the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules except for certain deviations. The corporate
governance of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2019 is stated as follows:

CG Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. None of the existing Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific term.
However, all the directors (Executive, Non-executive and
Independent Non-executive) are subject to retirement at least
once every three years under Bye-Law 87(1) of the Bye-Laws of
the Company. As such, the Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s
corporate governance practices are no less exacting than those
in the CG Code.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors a written confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company thus
considers all the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent for the year ended 31 March 2019.

CG Code Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of
the board should attend the annual general meeting. He
should also invite the chairmen of the audit, remuneration
and nomination committees to attend. The chairman of the
Board and the chairmen of the audit committee and the
remuneration committee were not able to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 18 September
2018 due to other important business engagement. They had
delegated the Chief Executive Officer to chair and be available
to answer questions at the annual general meeting.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018/19
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CG Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should
attend general meetings. During the year ended 31 March
2019, not all Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-
executive Directors were able to attend the general meeting of
the Company due to their other business commitments.

In compliance with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
independent non-executive directors represent at least one
third of the members of the board. However, following
the resignation of Ms. Sun Zhili as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 19 October 2018, the
number of independent non-executive directors fell below the
requirement of Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. Subsequent to
the resignation of Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John (“Mr. Kam”) as an
executive director and chief executive officer of the Company
on 31 October 2018, the composition of the Board comprises
three executive directors, three non-executive directors and
three independent non-executive directors. In this regard, the
number of independent non-executive directors represents one
third of the members of the Board and the Company meets
the requirement set out in Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

Following the resignation of Ms. Sun Zhili as an independent
non-executive director of the Company, the chairman of
the audit committee, a member of each of the nomination
committee and the remuneration committee of the Company
on 19 October 2018, the audit committee of the Company
does not comprise a majority of independent non-executive
directors and the chairman of the audit committee is vacated.
Accordingly, the Company is not in compliance with Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules. Subsequent to the resignation of
Mr. Cao Yonggang as a member of the audit committee on
16 January 2019 and the appointment of Mr. Tsang Kwok
Wai as the chairman of the audit committee on 16 January
2019, the composition of the audit committee comprises one
non-executive director and two independent non-executive
directors. In this regard, the Company meets the requirement
set out in Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
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CG Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive
should be clearly established and set out in writing. As stated
in the announcement of the Company dated 31 October
2018, Mr. Kam, former executive director and chief executive
officer of the Company, tendered his resignation with effect
from 31 October 2018 and the Company has been searching
for a suitable candidate to assume the vacancy followed by
Mr. Kam'’s resignation. Accordingly, the role and duty of the
chief executive officer of the Company has been assumed
by Mr. Wu Yijian, chairman of the Board, Mr. Chan Wai
Kwong, Peter, vice-chairman of the Board and Mr. Sha Yingjie,
executive director of the Company. The Company is currently
endeavouring to identify a suitable and qualified candidate
to the position of chief executive officer of the Company in
order to comply with CG Code Provision A.2.1 as soon as
practicable, and will make further announcements as and
when appropriate.

CG Code Provision D.1.4 stipulates that directors should clearly
understand delegation arrangements in place. Issuers should
have formal letters of appointment for directors setting out
the key terms and conditions of their appointment. However,
the Company does not have formal letters of appointment for
the Directors except for Mr. Wu Yijian, an executive Director.
In addition, the service agreement entered into between
the Company and Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter, an executive
Director, expired on 6 August 2018 and has not been renewed.
Notwithstanding the above, every Director is subject to
retirement at least once every three years under Bye-Law 87(1)
of the Bye-Laws of the Company. The Board will nevertheless
continuously review the need to having formal letters of
appointment and service agreement for the Directors.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all the directors, all the directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2019.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

As at 31 March 2019 and the date of this annual report, the
Board is comprised of three Executive Directors, three Non-
Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors.

The followings are the members of the Board:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Yijian (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 31 October 2018)

Mr. Sha Yingjie

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Shuai (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Cao Yonggang

Mr. Qu Jiaqi

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng
Ms. Sun Zhili
(resigned on 19 October 2018)
Dr. Cao Guoqi

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to
the affairs of the Group. Each Executive Director is suitably
qualified for his position, and has sufficient experience to
hold the position so as to carry out his duties effectively and
efficiently. Biographical information of the Directors are set out
in the section headed “Biographies of Directors” of this annual
report.
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OPERATIONS OF THE BOARD

The Board determines the corporate mission and broad
strategies, monitors and controls operating and financial
performance and sets appropriate policies to manage risks
in pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. According to
CG Code Provision A.1.1, the Board should meet regularly
and Board meetings should be held at least four times a year
at approximate intervals. During the year ended 31 March
2019, the Board met regularly and frequently for the review
and approval on the business of department stores, shopping
mall and supermarkets. Details of Directors’ attendance of the
Board and the shareholders’ meetings held for the year ended

31 March 2019 are set out as follows:

Name of Director
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Executive Directors
HITEF
Mr. Wu Yijian
R-BEHE
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter
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Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John (resigned on 31 October 2018)
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Mr. Sha Yingjie
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Non-Executive Directors
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Mr. Chen Shuai
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Mr. Cao Yonggang
RS
Mr. Qu Jiaqgi
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
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Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai
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Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng
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Ms. Sun Zhili (resigned on 19 October 2018)
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Dr. Cao Guoqi
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All Directors are provided with relevant materials relating to
the matters brought before the meetings. They have separate
and independent access to the senior management and the
company secretary of the Company at all times and may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.
When queries are raised by Directors, steps would be taken
to respond as promptly and as fully as possible. All Directors
have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda of
Board meetings. Notices of at least 14 days of Board meetings
are given to the Directors and Board procedures comply with
the Bye-Laws of the Company, as well as relevant rules and
regulations.

FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD

The overall management of the Company’s operation is vested
in the Board. The Board carries out its functions according to
the powers conferred upon it by the Bye-Laws of the Company
which is uploaded onto the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company, and since the date of uploading, no
significant changes have been made.

The main functions and duties conferred on the Board include:

- management of the overall business and strategic
development;

- deciding business plans and investment plans;

— convening general meetings and reporting to the
shareholders; and

—  exercising other powers, functions and duties conferred
by shareholders in general meetings.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer
and the senior management of the Company. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approvals
must be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the aforesaid officers.

The Directors may have access to the advice and services of
the company secretary of the Company to ensure that the
board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations,
are followed. In addition, the Directors may, upon reasonable
request, seek independent professional advice under
appropriate circumstance at the Company's expenses.
The Board shall resolve to provide separate, appropriate,
independent and professional advice to the Directors to assist
the relevant Directors in discharging their duties.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant
role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment to
the Board meeting and scrutinizing the Group’s performance.
Their views carry significant weight in the Board'’s decision; in
particular, they bring an impartial view to issues relating to the
Group's strategy, performance and control. All independent
non-executive Directors possess extensive academic,
professional and industry expertise and management
experience and have provided their professional advice to
the Board. The independent non-executive Directors provide
independent advice on the Group’s business strategy, results
and management to ensure that all interests of shareholders
are taken into account, and the interests of the Company and
its shareholders are protected.

The Board has three independent non-executive Directors,
in compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, which
requires that every board of directors of a listed issuer must
include at least three independent non-executive directors.
In addition, at least one independent non-executive Director,
namely, Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai, possesses appropriate
professional accounting qualifications or financial management
expertise in accordance with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
The Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, representing one-third of the Board, in compliance
with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from each of the existing independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmations, the
Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent and that they have met the specific
independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing in preparation
of accounts for each financial period with a view to ensuring
such accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cashflow for that period.
The Company’s accounts are prepared in accordance with all
relevant statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently; and that judgments and estimates made are
prudent and reasonable.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018/19
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PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director will be given an induction
training so as to ensure that he has appropriate understanding
of the Group’s business and of his duties and responsibilities
under the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory and
regulatory requirements.

The Company also provides regular updates on the business
development of the Group. The Directors are regularly briefed
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance
and upkeep of good corporate governance practices. In
addition, the Company has been encouraging the Directors
to enrol in professional development courses and seminars
relating to the Listing Rules, companies ordinance and
corporate governance practices organized by professional
bodies or chambers in Hong Kong. All Directors are requested
to provide the Company with their respective training records
pursuant to the CG Code.

All Directors have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development and refresh their knowledge and
skills during the year ended 31 March 2019 for ensuring their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. Such
professional development was completed by way of attending
briefings, conference, courses, forum and seminars, teaching,
self-reading and participating in business-related researches
which are relevant to the business or directors’ duties.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
separate and are not performed by the same individual as this
ensures better checks and balances and hence better corporate
governance.

The Chairman’s responsibility is to oversee the functioning of
the Board and the strategies and policies of the Group.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for monitoring the
daily operation and management of the Company.
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TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of the Non-executive Directors (including the
Independent Non-executive Directors) has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term
of three years commencing from the Listing Date, renewable
automatically by three years on the expiry of such term and
every successive period of three years thereafter, subject to
the relevant provisions under the Company’s amended and
restated Bye-Laws requiring no less than one-third of all the
Directors (i.e. both Executive and Non-executive Directors
are included) to retire from office by rotation at each annual
general meeting of the Company, provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers.

APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Yijian, Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter and Mr. Kam
Hou Yin, John have entered into service contracts with the
Company for a specific term, and all the Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years in accordance with the
Bye-Laws of the Company.

The Bye-Laws of the Company provide that any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board
shall hold office until the first annual general meeting of the
Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting, and any Director appointed by the Board as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established (i) Audit Committee, (ii)
Remuneration Committee and (iii) Nomination Committee
with defined terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
board committees, which explain their respective roles and the
authorities delegated to them by the Board, are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able
to seek independent professional advice and other assistance
under appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established by the Company, with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements
set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee shall consist of not less than 3 members.
Currently, the Audit Committee consists of two Independent
Non-executive Directors: Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai and Mr. Ruan
Xiaofeng, and one Non-executive Director, Mr. Chen Shuai. Mr.
Tsang Kwok Wai is the chairman of Audit Committee.

The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to review
the financial reporting process of the Group and its risk
management and internal control system, oversee the audit
process and perform other duties assigned by the Board and
make recommendations for the Company to improve the
quality of financial information to be disclosed. It also reviews
the annual and interim reports of the Company prior to their
approval by the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Audit Committee
reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, and recommended the appointment of the external
auditor. Also, the Audit Committee together with management
and independent auditors have reviewed the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, and discussed
auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
including the review of the audited results for the year ended
31 March 2019 and the unaudited interim results for the six
months ended 30 September 2018 prior to their approval by
the Board.
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During the year ended 31 March 2019, two meetings were
held by the Audit Committee. The attendance record of each
member of the Audit Committee at the meetings of the Audit
Committee is set out below:

HE-_Z-—hWhF=ZA=+—HALFE &
REBERITTMAER EXEZESSR
REREZEZE SR LF LI
T

Attendance/
Number of
Audit
Committee
Name of Director meetings
HE/ B
ZE®
ESfnE BEHE
Ms. Sun Zhili (resigned on 19 October 2018) 12
BB (RZZT—-N\ET+AT+LBET)
Mr. Chen Shuai 2/2
BRED %4
Mr. Cao Yonggang (resigned as a member of the audit committee on 16 January 2019) 0/2
BEXAAEE (RZE-NF-A+HEBEEIEREZEGNKE)
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai 2/2
LEIR KL
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng 2/2
=13

There had been no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee during the year ended 31 March 2019.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee shall consist of not less than
two members. Currently, the Remuneration Committee
consists of two Independent Non-executive Directors: Mr. Ruan
Xiaofeng and Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai and one Non-executive
Director: Mr. Chen Shuai. Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duty of the Remuneration Committee is to
formulate the remuneration structure and policy of the Group,
to review the remuneration packages of Executive Directors
and senior management, including bonuses and share options
granted under the Share Option Scheme, to ensure that such
remuneration is reasonable and not excessive. Generally, their
remunerations are determined based on their experience and
qualifications, the Group’s performance as well as market
conditions.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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TRERMSE

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Remuneration HE_Z—NEF=-A=+—HILFE %
Committee had reviewed the Group’s remuneration policy and MEZESeEBEMAEEOFHME R LEFH
reviewed the remuneration package of the Executive Directors HE_-_Z—hE=HF=+— E JJ:EF%%M?
and senior management for the year ended 31 March 2019. EERARERENTNG

During the year ended 31 March 2019, one meeting was held HE-_ZT—NF=A=+—BHItFE"
by the Remuneration Committee. The attendance record of FZEE@RITT —ReH -FTMEESE
each member of the Remuneration Committee at the meeting KERTMEE e R B ekEy

of the Remuneration Committee is set out below: T

Attendance/

Number of

Remuneration

Committee

Name of Director meeting

HE M

ZEg

ExEps ER¥A

Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng 171
BB i 5% 4

Mr. Chen Shuai 171

PR B 4 A

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai 1/1
BlEEE

Ms. Sun Zhili (resigned on 19 October 2018) 11

b -

RSB EERERAT 5 5
BN -NEER

”



_——y
56

Corporate Governance Report
TERERBERE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.

Currently, the Nomination Committee consists of two Non-
executive Directors: Mr. Chen Shuai and Mr. Cao Yonggang
and three Independent Non-executive Directors: Mr. Tsang
Kwok Wai, Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng and Dr. Cao Guogi. Mr. Tsang
Kwok Wai is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board at least
once a year and to identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships. In identifying suitable director candidates and
making such recommendations to the Board, the Nomination
Committee would also take into account various aspects
of a candidate, including but not limited to his education
background, professional experience, experience with the
relevant industry and past directorships.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Nomination
Committee has reviewed the board's structure, size and
composition to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills,
independence and experience appropriate to the requirements
of the business of the Company and reviewed the annual
confirmation of independence submitted by Independent Non-
executive Directors and assessed their independence. Also,
the Nomination Committee will also give consideration to
the Board Diversity Policy when identifying suitably qualified
candidates to become members of the Board, and the Board
will review the Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis to
ensure its effectiveness.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018/19
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During the year ended 31 March 2019, two meetings were
held by the Nomination Committee. The attendance record of
each member of the Nomination Committee at the meeting of
the Nomination Committee is set out below:

TRERMSE

RE-T—NEZA=+—ALLFE &
BREEGRITTRMAER -IERZEEXR
RERRREZEGEZN N F sk N
T

Attendance/
Number of
Nomination
Committee
Name of Director meeting
HE/RE
ZE8
Espns =f1
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai 2/2
BEfE LT
Mr. Chen Shuai 2/2
PRED S &
Mr. Cao Yonggang 172
EoKM L
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng 2/2
Bribzlé 5t 4
Ms. Sun Zhili (resigned on 19 October 2018) 172
BEBZLT (RZZ—N\FT+A+NBET)
Dr. Cao Guogqi 2/2
EEEE L

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company has re-appointed KPMG as its external auditor
during the year ended 31 March 2019. The external auditor
is refrained from engaging in non-audit services except for
specific approved items, such as review of interim results of
the Group. The Audit Committee reviews the external auditor’s
statutory audit scope and non-audit services and approves its
fees. A remuneration of RMB4,000,000 was paid/payable to
KPMG for the provision of annual audit and review of interim
results services in the year ended 31 March 2019.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board, supported by the chief financial officer and the
finance department, is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company and the Group for each
financial year which shall give a true and fair view of the
financial position, performance and cash flow of the Company
and its subsidiaries for that period. The directors acknowledge
their responsibilities for preparing the accounts of the
Company. As at 31 March 2019, the Board is not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern.

The responsibilities of KPMG, the Company's external auditor,
in relation to the financial statements are set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Kee Wai has been informed of the requirement of
the Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, and he confirmed that he
had attained no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year ended 31 March 2019.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound
and effective risk management and internal control systems
of the Group. During the year ended 31 March 2019, the
Group has complied with Principle C.2 of the CG Code by
establishing appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems. Management is responsible for the
design, implementation and monitoring of such systems, while
the Board oversees management in performing its duties on
an ongoing basis. Main features of the risk management and
internal control systems are described in the sections below:

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages
the risk associated with its business and operations. The system
comprises the following phases:

(i) Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the
achievement of objectives;

Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks
and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly;
and

(ii) Evaluation:

(iii) Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure
effective communication to the Board and
on-going monitor the residual risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted during the year
ended 31 March 2019, no significant risk was identified.

Internal Control System

The Group has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (“COSO") 2013 framework. The
framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The components of the framework are shown as follows:

A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for
carrying out internal control across
the Group;

(i) Control Environment:

A dynamic and iterative process
for identifying and analyzing risks
to achieve the Group’s objectives,
forming a basis for determining
how risks should be managed,

(ii) Risk Assessment:

Action established by policies
and procedures to help ensure
that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement
of objectives are carried out;

(iii) Control Activities:
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(iv) Information and

Internal and external communication

Ny
60

(v) Monitoring:

to provide the Group with the
information needed to carry out day-
to-day controls; and

Communication:

Ongoing and separate evaluations
to ascertain whether each component
of internal control is present and
functioning.

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy,
completeness and timeliness of its public disclosures, the
Group also adopts and implements inside information policy
and procedures. Certain reasonable measures have been taken
from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to
prevent a breach of disclosure requirements in relation to the
Group, which include:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The access of information is restricted to a limited
number of employees on a need-to-know basis.
Employees who are in possession of inside information
are fully conversant with their obligations to preserve
confidentiality;

Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group
enters into significant negotiations; and

The Executive Directors are designated persons who
speak on behalf of the Company when communicating
with external parties such as the media, analysts or
investors.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted during the
year ended 31 March 2019, no significant control deficiency
was identified.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Internal Audit

The Group has engaged an external professional (the “Internal
Control Consultant”) to carry out the Internal Audit (“IA")
functions of the Group. The IA function is independent of
the Group’s daily operation and carries out appraisal of the
risk management and internal control systems by conducting
interviews, walkthroughs and tests of operating effectiveness.

An IA plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal
control systems is conducted semi-annually and the results are
reported to the Board via Audit Committee afterwards.

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and ensuring review of the
effectiveness of these systems has been conducted semi-
annually. Several areas have been considered during the
Board’s reviews, which include but are not limited to (i) the
changes in the nature and extent of significant risks since the
last semi-annual review, and the Group’s ability to respond to
changes in its business and the external environment, and (ii)
the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of
risks and of the internal control systems.

The Board, through its reviews and the reviews made by
IA functions and Audit Committee, concluded that the risk
management and internal control systems were effective
and adequate. Such systems, however, are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. It
is also considered that the resources, staff qualifications and
experience of relevant staff were adequate and the training
programs and budget provided were sufficient.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING AND TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company, any one or
more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company by mail at Unit 301, 3/F, OfficePlus@Wan Chai, 303
Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition, and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

PROCEDURES BY WHICH ENQUIRIES MAY BE PUT TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the company secretary of the
Company by mail at Unit 301, 3/F, OfficePlus@Wan Chai, 303
Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The company secretary
of the Company is responsible for forwarding communications
relating to matters within the Board’s direct responsibilities to
the Board and communications relating to ordinary business
matters, such as suggestions and inquiries, to the Executive
Director of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There has been no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year ended 31 March
2019.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018/19

\\

R R AE A

BRRAMBRREIAERRRRAE L
REBRNERF

BEARRZ A MAARE  Ef—hrsk
NEREZZERKABRBEETNDRARRE
BRA (BERARRIBREREAS FIRERE)
+ 5 — B BR S RME A B R 5 M LATB (4R 5 =X
BAAFEEFSH AN IMERHEREKX
(B it B E B BT B BT E3035R K
ITETHRL3EI0ME)  ERELTSEHARK
RERARE UEEEBEERFEANE
MEIE: BZASERNEZZZKEME
ARET-MES2%B_-_+—BR BFEX
BARAZAT AIREERALATEEN
EHEARNEHGHE MEEERKALEE
EeREEAACMABEENABERY
JERADNAMEEERALIERER-

MESSRHBANERF

PR AT AR A 05 A AR R R B & 3%
HEHEZENHEANRBIER B5iH
HE B BB FEFFE3035 WA 1T /&
D3I E - ARAMNARIMER B R H
EECEEZMAERENFTEEEES S
MKEBEEXEHNEE (NEELHEH)
HEARBNTES

REEBE

BEXH
REZE-_T-NF=A=t+-ALLFE"
ARRIMBEEXFLEE AL



Corporate Governance Report

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of effective
communication with the shareholders of the Company.
The Company has established a number of communication
channels to maintain an ongoing dialogue with its
shareholders and to enhance the transparency of the Group.
These include (i) holding annual and special general meetings
to provide a forum for shareholders to communicate directly
with the Board and the Board committees; (ii) distributing
corporate documents and releasing announcements to
disseminate the Group's latest information to the shareholders;
and (iii) maintaining the Company’s website to provide an
electronic means of communication with the shareholders and
the public.

Shareholders and other interested parties are welcome to
access the Group's information from the Company’s website
at www.cgrh.com.hk. The Group’'s corporate information
including terms of reference of the Board committees, the
Group’s financial reports, announcements and circulars are
available on the website. In order to enhance shareholders’
understanding of the Group’s business performance and
development, the Company will continue to improve its
corporate disclosure on the Company’s website and the
communication with its shareholders.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Century Ginwa
Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is pleased
to present this Environmental, Social and Governance
(hereinafter called "ESG"”) Report (the “Report”)
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively as
the “Group” or “we"”). This ESG Report summarizes
the policies, sustainability strategies, management
approach, initiatives and performance made by the
Group in the environmental and social aspects of its
business.

The ESG Report covers the Group’s business in operating
department stores, shopping mall and supermarkets in
the Mainland China for the year ended 31 March 2019.
The Report discloses the required information under the
“comply or explain” provisions of the ESG Reporting
Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules. The
relevant provisions and details are listed out at the end
of the Report.

The Board is responsible for the Group’s ESG strategy
formulation and reporting, evaluating and determining
the Group’'s ESG-related risks, and ensuring that
appropriate and effective ESG risk management
measures and internal control systems are in place. In
order to determine the ESG reporting scopes, the key
management personnel has discussed internally and
identified the environmental, social and operating items;
and assessed their importance to the stakeholders and
the Group. The summary of material ESG items are
listed out in this report.
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STAKEHOLDERS' ENGAGEMENT

The Group is committed to maintaining the sustainable
development of its business and the environmental
protection of the communities in which it operates.
We maintain a close tie with its stakeholders, including
government/regulatory organizations, shareholders/
investors, employees, customers, suppliers, community,
etc. and strives to balance their opinions and interests
through constructive communications in order to
determine the directions of its sustainable development.
We assess and determine our environmental, social
and governance risks, and ensure that the relevant risk
management measures and internal control systems
are operating effectively. The following table shows the
management response to the stakeholders’ expectations
and concerns:

Expectations and

RR #HERERBRE

- K ESHE

AEERNBFEBOAFER
B U RRERREHAENLER
B8 o PP ERERAT, AR K
R/KREE- BT -BP #tER:
HEEFHERTEIBE - HRE
BRSO B R R 5 - #Eim
HEE R MO AIR B R T M - F AT
EMEBERR e LERRER
TR AR R L B i 3 % PR R R 16 1 R %
ERERMET BRFNENRE
BB EE IR AR R [ e
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Stakeholders concerns Management response
BFHE HEERER EEEEE
Government/ > Compliance > Uphold integrity and compliance in operations
regulatory in laws and > Pay tax on time, and in return contributing to
organizations regulations the society
> Fulfill tax > Establish comprehensive and effective internal
obligation control system
> Cooperation > Respond to government’s policies and to build
a harmonious society together
BT,/ > BTIRBIER > REBERRFTEHERER
EEAM > BITHRBELE > RS IA RGBT &
> BEHR > 7 A EA R A B B8 R
> CEBRFRRARBEZNGFELS
Shareholders/ > Return on > Management possesses relevant experience
investors investment and professional knowledge in business
> Information sustainability
transparency > Ensure transparent and effective
> Corporate communications by dispatching information on
governance the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
system Company
> Set up an investor hotline to maintain close and
effective communication with the market and
investors
> Continue to improve the internal control system
and risk management
M, > & & B3] > EIREAAMEBERMERAN  BERESOA
KREE > VNl REE
> TRERRS > FBHP AP R AR R B8 T R AR IR
FRERERER
> REREERRRFEMSLIREERERE
BB
> BHE SR EE N AR E R
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RE HERE

=

Expectations and

Stakeholders concerns Management response
BFHE HEEER EEEEE
Employees > Labor rights > Set up contractual obligations to protect labor
> Career rights
development > Encourage employees to participate in
> Compensation continuous education and professional trainings
and welfare > Establish a fair, reasonable and competitive
> Health and remuneration scheme
workplace safety > Pay attention to occupational health and safety
> Care for > Organize leisure activities to enhance cohesion
employees
8T > BT fEa > HIEENBETUNRES TR
> EXER > SEE I 20BEHEREXEIINIRSED
> SRR > BUAT SBEMABRFNNTHER
> EENZ R > TEBRERLZ S
> BAiEET > BB T/EF AL R RN
Customers > Integrity and > Ensure proper contractual obligations are in
contractual place
obligation > Continuously introduce quality brands and
> High quality enhance service quality to satisfy customers
products > Establish communication channels through
> Intimate service interviews, phone surveys, hotline and
and experience complaint mailboxes
> Privacy protection » Organize customer satisfaction survey to
improve service quality
> Develop a comprehensive members’ information
confidentiality mechanism and carry out regular
information system maintenance
®F > WS K > BRETENEL
> = o & B o > HESINBEmREEARBEZAMEES
> AL RSB R > BIBEA  BREE  RERRERNLRFER
> RAETLIE ERITRIFRBRES
> ETEPMEEAT TIEURERBE X
> HETHN S8 ERREES & TREEES

-
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Expectations and

RR #HERERBRE

Stakeholders concerns Management response
BOE HEEER EEELOE
Suppliers > Stable demand > Ensure proper contractual obligations are in
> Fair and open place
tender > Establish policy and procedures in supply chain
> Corporate management
reputation > Establish and maintain strong and long-term
relationship with suppliers
> Strengthen the tendering management system
continuously and select suppliers with due care
e > wHRIBE > HRETEOEME
> NERAFEBER > il 7E e g IR A ISR AN AR
> rEEE > REFANERANSERR
> FENMNGRBIRE IR HIE B2 MR
Community > Environmental > Pay attention to climate change
protection > Encourage employees to actively participate in
» Community charitable activities and voluntary services
contribution > Maintain good and stable financial performance
> Economic and business growth
development > Respond to government’s appeal of anti-
corruption
o > RERE > BrmIEE
> ftlm 2 > HEE IRG2HEASEHNEMRE
> BB R > HRR IO EEENEBIER
> LRERBATEH KEARERE

MATERIALITY MATRIX

During the reporting period, the Group has evaluated a
number of environmental, social and operating items,
and assessed their importance to stakeholders and the
Group through various channels. This assessment helps
to ensure that the Group’s business objectives and
development direction are in line with the stakeholders’
expectations and requirements. The Group’'s and
stakeholders’ matters of concern are presented in the
following materiality matrix:

——

EERMER

RBEHN AEESREZERE
R e k2 BRBENEE WA
BIRREFEFNELLAKTEE
FEHAMEREE  HEFEBHA
SEEREKERENARNEDN
HI BB - T AR B MK D& FTfd
ODHERHPEHRNUTHEEMERE
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RR - #HERERBRE

Materiality Matrix

EEMERE
* Anti- * Talent management > Customers’
discrimination * Staff training and satisfaction
2 Labor rights promotion > Product and service
- protection * Staff compensation quality
o I and welfare > Anti-corruption
T e RER ¢ ATER > EEREE
. RIE45 T * B T B & > FmiE R FE &
. B TR EatEF > RE&ES
< Greenhouse gas > Operational
emissions compliance
<> Energy consumption > Customers’ privacy
L 2 Occupational health measures and
g £ and safety protection
S 25 > Community > Suppliers
2 # ibution management
< p % Fontn_ \ man g
= ¢ CBEREHR > EEAR
g & BEIRfE A > REZFLE
EM 4 BERERETD > HER B IR
EE >  wgsE
£ W
S L 2 Preventive < Water resources
£ measures for child utilization
and forced labor
< Exhaust air
emission
<> Sewage discharge
<> Generation of
% L= non-hazardous
- wastes
. el E T R | ¢ KEREA
BT et
& & SREBERR
& &K BE R
$ BEEZEMHN
Low Medium High
(3 H =
Importance to the Group
HEASEENEEM
<> Environmental * Employee > Operation
$ RIRAME 24 BTHME > EENE
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group always paid great attention to energy
conservation, emission reduction and environmental
protection, we adheres to the management philosophy
of sustainable development to achieve green operation
and balanced development; in response to the global
environmental protection trends, we implement energy
conservation and environmental protection measures
to mitigate the environmental risks and negative
impacts from the Group’s business activities. The ESG
Committee plays a critical decision-making role on
various measures, including environmental protection,
customers’ service, supply chain, employees’ and
investors’ concerns, and gradually enhances the Group’s
sustainability performance. We analyze and compare the
collected environmental performance data since 2015
to identify effective energy reduction measures. Besides,
we strictly adhere to the applicable environmental
laws and regulations and support the government in
various actions to protect the environment, and hopes
to fulfill the expectations and concerns of both the
Group and its stakeholders in business development and
environmental protection.

During the reporting period, the Group held a one-
month energy saving campaign in respond to the
government’s activity notice relating to the “2018
National Energy Conservation Publicity Week” and
the “National Low Carbon Day”. Our themes for the
activities were “Energy Conservation, Safeguarding the
Blue Sky” and “Improving Climate Change Awareness,
Strengthening the Actions of Low-Carbon” respectively.
The purpose of which is to promote environmental
protection, and to call for reducing pollution to
the environment through organizing a variety of
environmental activities. We have drawn the attentions
and supports from the community, as to make the
environmental protection more meaningful and
powerful journey.
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Management of Emissions

The Group always strictly complied with the
“Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Environmental Protection”, “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Energy Conservation”
and the applicable laws and regulations of the
provincial and municipal bureau in ecology and
environment. We integrate green operation
into our development strategies to monitor and
manage various environmental factors and their
impacts on the environment, with an aim to build
a strong environmental management system.

The Group’s economic and trading business does
not involve any production activities, and its
environmental impacts mainly comes from use
of natural resources, generation of solid waste
(Please refer to the “Management of Disposal
of Solid Waste” section below for details) and
discharge of domestic wastewater from office,
shopping mall and supermarket operations, and
never produced any solid or liquid hazardous
wastes. The use of natural resources (including
gasoline, natural gas and electricity) will produce
air pollutants and greenhouse gases (Please refer
to the “Management of Resource Utilization”
section below for details); and domestic
wastewater is discharged to the local wastewater
treatment plant through the urban wastewater
pipeline.

Management of Disposal of Solid Waste

The solid waste generated by the Group can
be divided into two types: recyclable and non-
recyclable, which mainly includes the product
packaging materials (such as plastic bags,
wrapping paper, carton box), slow-moving goods,
kitchen waste, construction and engineering
waste and domestic garbage. In order to reduce
waste production and the negative impacts on
the environment, we encourage the shops to
use bio-degradable plastic bags and packaging
paper, and strictly implement the plastic bag levy
system; we donate slow-moving consumable
goods to the people in need; encourage
employees to take food at right portions and
reduce food waste; post environmental slogans
in the malls and organize environmental activities
to enhance the public awareness saving the
environment.
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To strengthen the management of waste
disposal, we place waste separation bins for
recyclable waste and non-recyclable garbage in
the shopping malls, and recycled by qualified
recyclers and the local government sanitation
department respectively; so as to improve
the recycling rate of reusable waste. For the
wastes generated from equipment repairs and
maintenance inside the shopping malls and
supermarkets, and the construction wastes
generated by the shops when they move in or
carry out renovation, we follow the local city
management requirements to arrange collection
of wastes by construction companies or the
local government sanitation department and
illegal dumping of waste is forbidden. The
Group started collecting data on domestic waste
and domestic wastewater generated by the
shopping malls and offices in order to enhance
the environmental management system, and, to
establish the environmental protection policies
and measures that suits the Group’s operating
environment. During the reporting period, the
decrease in the area of shop decoration and
repairs led to reduction of construction and
engineering wastes generated by the Group by
approximately 12.29% as compared with last
year, and the weight of such wastes produced
during the year was about 2,648.40 tonnes.

Compliance

During the reporting period, the Group strictly
abides by the environmental laws and regulations
of the State and local ecology and environmental
bureaus, and there was no any confirmed
violations or non-compliance incident relating to
emissions that had a significant impact on the
Group.
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Management of Resources Utilization

Use of resources not only increased the operating
costs, but also has impact on the environment. In
order to build a conservation-oriented enterprise,
we started monitoring and managing the Group’s
ESG data since 2016 to correct our wasteful
behavior in daily work and living; and to create
energy saving and consumption reduction
workplace and propaganda atmosphere, to
further promote the work on energy conservation
and consumption reduction with an aim to
reduce the corporate costs and to achieve
effective use of resources, and at the same
time, to establish an efficient energy saving and
emission reduction policy, and to minimize the
Group’s adverse impacts on the environment.

The Group strictly complied with the
“Regulations on Energy Conservation in
Shaanxi Province”, the “Regulations on
Energy Conservation in Public Authority”
and the applicable energy-saving policies and
requirements of each city. We established an
energy-saving project management team to carry
out the energy-saving and emission-reduction
projects on shopping centers; continuously
enhancing the projects by adopting various
measures to conform with our objectives of
energy conservation and emission reduction. Our
projects commenced during the reporting period
is described in detail below.
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Management of Diesel, Gasoline and
Natural Gas Consumption

Diesel and gasoline fuel-based vehicles are
mainly used for guests pick-up and materials
transportation. In order to minimize the
production of waste gases and greenhouse
gases such as nitrogen oxides, sulfur oxides and
particulate matter generated from burning diesel
and gasoline, we have regulated our employees
on the usage of vehicles, for example, drivers
must plan the routes before using the vehicle
and use the shortest route and the fastest way
to reach to the destination, require the driver
to stop the engine to prevent engines idling;
conduct regular repairs and maintenance for
better energy use efficiency and to reduce fuel
consumption and waste gas emissions due to
part failure. The Group responded positively to
the Shaanxi Provincial People’s Government’s
“Three-Year Action Plan for the Winning of the
Blue Sky Defence War in Shaanxi Province” and
adopted different measures to further reduce the
negative impacts on the environment, such as
selling some vehicles and encouraging employees
to use public transportations; employees and
customers are advised to use telephone and video
conferences to reduce use of vehicles, thereby
reducing emissions and greenhouse gases. We
promote the concept of “Living Green” and
motivate more people to build an ecological
civilization together. During the reporting period,
the Group’s business consumed approximately
16.75 tonnes of diesel and gasoline, and the
fuel consumptions increased by approximately
0.12 tonnes or 0.72% from the previous year.
We started to phase out diesel vehicles since July
2018 and sold 5 vehicles accordingly. We hope
that the measures will further reduce our impacts
on the environment.
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Natural gas is mainly used in heating equipment
at some of the shopping malls and offices and
staff canteen cooking utensils. We stipulate that
the temperature setting of heating equipment

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HLERER

ARARETZANEDPIE R
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should not be higher than 20 °C; the kitchen 200 C R ERRE %%E
staff should prepare food according to actual EERY RIOAEEBRBZ

needs, and reduce waste of natural gas due to
excessive food prepared. During the reporting
period, the Group’s business consumed
approximately 52,093.00 cubic meters of natural
gas. As the weather of where our shopping malls
and offices located was colder than last year,
more natural gas was consumed for heating
purposes. Therefore, the amount of natural gas
used increased by approximately 10,922.00 cubic
meters or 26.53% from the previous year.

The Scope 1 of greenhouse gas emissions

RYMHEEBENKAZR-
RIEHR - AEBEMEBHE
SERE R PR #952,093.0032 75
Ko BHRPYE R A TR
MAEEBLTFEESR @ﬁﬁ
AAREHBERAENRKEE
% FARRKARFERER EF
B FFH#910,922.0057 77 K 5%
26.53% °

AEERBRERANAEEE

generated by the Group during the reporting A& B R RARMESE
period due to the direct use of diesel, gasoline MEE—rREREHEMSE
and natural gas are as follows: IR
(Restated)?
2018/19 201718
(&7])?
2018/19F 2017185 &
C02 equivalent C02 equivalent
emissions emissions
Consumption (Tonnes) Consumption (Tonnes)
bR (44 —&fbix
ERE EEHRE (W) EHE EEHNE (H)
Direct use of energy:
ERGERER:
Diesel 11.05 Tonnes 1§ 35.22  11.48 Tonnes 36.62
%m
Gasoline 5.70 Tonnes M 17.69 5.14 Tonnes M 15.96
i
Natural Gas 52,093.00 m? 95.41 71.00 m? 75.40
RAR YRR MK
Greenhouse Gas Emission 148.32 127.98
BERBHMAE
Greenhouse Gas Emission Intensity ' 0.66 0.57
BEREBHHETE
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Notes:

1 The Group's greenhouse gas emission intensity
is calculated based on 0.001 square meters
(m?) of the floor area of the shopping malls
and offices. During the reporting period, there
were no expansions in the shopping malls,
supermarkets and offices nor relocation or
demolition project related to the business.

2 Part of the data for the previous year needs to
be restated for comparison purposes.

Management of Electricity Consumption

Based on the nature of our business, the Group
has high demand on electricity. In order to
effectively carry out the energy conservation and
emission reduction works and make full use of
electricity, we strengthen the management of
electricity use in various aspects. The renovation
of newly opened and upgraded Brands must
comply with our “Property Management
Manual” to set up electrical equipment and
facilities. For example, LED energy-saving lighting
must be installed and to phase out the traditional
high-energy lighting. Our Engineering Material
Protection Center conducts detailed inspection
and acceptance procedures on different aspects,
such as industrial art, fire prevention, safety,
design, resources and energy consumption when
the renovation is completed. These measures can
effectively control the energy consumption of the
brands.
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The Group and its employees participate in
energy conservation and emission reduction
activities and hope that everyone can build up
good habit and raise the awareness on energy
conservation and consumption reduction in
work and daily life in order to save energy
and to reduce power consumption. We post
different energy-saving promotional slogans in
the office; increase the natural lighting capacity
of the office; encourage employees to change
their habit in use of electrical appliances by
turning off the lights and electrical appliances
when they are at lunch break and after work
(such as computers, printers, projectors, air
conditioners), the computer and the printer are
set to the automatically sleep mode. Restricted
use of air conditioners according to seasonal and
temperature changes, the temperature setting
of the air conditioner in summer and winter
cannot be lower than 26°C and not higher than
20°C respectively, air conditioner should be
turned off 15 minutes before the end of office
hours; doors and windows must be closed when
air conditioners are turned on, and use natural
ventilation whenever possible. Besides, we
educate our employees on the topic of energy
conservation and conduct on-site assessments
during the morning shift to strengthen
employees’ awareness of environmental
protection.
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The Group has established a strict review and
approval procedure for selecting suppliers of
power facilities and equipment, the suppliers
have to provide qualification certificates and
product manual. We compare the qualification
among different suppliers and evaluate different
criteria about the equipment (including energy
consumption, quality, function, etc.) prior to
purchase so as to reduce unnecessary energy
consumption due to unsuitable facilities and
equipment. The Project Material Protection
Center is responsible for the daily inspection of
offices and shopping malls, conducts regular
repairs and maintenance on electrical facilities
and equipment. When faults or abnormal
operations are found, immediate repair is
required to reduce energy consumption and to
avoid accidents. Besides, we carry out energy-
saving re-engineering for the central air-
conditioning systems, lightings and elevators,
and use variable frequency control technology
to transform the circulating water pump of
the central air-conditioning system so that it
can automatically control the operation of the
inverter according to ambient temperature to
reduce electricity consumption. The power on
and off control of the electrical appliances (such
as lighting, elevators, etc.) in some shopping
malls has been automated and strengthened the
control of the entire process, and leveraged the
various benefits of energy saving.

Apart from internal management and employee
participation, we post different energy-saving
slogans and use electronic displays to publicize
energy-saving tips in shopping malls. We
organize different promotional activities in
shopping malls to educate the public about
the relationship between energy usage and the
sustainability of the earth.

During the reporting period, the Group’s business
consumed a total of approximately 38,864.33
MWh of electricity. As a result of the above
energy conservation measures and the active
support of our employees, customers and brands,
the electricity consumption has reduced by
approximately 903.36 MWh or 2.27% from the
previous year.
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The Scope 2 of greenhouse gas emissions
generated by the Group during the reporting

period due to the use of electricity are as follows:

-

78

2018/19
2018/19% &
C02 equivalent
Consumption emissions
(MWh) (Tonnes)
THE 14
(KRK) EEHKE(H)
Indirect use of energy:
ML AR
Electricity 38,864.33 36,204.75
EW)|
Greenhouse Gas Emission 36,204.75
RERBHRES
Greenhouse Gas Emission Intensity ! 160.06
BERBHNER
Notes:
1 The Group'’s greenhouse gas emission intensity

is calculated based on 0.001 square meters
(m?) of the floor area of the shopping malls
and offices. During the reporting period, there
were no expansions in the shopping malls,
supermarkets and offices nor the relocation or
demolition project related to the business.

2 Part of the data for the previous year needs to

be restated for comparison purposes.
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(Restated)?
201718
(E351)?
2017/18F &
C02 equivalent

Consumption emissions
(MWh) (Tonnes)
ERE k- 74
(kRE) EEHMRE (W)
39,767.69 37,046.21
37,046.21
163.78
B -
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Management of Water Resources
Consumption

The Group uses government-supplied water
sources in shopping malls and offices. Although
we do not encounter any water supply problem
during the reporting period, we understand
the importance of water resources for business
operations and living needs; therefore, we
implement source reduction to avoid water
resource wastage. In addition to educating and
publicizing employees and customers in the
form of slogans, training and publicity activities,
we have set up a number of measures and
equipment transformations, such as, water flow
from tap is controlled at low level, water tap
should be turned off after use; recycle washing
water to clean the vehicles; regularly check
the water facilities to prevent water leakage;
immediately repair or replace when problem is
found, and keep record accordingly.

During the reporting period, we transformed
the toilets automatic induction flushing
into foot valve manual flushing at Xianyang
shopping mall and saved approximately 6,000
tonnes of water per year. Besides, Saigo and
Qianhui shopping malls have replaced the
traditional cooling towers with a spray-propelled
ventilation cooling tower that does not require
any electricity to operate and reduced water
consumption by approximately 2,800 tonnes per
year and reduced noise generated during the
operation of the cooling towers. With the above-
mentioned water-saving measures, equipment
transformation projects, and the benefits from
last year’s water-saving measures implemented
at different shopping malls, the Group has
consumed about 327,240.81 tonnes of water, a
decrease of 23,428.98 tonnes or 6.68% from the
previous year.
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Management of Paper Consumption

In order to reduce the impact of our daily office
operation on the environment, the Group
actively promotes the “Paperless Office” policy,
and distribute information and documents
in electronic format; paper purchase by the
procurement center and set up an office paper
distribution registration management system;
demand employees to check the format of the
document before copying or printing; reduce
the font size of the file to make full use of
the paper without affecting the legibility; fully
utilize paper by reusing single-sided papers, and
collect double-sided printed papers to qualified
recycler for handling. During the reporting
period, the Group’s paper consumption was
approximately 8.24 tonnes. Because of our
active implementation of the office automation
management policy and the extensive use of
online checkout at various business operating
locations, effectively reduced paper consumption
by about 0.98 tonnes or 10.64% from the
previous year.

Environment and Natural Resources

The Group has always been actively bringing
environmental responsibility into its daily
operations, energy consumption and waste
production is monitored and managed over the
years, and will continue to monitor, identify and
disclose the impact of our business activities
on the environment, we have established a
comprehensive environmental management
system and structure, and will continue to
insist on our green environmental protection
operations direction, actively promote
environmental protection work in offices,
shopping malls and supermarkets; and keep
on improving the management of facilities and
equipment and the use of natural resources. We
have set a good example for our employees,
to enhance their awareness of environmental
protection, promote the concept of “Energy-
Saving Action, Living Low-Carbon” to reduce
our carbon footprint. We hope to share our
efforts and achievement on natural resources
conservation in this report, to convey the
message of protecting the environment to the
stakeholders, so as to achieve a more powerful
environmental advocacy work and influence
everyone to work together to ease the climate
change.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES

Employees are our valuable assets and the key driver
for the Group’s sustainable and long-term business
development. We devote to create a non-discrimination,
harmonious and comfortable workplace and establish
a comprehensive talent management mechanism.
In order to adhere to our governance philosophy
of attracting talent by means of “compensation”,
“relationship”, “career” and “working platform”, we
offer equal opportunities of advancement and providing
commensurate remuneration and various benefits, and
organize a variety of activities. Besides, we encourage
employees to maintain harmonious interpersonal
relationships, promote team spirit of cooperation and
unity, bravely face difficulties and overcome challenges.
Our human resources policies vary by locations to
comply with the local labor laws and regulations.

Talent Selection

The Group is a fair opportunity employer and
respects personal privacy, and it has established and
implemented fair treatment policy. The appropriate
candidates would be selected based on their
morality, knowledge, abilities and job requirements,
and regardless of their nationality, gender, age,
geographical, religious beliefs. The policy applies to
all phases of the employment relationship, including
but not limited to, hiring, promotion, performance
appraisal, training, personal development and
termination.

Labor Standards

The Group cherishes human rights and protects labor
rights. We prohibit any unethical hiring practices,
including child and forced labor by conducting
background checks in its hiring process. Employees’
consent for working overtime is required to avoid forced
overtime work, and the employees are compensated
in accordance with the applicable labor laws and
regulations. During the reporting period, the Group did
not hire any applicant under the legal working age in
order to comply with the labor laws and regulations in
respect of child and forced labor.
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Compensation and Welfare

The Group regularly assesses the salary levels of
employees, benchmarks the up-to-date remuneration
data in their industry and strives to establish a fair,
reasonable and competitive remuneration scheme. Staff
salaries level are decided based on one’s knowledge,
skills, experiences and education background relevant
to their work requirements. Employee compensation
and benefit vary by location of shopping malls and
offices. The employee remuneration package includes
basic salary, overtime pay, discretionary bonus/
year-end bonus and so on. Other benefits include
communication allowance, medical allowance, working
meals, messing allowance, birthday gifts, etc; we
provide anti-heatstroke and warm drinks and supplies
to special position workers during high temperature
and cold weather; gifts distribution in Spring Festival,
Mid-Autumn Festival, International Women's Day,
etc.; bi-annual medical checks; condolences to
staff with financial difficulties. We conduct periodic
performance appraisal and fairly assess the awards,
subsidies, bonuses, salaries increment and/or promotion
recommendations based on a number of criteria
(working experience, seniority, knowledge and skills,
performance, contribution, etc.). In accordance with the
local labor laws and social security laws and regulations,
we provide social security benefits for all employees,
and protect their rights of rest days and holidays. We
handle dismissal or compensation in accordance with
the local laws and regulations.

We pay attention to our employees’ health and
encourage work-life balance. Employees’ work hours
are based on the local labor laws. We care about our
employees’ physical and mental health, and organize
various competition (such as jump rope competition, tug
of war competition, sports day, and so on), encourage
employee to participate in physical activities, better
understand of each other and promote team spirit. We
also organized different types of activities for staff. For
example, outdoor hiking, reading activities, and autumn
tours to enhance employees’ stability and sense of
belonging, and to reduce their work pressure. Besides,
to better reflect the concept of humanized corporate
management and to show our care and love for our
people, we pay visits and show our condolences for
staff unfortunately having illness, injured at work, death
or accidents, employees’ spouses or immediate family
members passed away, and at time of major festivals.
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Development and Training

In order to align the staff career development with its
long-term corporate business plan, the Group sets up
staff training polices with reference to the departmental
human resources needs. The human resources
department established a comprehensive staff training
plan with an aim to build an excellent, well-trained and
responsible corporate team. This can enhance the staff's
knowledge and management capabilities and improve
their work ability, performance and efficiency, and raise
their enthusiasm in work to activate team spirit. New
hires have to participate in induction training and pass
the assessment. The training topics include corporate
culture, site management, sales skills, membership
policies, service etiquette and skills, quality awareness,
fire safety (on-site public facilities). On top of providing
foundation training, we also provide skills advancement,
professional and management training to ensure that
staff possess professional theory and knowledge, and
new knowledge for overcoming challenges in order
to lay a solid foundation for long-term development
of employees and the Group. During the reporting
period, in addition to the new hire induction training,
we also organized various training programmes, such
as corporate culture and team building, quality manual
and standards, safety management and anti-corruption,
leadership and execution capabilities, target and time
management, human resources management, finance
management, etc.

Health and Safety

The Group pays attention to its employees’ health and
provides a safe work environment so as to prevent
occupational hazards and various incidents from
happening. We sign target responsibility statement
of “Setup Safe Workplace” with each subsidiary, and
formulate safe management team with reference to
the company’s operation. Management and employees
at all levels must clearly understand their own safety
responsibilities and strictly perform the requirements as
stated on the target responsibility statement.
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Besides, we establish a safety management manual
to strengthen our fire safety management in our
business sites, key departments and offices. Smoking
is prohibited for staff and customers; and we target to
keep our shopping centers, malls, supermarkets and
offices smoke-free. We designated staff to regularly
carry out fire prevention patrol every day at all locations
and critical departments; and keep patrol records. We
take immediate remediation or precautions once fire
hazards are found. In compliance with the local fire
prevention standards and policies, we have stringent
management on fire equipment and facilities; carry out
repairs and maintenance, and keep records.

Training topics are mainly related to workplace
safety and occupational health. The Group raises its
employees’ safety awareness by providing appropriate
occupational health and safety training to introduce
the corporate development plan, enhance their
awareness on safety and continuously strengthen
their consciousness, improve their professional skills,
especially for those job positions under significant
potential safety hazards, and enable them to perform
their duties in a safe environment. Employees have to
report to the management immediately when incident
occurs or aware of any potential hazards. Safety
education and training work plays an important role to
ensure the workplace is safe. New hires must receive
safety training prior to put into work. This is to make
sure that staff have the necessary safety knowledge in
their position; familiar and able to master the safety
techniques required. Key and special positions (such as
fire control center) have to take professional training
and pass the examination before they are assigned to
take up the role. Firefighters have to be familiar with
and master the use of various types of fire prevention
facilities to ensure that they can operate with the
equipment for fighting fire.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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In order to regulate the property management work,
we have established property management policies
and procedures. Property Engineering Department
is responsible for monitoring, inspection, providing
guidance and evaluation work. Employees have
to report to maintenance staff immediately when
repairs (such as electrical equipment, electric power
distribution equipment, facilities at shopping malls, air-
conditioners, drainage equipment, etc.) are needed for
shopping centers, supermarkets and offices so as to
ensure the customers’ and employees’ safety at these
locations. Staff of special work types (such as electrician,
welders) must possess valid license before they are
allowed to work; for example, to get a fire certificate
before using fire; carpenter should promptly clean up
with the sawdust and shavings after job completion;
inflammables, explosive, chemical or dangerous
materials are prohibited and no storage is allowed;
paint workers should not blend paints on-site or at the
locations close to fire or electric source; paints should be
covered with lids immediately after use.

Compliance

During the reporting period, the Group did not
involve in any non-compliance incidents relating to
employment, health and safety, and labor standards that
have significant impact on the Group.
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VI. OPERATING PRACTICES N EEE

Supply Chain Management

The Group conveys its concern on environmental issues
to its suppliers and business partners, and expects
them to implement similar practices. The Group also
serves to maintain long-term, stable and strategic
cooperative relationships with leading suppliers, and
co-develops with its suppliers on the basis of equality
and win-win situation. We have strict procurement
procedures (including purchasing merchandise, project,
etc.) for shopping centers, malls and supermarkets.
To accept new suppliers, we will pay visits to their
business sites, and evaluate their certifications, internal
management policies documents, work manual,
operational status, etc. to make sure that they possess
the capabilities in fulfilling the obligations. We also
establish strict evaluation procedures for renewal of
merchandise suppliers, and regularly compile statistics
and review the performance of our suppliers, assess
their capability, business status and operational results;
in order to grasp the product sales situations and make
appropriate adjustment to our strategies. The evaluation
includes reviewing of their market position, their
overall capability, product quality, supply performance,
sales performance, quality service, business results;
and conduct a comprehensive evaluation base on
a combination of scores and text comments. The
evaluation result is sent to management to ensure
that the selected suppliers are competitive and possess
recognized qualifications and good internal control
system, stable quality, on-time delivery, laws and
regulations compliance. We follow the national product
safety standards to set up stringent goods acceptance
criteria for different categories of products; to make
sure that the goods provided by suppliers are meeting
the country’s and our requirements in terms of quality,
safety, appearance, and labeling. We have established
policies and procedures in supply chain management
and provided various reporting channels for employees,
suppliers, customers and other business partners
to report any violations and suspected abuse one’s
authority for own interest. During the reporting period,
the Group did not have significant issues relating to
violations in this respect.
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Product and Service Responsibility

"Customers’ needs give direction to our actions” is
our customer service philosophy, and we are customer-
oriented, aim at providing good quality service and
products to our customers. In order to strengthen the
brand products quality monitoring, to maintain our
reputation, to eliminate fake and shoddy goods, and
to protect the consumer rights and interests; we follow
the applicable local laws and regulations in brands
and goods selection; and monitor and manage closely
the brands and suppliers that we work with. We also
establish supplier renewal system to ensure that the
suppliers’ merchandises are continuously keeping at
high quality.

In order to build up an image of excellent service,
we strictly require our staff to pay attention to their
appearance, phone manner, reception etiquette,
conduct and behavior, dressing, job descriptions and
requirements, and service greetings, etc. We have
established service quality monitoring system to
accurately evaluate the company’s service quality, to
promptly remediate problems found, and to provide
customers with satisfactory services meeting their
needs. We frequently conduct customer satisfactory
survey to obtain feedbacks on our malls’ reputation,
merchandise and service quality, shopping environment,
service facilities, goods pricing, etc. in the form of
phone calls and on-site visit. We analyze and evaluate
our customers’ comments and suggestions; and to
formulate improvement plan to enhance our service
quality. We remind our employees of the service
image requirements and customers’ feedback during
morning assembly. During the reporting period, we
were awarded “Reliable Consumer Unit” and “Key
Recommended Enterprise with Integrity in Shaanxi
Province” honors.
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In order to strengthen our connection with customers,
we have set up membership system since 2000, member
services and concessions are given by member class; a
customer service consultant is assigned to each of our
senior members and focus on meeting the customer’s
personal preferences and needs; and we become the
pilot enterprise in the Northwest Region. We set up
management policies to handle customers’ information
diligently and confidentially, and to protect customers’
privacy. All employees are strictly prohibited to disclose
any such information to third parties without proper
authority unless there is a legal or professional right or
duty to do so.

Compliance

During the reporting period, there was no violation or
non-compliance incident relating to product and service
responsibility that had significant impact on the Group.

Anti-corruption

Maintaining an ethical working environment is one
of the Group’s core values. We have adopted a zero-
tolerance approach for all kinds of corruption, bribery
and extortion situation. Therefore, we set up internal
management system to regulate employees’ conduct.
Offenders who request and accept bribes, obtain
other illegal interests are heavily penalized, including
termination of employment contracts, sent to the
judicial authority (if violating local laws and regulations),
and so on. We demand all personnel to build a habit of
strict compliance with policies and procedures, and to
prevent all bribery. We bring the disciplinary monitoring
work in the business process, ensure that there are
channels (including for reporting email and hotline)
for reporting suspected cases of obtaining personal
interests in carrying out one’s job duties, briberies,
extortion, fraud, money laundering in breach of policies,
regulations, and laws in strict confidence. We also set
up suggestion box and reward employees who make
good recommendations. During the reporting period,
the Group or its employees did not involve in any
litigation cases of corruption.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018/19
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group is committed to build the corporate
culture of “open and creative, win-win, harmonious
development and community contribution”
and devoted to charitable activities to show our
determination in taking up the social responsibility, to
care for the people in need and to push on building
a harmonious enterprise. During the reporting period,
we organized “Care for Children’s Village” activity to
give daily and study supplies to the kids with financial
difficulty and let the children fully feel our care towards
them. We also clean up the snow on the streets,
give cooling drinks to the police and firefighters, etc.
Besides, we donated e-books in “E-book Donation”
activity. E-book is paperless and saved the trees from
paper production and printing, and avoid damage
to the ecological environment. Promotion of use of
e-books can help protecting the environment.

The Group is a responsible taxpayer and offers job
opportunities to local people. We paid “five insurances
and housing provident fund” for staff in Mainland
China and the mandatory provident fund contributions
for staff in Hong Kong. We run our business following
good practices; we actively promote green energy-
saving and environmental friendly concepts; we set up a
role model for the industry; and to some certain extent,
we have contributed to social stability and building a
harmonious community.

HONOR

During the reporting period, we were awarded the
following important honors:

> May First Labor Medal in Xi‘an
> Reliable Consumer Unit

> “2018 Xi'an Most China” Most Creative Award
for Business Service Industry

> “Worker Pioneer” honorary title

> Direct Reporting Point of Political and
Administrative Stand in the Economic and
Technological Development Zone in Xi'an

> Firefighting Work Advance Unit in 2018
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> Firefighting Work Advance Personal Unit in 2018
> Role Model Workers’ Home in Xi‘an City

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE IMPLEMENTATION

ESG Committee is established and chaired by the Chief
Executive Officer of the Group. The committee members
include representatives from major departments,
including the Human Resources Department, the
Marketing Planning Department, the Enterprise
Management, the Internal Control Department, the
Engineering Property Center, the Finance Department,
the Employees’ Union, etc. The ESG Committee will
follow the requirement of laws and regulations; and to
conduct business following appropriate best practices;
like setting up ESG targets, policies, procedures and
guidelines. In order to promote our Group's business
and the long-term sustainable development of the
local community of our business locations, we improve
our corporate governance, protect the environment,
engage our stakeholders and to contribute to the
society. We have five ESG Task Forces under the ESG
Committee, with keys members from the related
departments assisting the ESG Committee to supervise
and monitor the progress of various ESG activities, to
coordinate in setting up key performance indicators, to
regularly assess the effectiveness, and to hold seminars
to enhance the staff awareness in environmental
protection. The ESG Committee is responsible for
submitting reports and improvement proposals to the
Board on a periodic basis.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018/19
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The terms of reference, organizational structure,
reporting line and members of the ESG Committee are

as follows:

R #HE8K

ESGEESMBEEE -
BENKEWT:

EL ~

RWEB

BEA®RE

BRI

Environmental, Social and Governance Committee Leader: Chief Executive Officer

Community and
Shareholders/Investors Focus
Task Force
REENHE
B
Xi'an - Enterprise Management

ER-08ER

> To maintain good
communication with
shareholders and other
stakeholders, and to
enhance shareholders'
value in the long run

> To care for the community
and people in need; to
ensure that the interests
of the community are
considered in conducting
business activities

> BRENEMFHERS
RIFNER RRRRA
REBE

> BULHERAREAL
ERxBEDEZEHE
WAl

BRE HEREARAZESEE THAR

(REEWE:

DRAME)

BE HERERZEEEAKA

Employees and Occupational
Safety Focus Task Force
EINBZ
B

Xi'an - Human Resources

Department

EZ-ANERY

> Tocare for our people,
from recruitment, training
to developing our
employees

»  Tomaintain good
communication and
interactions with the
management team

> Togive appropriate
encouragement and
recognition to employees

> To provide a safe working
environment

> To prevent briberies,
extortion, frauds and
money laundering

> BIEINAE AN
¥R

> HERERERFNER
R

> HEILTE
BE

> REZIOIERE

> BIRR 9% KGR
EENhE

BT

Suppliers Focus Task Force

fEm
B

Xi'an - Purchasing Department

7 -RED

> To pay attention to
product safety from
suppliers

> Tofocus on the
procurement procedures
and the practice in
supplier selection

> To maintain good
communication and
interactions with suppliers
and to build up trust;
50 as to keep the good
reputation, integrity and
sustainable development
of the Group

> EIfEEERRZ

> EIREERFAERLE
AREdl

> HREERRRIMNER
NEVERE HREEE
MEE BENTEEE
B

Customers Focus Task Force

EF
Birog

Xi'an - Customer Service

Department

A% -BERHED

> Toconcern about the
customers' service quality
expectations

> To maintain good
communication and
interactions with
customers and to build
up trust; so as to keep
the good reputation,
integrity and sustainable
development of the Group

> Tofocus on protecting
our customers' rights and
interests; and their privacy

> EIBZRBEZRREZ

> HEXRERONERA
BULE MUEEEN
BE DENTHELS
B

> BEE

il

i

SHERNERL

S flJJ

B

(Secretary of the Committee: Company Secretary of the Group)

Environmental, Social and Governance Committee Convenor

Environmental Focus Task
Force

RARE
B
Xi'an - Engineering Property
Center
BZ-TERRER O
> Tocultivate a corporate
culture in promoting
energy conservation,
to prevent pollution, to
reduce emissions and to
reduce wastes
> Topay attention to the
environmental protection
related policies, measures
and effectiveness
(including setting up of
KPls and performance
evaluation)

> EBEHNERE HEsE
ROBREH REXRE
BAED REMGEX

> BIRREE EENN
M (BEBRENERN
e RATRELAD)
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VISION OUTLOOK

As a good corporate citizen, the Group strives to strike
a balance between achieving the corporate economic
goals and business objectives, and to fulfill their
social responsibility. We will continue to evaluate our
performance in environmental protection, employee
care, merchandise/service quality and community
investment and to build edge for the sustainable
development of the Group.

The Group will endeavor to comply with the stringent
laws and regulations of environmental protection,
allocate resources to improve equipment and facilities
using natural resources. We will also put employee
satisfaction and production safety as its top priority. The
Group aims at attracting more talents through providing
a safe workplace and competitive remuneration
scheme. As for merchandise and service quality, we will
continue to invest resources for further enhancement
of our employees’ service quality and to provide better
customer service and high quality merchandises to
our customers. We are also committed to fulfilling our
social responsibility by actively participating in charitable
activities and promoting the community’s sustainable
development.

The Group aspires to become a respectable enterprise.
Going forward, the Group serves to enhance its business
performance through implementation of sustainable
development strategies and to generate more
meaningful long-term value for the enterprise and its
stakeholders.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018/19
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ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE DATA +— BEHEXREBE
SUMMARY

(Restated)*
Unit 2018/19 2017/18
(&%)
By 2018/19FE 2017/185FE
Greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions:
BERE:
Scope 1"
EiE—"
Total Tonnes 148.32 127.98
weE 148
Intensity 3 Tonnes 0.66 0.57
RE3 Mg
Scope 2 %
giE—
Total Tonnes 36,204.75 37,046.21
e 158
Intensity 3 Tonnes 160.06 163.78
BnE? A
Air emissions:
BRAEHENE:
Nitrogen oxides Tonnes 2.82 2.73
AEY L7
Sulfur oxides Tonnes 0.36 0.36
mEY i
Particles Tonnes 0.82 0.83
FRY i
Non-hazardous wastes:
EEEREY:
Total Tonnes 2,648.40 3,019.50
e U7
Intensity 3 Tonnes 11.71 13.35
mE3 i1
Packaging materials used for
merchandise:
EmirAeEmR:
Total Tonnes 20.56 21.00
wWeE 7
Intensity 3 Tonnes 0.09 0.09
BnE? U1

HEEEHEERERD
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Unit
B
Energy and water consumption:
AREFRHMEE:
Electricity:
Bh:
Total MWh
HE IR EL B
Intensity 3 MWh
e e FBS
Diesel:
5o
Total Litre
e 7
Intensity 3 Litre
BnE? 7
Gasoline:
bai::
Total Litre
e 7
Intensity 3 Litre
BnE? 7
Natural gas:
RAR:
Total Cubic meter
wme NJTOK
Intensity 3 Cubic meter
®E3 AVAYS I
Water:
KEIR:
Total Cubic meter
wme NJTOK
Intensity 3 Cubic meter
®E3 AVAYS I

94 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018/19
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2018/19

2018/19F &

38,864.33

171.81

11.05

0.05

5.70

0.03

52,093.00

230.30

327,240.81

1,446.69

(Restated)*
2017/18
(&%)

2017/18% &

39,767.69

175.81

11.48

0.05

5.14

0.02

41,171.00

182.01

350,669.80

1,550.26
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RR #HERERBRE

Notes: B

1 Scope 1 refers to the Group's business direct GHG HE—BIEAEEEFAEEE
emission, including combustion of diesel, gasoline and FB AR T EE A 8908 R BSHERK
natural gas. BUIEMRESE -~ VT R KAR -

2 Scope 2 refers to the Group’s business indirect GHG HE - BIEAEEEF A EFE
emissions, including consumption of purchased BB KAy E AT S| BA [ R B
electricity. TR B EREEHEN

3 The Group’s greenhouse gas emission intensity is K FIRBRBHIRE R RILE
calculated based on 0.001 square meters (m?) of the B R A = E S E & #0.001
floor area of the shopping malls and offices. During FHOKEITEE - MR R & RA
the reporting period, there were no expansions in HEBHBNES B O
the shopping malls, supermarkets and offices nor the BBRTTE RN ERGHEITERA
relocation or demolition project related to the business. R EHTIE -

4 Part of the data for the previous year needs to be FFEEHEBEFEINERLER

restated for comparison purposes.

"ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE” BY
THE STOCK EXCHANGE

General Disclosure/
Key Performance

Indicators (“KPIs”) Reporting Guideline

—RiEE
ERENER &R
A. Environmental
ARIB
Aspect A1 Emissions
fEmEA1 23587

Information on:
(a) the policies; and

General Disclosure

i

= BRA GRS HBRER
%% 9521

Page

HEY

69 - 71

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have

a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-

hazardous waste.

— R E
FEEMHEEZH
(@) % J&

BERERMBEREHR RKERIHHES AERES

(b) ETHETABERZENHBEARNEHNER -

KPI'A1.1

FREAMIEIRAT BEER R ARRE B

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

69 -71,73-75,
78 & 93 - 95

HEEEHEERERD
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RBRR - #H#E8RERNR

General Disclosure/

Key Performance
Indicators (“KPIs")
—BEE
BRENIEE

KPI' A1.2

BB AE IR IRAL.2

KPI'A1.3

BE S A B IR AT .3

KPI'A1.4

B SR AR IE IR A .4

KPI A1.5
BSR4 AR RATLS
KPI A1.6

BB IEIRATE

Aspect A2
BTA2
General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI A2.1

RE S 45 WUEIZA2 1

S

Reporting Guideline

] &Sl

Page

B¥

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where 73 -75,78, 93 -

appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, 95
per facility).

BERBAENE (UHEEE) R (ER)ZE (WAEE
BEN BERMEHE) -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

FELARZEEYRE (AMEFE) K (Em) BmE (A
BESEM BERBEAHE) -

N/A T

T

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where 70 — 71, 93 = 95

appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

FELAEZEEYRE (AMEFE) K (Em) BE (A
BEEEMN BERETE) -

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results 69 - 71
achieved.

ORI BER 2 R 5 R PTG RO R ©

Description of how hazardous 1 and non-hazardous wastes 70 - 71
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
HUEREF1IREZTERZEYN L REELENERR

FR1GAR -

Use of Resources

BEREA

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, 72 - 80
water and other raw materials.

BEREAER (BEER K REMERME)HEER

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. 72 -78 & 93 - 95

electricity, gas or oil) in total (MWh) and intensity 1 (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).
REAESHEER SEEER (NE - R3oh) BFE
(ATETERAE) REE (WAGEEEMN FERMT
H) -

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2018/19
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General Disclosure/

Key Performance
Indicators (“KPIs")
— BB
BARERER

KPI A2.2

RS E IRIRA2.2
KPlI A2.3
BB IR IRA2.3

KPI' A2.4

R AE IEIZA2.4

KPI' A2.5

B 4B IS IRA2.5

Aspect A3
[EEA3
General Disclosure

— R E

KPI' A3.1

S 45 B 1R A3 1

B HEBR

BEA®RE

Reporting Guideline Page
& 15 5l B
Water consumption in total and intensity 1 (e.g. per unit of 79 & 93 - 95
production volume, per facility).
BREKENTE (WMAGESSEM BERKRBTE) -
Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results 72 -78
achieved.
R e R0 B e at Bl R PSR
Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water 79
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.
e 2t SR ER G AR IORR AT A A B - DA R T A K AR e T &
K PFTISBCR
Total packaging material used for merchandise (in tonnes) 93 -95
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced 1.
EmPTRABEEMENES (UEtE) X (INER) BEEE
UWAE-
The Environment and Natural Resources
RERKXAER
Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the 80
environment and natural resources.
WMERETAHRBERRAEREXNERATZENBR
Description of the significant impacts of activities on the 80
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.
B EBEBHEBRRERRABERNEATZERDKINER
BERATENTTH-

HRESTEHEERERAT

ZB2-NS-NEFR
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General Disclosure/

Key Performance
Indicators (“KPIs")
—BEE
BRENIEE

Aspect B1

EHB1
General Disclosure

— R

Aspect B2
[ T B2

General Disclosure

—RKE

Aspect B3
EmB3

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HLERER

S

Reporting Guideline
HEEL

B. Social 2
B.i- &2

Employment and Labor Practices
E®
Information on: 81
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have

a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare.
A A N R R %%&Tﬂ-lﬁ%ﬁ REA- TEHKE -
% et~ RIBAR DA B Ho Ath 157 38 N 48 A1l &Y -
(@) B &
(b) BFHETABEAZENHBERZLROINER -

Health and Safety
REREZZ

Information on: 83 -

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.

ERARMZ2TERELRREEEHABELEEN:

(a) B : &

(b) BFHETABERTENHEBERELROHNER -

Development and Training

BRRIEI

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
BRRMEER BT LIERE MM B LR M BUR - fa gt 557
EEIE

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2018/19
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General Disclosure/
Key Performance

Indicators (“KPIs”) Reporting Guideline Page
—RWE

BREVER & 15 5l B
Aspect B4 Labor Standards

[EEB4 BT AR

General Disclosure Information on: 81

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labor.

—RIKE BRAP LE T koa 4 T :
(@) B s &
(b) BTHEITABEATENHBERLROINEFR -

Aspect B5 Supply Chain Management

[E EB5 ftEEEE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the 86
supply chain.

—RRIRE ERMHEEANIRE R GRERBUR -

Aspect B6 Product and Service Responsibility

[EEB6 BmAMREEE

General Disclosure Information on: 87 - 88

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and

privacy matters relating to products and services provided

and methods of redress.

— R R FRMREEEmMREHRERLS BE S8EELES
HA RS A
(@) % &
(b) BFHETABEATZENEBEZRAMNELR -
Aspect B7 Anti-corruption
[EmB7 RES
General Disclosure Information on: 88

(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
—RIKE BRAMEBE 9% BEERLREN:
(a) K &
(b) BETHBETABEATENHBERLROINER -

HEEEHEERERD
—E-N-hEEHF 99
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General Disclosure/
Key Performance

Indicators (“KPIs”) Reporting Guideline Page

—RWE

BREYER ¥ & 5 5l B

Aspect B8 Community Investment

[EEmB8 HERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the 89

needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to
ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’
interests.

—RIRE BRI E2EREREEMELRFTEMNERALERE

B = B B RIS HBE o

Notes: B & -

1 The Group’s main business is operating department 1 rEETEXRERELEERR
stores, shopping centers and supermarkets. We did not BBy KBTS Bt
generate any hazardous wastes. REEEFMGEREY-

2 Pursuant to Appendix 27 of the “Main Board 2 AR (E#IR ETTAERLD Higk27

Listing Rules”, the KPIs under Area B “Social” are
recommended disclosures only. Therefore, the Group
choose not to disclose those KPIs in this report.

y
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 109 to 256, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2019, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2019 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in Bermuda, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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M A% B R R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Assessment of impairment of goodwill

AR E

RRELER (&)

Refer to Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(f).

BRI E B MAN T 15 R M T2()ay & st B E
The Key Audit Matter
HREREE

As at 31 March 2019, goodwill, which arose from business
acquisitions in prior years, amounted to RMB693.4 million
and accounted for approximately 8.4% of the Group's
total assets at that date. Impairment losses on goodwill
of RMB194.7 million were recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 March
2019 (31 March 2018: RMB Nil).
RZZE-NF=A=1t—0 BB (BBEFEKREXYK
mEE ) EARE93,400,0007T ' thizH BEEMHHBE
ER84A% REE_T-—NF=ZA=+—HILFEZLHF
BIEERACHEIHE 2RERREAR194,700,0007T
(ZE-—N\F=ZA=+—H: AE¥Zx) -

The financial performance of the Group’s department
stores and supermarket operations, as a consequence of
a slow down in economic growth in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"), as well as intense competition from
surrounding shopping malls and online retail sales, has
underperformed management’s expectations when these
businesses were acquired, which has increased the risk
that goodwill related to these business acquisitions may be
impaired.

AR EARLME ([HE])QBEGRMEKLRE FEZ
BT OEBETENRFME . BSEEREESR
BRMSEBNMBERABENEREBREZSEEZBREHN
TEER - BIN T ARBWEZ S X R EER RERNER -

Management performs impairment assessments of the
relevant CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated at the
end of each reporting period. Management compares the
carrying amount of each CGU with its recoverable amount,
which is determined by assessing the value-in-use based
on discounted cash flow forecasts.
ERECRNERERREESERENEBRSELSE
fETREN G -EEENSREEEEMMNREER
HaEl ¢ AIRESEHERAERIIRR SR
TR A EAEEmMERE -
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHERPNAEESRSE

Our audit procedures to assess impairment of
goodwill included the following:

B ERERENEZRETFEEA TSR

o assessing and challenging the Group's
identification of cash-generating units
("CGUs") and the allocation of goodwill and
other assets to those CGUs;

e HENER EEEYRSELEM (IR
@%Eﬁﬁnm%ﬂ&ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
257 Be g B K B fh B 2

o assessing the reliability of management’s
cash flow forecasting process by comparing
the previous year's forecasts with the current
year's results, discussing significant variances
with management and considering the
effect of such variances on the current year's
forecasts;

e FHREBL-—FENTEAERFERELLE
L ERER e RTEABENREL  HE
BENRENRE WEBRZREHAFE
TR E

o involving our internal valuation specialists
to assist us in evaluating management'’s
valuation methodology, in assessing the
discount rate applied by comparison with
the discount rates for similar companies
in the same industry and in assessing
the key assumptions adopted in the cash
flow forecasts based on available market
information and by comparison with other
companies in the same industry;

o  ZHHEMNWARBLEZRBIBEMATEHER
e ETE NERLBRETTERURF]
HRAIR - SP A PTER A RO RE 3R 3 - I B A
BISHMSEN RERTEREMARLLE
FHEIR @ R TR ER AN Y B B2 R R



Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Assessment of impairment of goodwill (continued)
BB REN (&)

The Key Audit Matter

HRESSBIE

The preparation of discounted cash flow forecasts involves
the exercise of significant management judgement, in
particular in forecasting revenue growth and operating profit
and in determining appropriate discount rates.
REMBESREASREREEHERAE  LERE
ORI Y 2 188 5= T 48 0 M A Ko T B O B B R o

We identified the assessment of impairment of goodwill as
a key audit matter because the carrying value of goodwill
is material to the consolidated financial statements, and
also because management’s forecasts of the future cash
flows involve certain critical judgements in respect of the
assumptions made, which are inherently uncertain and could
be subject to management bias.
BARAEERENT AR —HRREREE RESHE
EZHNREELGREMBEBRERBEN BEBEBEHRKE S
IR KB BFTVE LR Y8 T RS2 - T oz & #1
AE FRTEER Al RERENTEE-

B % AR E

RRELER (&)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMNEZRTNAEEEREE

obtaining management's sensitivity analysis and
challenging the key assumptions to which the
outcome of the impairment assessments was
most sensitive, including forecast revenue and
forecast profit margins, and considering if there
was any indication of management bias in the
selection of these assumptions; and
EREEENGREDN  BRBMEN LS
REBRNERERR (2ETERI S K28
MEX) ZREEEAEEMNTRETEREELE
EEZEBRRBFEEERERE &

considering the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the
impairment assessments.

ZRARA M HRERT AR EMEHKE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

RREXRER (&)

Valuation of land and buildings held for own use and investment property

FEBAZIHREFURRKRENEMLE

Refer to Notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Notes 2(h)

and (i).

BRRIFE B RFZ M T 12 R 130 R M at2(h) K ()8 & 5 B %

The Key Audit Matter
HREREE

The Group is engaged in the operation of department stores,
a shopping mall and supermarkets in the PRC.
EEEFENRFETELLAEES BYHLOLBRAT

35 o

The Group's land and buildings held for own use and
investment property are revalued at the end of each reporting
period and are stated at their fair values.
BEEEFEERZLHEETURKRENEN SRS
REM REAREARK.

As at 31 March 2019, land and buildings held for own use
and an investment property with aggregate fair value of
RMB4,225 million accounted for approximately 51.1% of the
Group's total assets at that date.

RZE-NWF=ZA=+—B B2 BERARYK
4,225,000,0007C BV 1E B F 2 3t A FIA BRI E W24
“H BEREREEHS11% -

The fair values of land and buildings held for own use
and the investment property were assessed by the board
of directors based on independent valuations prepared by
an external property valuer using certain estimates, which
included comparable market prices.
FEEBRZIMARETFURKREMENRAABIIHES
SERINBYE L ERERE T (BREAELER TS
B8 mEH B (L E AT -

We identified the valuation of land and buildings held for
own use and investment property as a key audit matter
because of the significance of their value to the Group's total
assets and also because determining their fair values involves
a significant degree of judgement.
HARBRFEERZ I REBFURKREMENEER
—HAREZFE REASHEEY SSEREEES
AN BEFEAABSRERIZENHE -

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
R MW EZP NI EREEEBEEE

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of
leasehold land and buildings held for own use and
investment property included the following:
BOFERIEE R T RIEF LA RIRE YR
ENEZREFBFEATRE:

o assessing the external property valuer’s
qualifications, expertise and experience and
considering the external property valuer's
objectivity and independence;

o FHMEINERMIEMGERNER BREER I
ZRAZHMERBIIE:

o assessing whether the properties held by
the Group were valued on a consistent basis
using a consistent methodology by inquiry of
management and the external property valuer;

o FRETHERERINYEMLER FE &
SERANMERSER —BUNER —BE
EfhE:

o involving our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in assessing the valuations prepared
by the external property valuer by evaluating
the valuation methodology adopted and
comparing the valuations with recent sales
transactions of properties of the same type and
in the similar location as the Group’s properties
which were subject to valuation; and

e ZHRMANAIBEEZK BN FIFEIND
WL EM R A E AP ERA B (4 (E
A BEER EEBMGEEDERNHERL
Kt EAERI MM EREHHER S &

e  considering the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the valuation
of land and buildings held for own use and
investment property.

s ZEFRAMBBRTBEUHIEERZ LM
REBFUARREYEMEENIKEE -



Independent Auditor’s Report

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

B % AR E
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B & BA RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018/19
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Cheung Tsz Chung.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

28 June 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mERE®EX

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in Renminbi (“"RMB”))  (UARE ([ARE])Z25)
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—)N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt &t AR¥Fx ARETFIT
(Note)
(Ktat)
Revenue U == 4 1,054,065 1,159,060
Other net income HA)F WA 5 3,895 17,658
Cost of goods sold B miHE KA 20 (517,105) (557,206)
Sales and other taxes and surcharges 5% & £ #th £ 18 &t hoF¢ (28,535) (34,416)
Staff costs B TR 6(b) (144,066) (146,462)
Operating lease expenses KERERX (39,772) (51,283)
Depreciation expenses TERX 12 (143,350) (141,959)
Utilities expenses NEEER (37,770) (42,182)
Advertisement expenses BERE (21,456) (26,878)
Impairment losses on goodwill EEREEE 15 (194,728) -
Other operating expenses H 48 & B 2 (90,878) (32,875)
(Loss)/profit from operations Kz (FE) aRl (159,700) 143,457
Valuation gain on an investment KEMELERE
property 13 - 200
Net finance costs B 75 8 R FRE 6(a) (88,107) (96,997)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRBLA (B5E) B 6 (247,807) 46,660
Income tax PRS0 7 (16,018) (23,012)
(Loss)/profit for the year TEE (FER)HF (263,825) 23,648
Attributable to: LT AT
Equity shareholders of the ZN/NSITES
Company (261,575) 27,234
Non-controlling interests FEIE R (2,250) (3,586)
(Loss)/profit for the year TEE (FR)HF (263,825) 23,648
(Loss)/earnings per share BR (FE) HF
Basic (RMB) EXR(ARYET) 11(a) (0.113) 0.012
Diluted (RMB) #E (AR%T) 11(b) (0.113) 0.011

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1

ffit: REBR -—F—/\FOH-BBXRER

April 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 119 to 256 form part of these financial

statements.

BRI REERNF 155 LB LY H
FERNFESR -RIFMEENIBIRE
REMALARES - RHIFE2(0) -

FE119E256 8 2 M DR Z ST B MK
Z BB n e
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HEBEBERHEMEZE KRS X

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB) (LA AR¥EZ51)
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-)N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
fftf &t AR%Fr ARKF T
(Note (i)
(FraEd))
(Loss)/profit for the year KEE (FE) %A (263,825) 23,648
Other comprehensive income ZAEEHMEMEUE (L
for the year (after tax and BRBEEREHERAE) :
reclassification adjustments):
ltems that will not be reclassified B TEEFHEEERIEE
to profit or loss:
— Surplus on revaluation of land  —EEFHEER 2 L RIEF
and buildings held for own B
use 10 18,695 70,646
— Equity investments at —RApEFAREMEE
fair value through other Wz =R E -
comprehensive income: AREREZSFHE
net movement in fair value (TATEEE)
reserve (non-recycling) 10 (37,231) -
(18,536) 70,646
ltems that may be reclassified Higr &R BREBmRCEE
subsequently to profit or loss: )
— Available-for-sale financial —AIEt N EEMEE:
assets: net movement in the AREREZSFE
fair value reserve (Note (ii) (K1a%i)) 10 - (50,760)
— Exchange differences on —HBRE3EK, Y
translation into presentation M 5 =5
currency 10 (14,438) 20,529
(14,438) (30,231)
Other comprehensive income  AEEH 2 mE UK
for the year (32,974) 40,415
Total comprehensive income rAEERXEWSEEARE
for the year (296,799) 64,063

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2018/19
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REREERHEMCEZEKRE KR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB)  (AARKZ31)
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —F—)N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt aE AR¥FT ARETFIT
(Note (i)
(HtaE@))
Attributable to: BT ALERN:
Equity shareholders of the ZN/NSILES
Company (288,549) 74,637
Non-controlling interests JEIE M (8,250) (10,574)
Total comprehensive income AEEEHKNZATE
for the year (296,799) 64,063
Notes: Bt -

(i) The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 (i)
April 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

WAREF - R HiaE2(c) °

(i) This amount arose under the accounting policies applicable prior (ii)
to 1 April 2018. As part of the opening balance adjustments as
at 1 April 2018 the balance of this reserve has been reclassified
to fair value reserve (non-recycling) and will not be reclassified
to profit or loss in any future periods. See Note 2(c).

RIEE2(c)

The notes on pages 119 to 256 form part of these financial
statements.

AEBR-_Z-\FHNA-—BERERE
BT HRE ERISE 155 RE BV SR E%E
A5 - RIBATE R MBIEL - LA R

ZoBIRER - —/\FHA—HAER
ZEHBRRELE - EAR T /\FHOAH
—BHUBBERBZ — 80 KEEHRE
EEMNBREAAERE (TREE) B
B AEEN SRR EMARREGM 2B -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB R

At 31 March 2019 R=-ZZE—h&FE=HF=+—H

(Expressed in RMB)  (LUAAR¥EZ5I)
2019 2018
—E-hE —E—N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
iz AR¥TF T ARBF T
(Note)
(KfaE)
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BWENEE 12 3,122,037 3,186,870
Investment property A E 13 1,294,000 1,332,600
Intangible assets B AE 14 424,812 424,812
Goodwill RS 15 693,423 888,151
Prepayments for acquisition of Wi 3% 2 AN RRIA
properties 17 1,394,869 1,139,060
Available-for-sale financial assets AtEHESHEE 18 = 296,400
Other financial assets EmepEE 18 252,600 -
Interests in joint ventures NEBETLEREZR 1 1
Deferred tax assets BEERIBE E 26(b) 18,239 11,393
7,199,981 7,279,287
Current assets RBEE
Short-term investments HHRE 19 = 160,761
Inventories TE 20 41,823 73,499
Trade and other receivables JrE L BR 51 2 L At i LR 21 475,157 351,970
Cash at bank and on hand RITEFNFERS 22 544,690 614,681
1,061,670 1,200,911
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables JE AT BR 3R 2 L At & 5 3K 23 1,135,079 1,095,317
Bank and other loans RITREMER 24(a) 866,401 792,149
Income tax payable TS H 26(a) 38,970 44,618
2,040,450 1,932,084
Net current liabilities REAEFHE (978,780) (731,173)
Total assets less current HWEEBRRBEES
liabilities 6,221,201 6,548,114
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank loans RITER 24(b) 1,498,000 1,541,000
Deferred tax liabilities REBIEEE 26(b) 634,976 621,515
2,132,976 2,162,515
NET ASSETS EEFH 4,088,225 4,385,599
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE BN E
At 31 March 2019 RZZF—-hAF=A=+—H
(Expressed in RMB)  (AARKZ31)

2019 2018
—E-AE —E-)N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
fit AR®TTT AREFT
(Note)
(Ktat)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES AR & E 27
Share capital % 7 199,369 199,369
Reserves i 3,758,902 4,047,991
Total equity attributable to ARRRRELEREE
equity shareholders of the
Company 3,958,271 4,247,360
Non-controlling interests FEIERER 129,954 138,239
TOTAL EQUITY EZEE 4,088,225 4,385,599

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 fieE: REBR - \FHNA—BEHXAER

April 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative BB SRS 2ERIE155% R E B P B R
information is not restated. See Note 2(c). HEBIFR - RIBFMEENBIEE

WAL ARET - BHTEE2(c) °

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on KEReR _ZT—NFAAZTA\BHIE

28 June 2019. KRR B -
Chan Wai Kwong, Peter Sha Yingjie
BR&B K DER
Director Director
2 EE

The notes on pages 119 to 256 form part of these financial — 5511952568 2 Mt 5t Ty X S0 R &
statements. Z BB1n e

-
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEREaR® X

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB) (LA AR¥EZ51)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARARRESR

Shares

held under

share Property Non-
Share Share award Capital  Contributed ~ revaluation ~ Fairvalue  Statutory  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium scheme reserve surplus reserve reserve Teserves reserve profits Total  interests equity

i B0

LR %

kA RAEE HENRD  AAEE  SARR  EREE MABEE  EREE  ENEE  REEA i rhEE  ERLE
RMBO00  RMB00O  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMB00  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMB000  RMBO0  RMBOO0  RMB000  RMB0O0  RMB000
ARBFT ARBTT ARBFT ARETT ARETL AREFT ARETr AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETr AREFL

(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note

) 227 22 ) 27 27 d) 27 27 d) 27 27(c)vii)

(3 jyres (3 (i (2 ( (2 s
(Uif3 (K (Wit (Wi g (i (it (Haz

200 200)  200) 266 20k 2060)  206)  2606)  27006)

Balanceat 1 April 2017  R=E-t£MA-A
33 198480 1,133,854 2922) (5,030) 995,255 1,054,795 7,181 128,653 107,001 551,225 4,168,492 148813 4,317,305

Changes in equity forthe ~ AEERREH:

year:
Profitoss) for the year KERET/ (FB) - - - - - - - - - UBe a3 (3585) 23648
Other comprehensive income £ty El i - - - - - 0646 (@377 - 20529 - 47403 (6,988) 40415

Total comprehensive income for AFF2ARGEE
the year - - - - - 70,646 (43,772) - 20,529 21,234 74,637 (10,574) 64,063

Shares issued under share R EEEE MR ESH BBk

option scheme f 889 2,741 - (786) - - - - - - 2,844 - 2,844

Equity-settled share-based RSB R G A
transactions (Note 25(a) X% ) - - - 1387 - - - - - - 1387 - 1387
Transfer between reserves  BrlBRER - - - (33,143) - - - - - 33,143 - - -
Appropriation to reserves BRERE - - - - - - - 932 - (932) = = =
889 2,741 - (32,542) - - - 932 - 221 4231 - 4231

Balance at31 March 2018 R=F- 1%
ZA=t-R&H 199369 1,136,595 2922 (37572) 995255 1,125,441 (36,591) 129,585 127,530 610,670 4247360 138239 4385599

.
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Annual Report 2018/19

\\



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RERBEH X

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB)  (AARKZ31)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARARREE
Shares
held under Fair value
share Property reserve  Fair value Non-
Share Share award Capital Contributed ~revaluation (non- reserve  Statutory  Exchange  Retained controlling Total

capital  premium scheme reserve surplus reserve
RERS

L3 ] LS

Rx  REEE REORG  EABR  MARR  ERER

RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMBY00  RMB'000  RMB000

AREFL ABETR ARBFT ARKTR ARBTT AREFZ

(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note
27) 20 27di) ) 2706 27e))

(Wit

270) 271) 700)  270)  27dH) 2700)

recycling) ~ (recycling)  reserves reserve profits Total interests equity

=

AERE AAERE
(FIg8) (J88) iRlf ERGE  REEA Bt FEREE  REAE

RMB'000  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMB00  RMB00  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTL ARETR ARBTT AREFT ARETR AREFT ARETR
(Note (Note (Note
270)  27(di)  27(d)ii))

276)u)

2700) - 27

Balance at 31 March 2018 RZB-NEZA=+-B 199369 1136595 2922)  (7157) 995255 1125441

Impact on initial application of ~ ERERERHKRLEAE
HKFRS 9 (Note 2(c)) (o - - - - - =

= (36,591) 129,585 121,530 610,670 4,247,360 138239 4,385,599

(29,340) 36,591 o o (8970) (1719 (35) (1,754)

Adjusted balance at 1 April 2018~ W=F-NFBA-H
LARGER 199,369 1,136,595 2922) (37,572) 995,255 1125441

(29,340)

® 129,585 121,530 601,700 4,245,641 138204 4,383,845

Changesin equity for the year. ~ AEEEHEH:

Loss for the year %3 = - 5 S - 5 S = o - (261575 (261,575 (2250)  (263,825)
Other comprehensive income Eb2ENE - - - - - 18,695 (3131 - - (14,438) - (26,974) (6000 (32.974)
Total comprehensive income for the year A% § 2l &8 - - ® - - 18,695 (31.31) - = (14438)  (261575)  (288,549) (82500 (296,799)
Equity-settled share-based transactions - RRIEEENRHR 225
(Note 25(a)) (Hi250) = = = 11719 - = = = = = - 1179 - 1179
- - - 11719 - - - - - - - 1179 - 11719
Balance at 31 March 2019 RZB-AE=R=t-B
3 199,369 1,136,595 (2.922) (36,393) 995,255 1,144,136 (60,571) = 129,585 113,092 340,125 3958271 129,954 4,088,225
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 fit: AEEER=Z2ZE—N\FHA—BHXE

April 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 119 to 256 form part of these financial
statements.

RAEEMBREEAF155 R EF BT
WELRIFW - RIFFTERE 2IBRL
LR ERL BT - B E2() °

E119E256 B 2 M DR Z STV B MK
Z 87 -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB) (LA AR¥EZ51)

2019 2018
—E-RF —T-N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR FR AREFT
Operating activities KETEE
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELRT (E1R),a (247,807) 46,660
Adjustments for: R EE
Depreciation expenses TERX 12 143,350 141,959
Impairment losses on goodwill EBREEE 15 194,728 -
Net loss on disposal of property, BEME BEEZHEZE
plant and equipment 5% 5R 6(c) 1,123 630
Valuation gain on an KEYELENS
investment property 13 - (200)
Interest income B U A 5 (7,667) (8,899)
Dividend income R B A 5 (900) (900)
Changes in fair value of other HtemEEZ ARE
financial assets 2 5 10,332 —
Net finance costs B 7% & 558 6(a) 88,107 96,997
Net income on a financial EETERERIFHRA
guarantee issued 5 (5,660) (5,660)
Equity-settled share-based RREEEURO N2
payment expenses RIERX 1,179 1,387
Changes in working capital: LEEEH:
Decrease in inventories FEZRD 31,676 2,653
(Increase)/decrease in trade JiE I BR R & H A e IR
and other receivables 2 (3gm),/mA (149,685) 160,489
Increase in trade JE A1 BiR TR B HL At 8 1 3K
and other payables il 40,513 121,563
Net cash generated from REEXEBEEZFERS
operations 99,289 556,679
Income tax paid B TS 26(a) (14,192) (14,275)
Net cash generated from RETHEEZFERS
operating activities 85,097 542,404

1 1 6 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mERETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB)  (UAA B Z71)
2019 2018
—E-NE —ZT-N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
ft i AR¥F T ARBEFT
Investing activities REED
Payments for the purchase of BEWE BERZEMNK
property, plant and equipment (17,845) (26,108)
Proceeds from disposal of property, BREYZX  KE M&EZTE
plant and equipment B 1,013 956
Payments for acquisition of W B 2 2 1R
properties 17 (170,000) (200,000)
Repayment of loan receivables from EUE = F B FUERK
third parties 56,946 96,100
Proceeds from redemption of short- & [0] 58 B3% & FT 15 2018
term investments 1,726 3,893
Payment for loan receivables to REWERRAE =R
third parties (45,846) (86,200)
Interests received B2 U F B 5,941 5,006
Dividends received from investments #Eth & EEREHES
in other financial assets O)idSN 900 -
Dividends received from investments AIEHE SR EEIREF
in available-for-sale BRSNS
financial assets - 900
Payment for investments in joint REGELEMNK
ventures - (1)
Net cash used in investing RETEBHFEAZFRS
activities (167,165) (205,454)
Financing activities &R B
Proceeds from new bank loans HrigiRIT ERFTISIE 22(b) 1,097,896 281,097
Proceeds from new other loans T H A B KT S 5KIB 22(b) 240,000 142,176
Repayment of bank loans BEIETEX 22(b) (988,237) (419,816)
Repayment of other loans BEEMER 22(b) (334,176) (117,000)
Proceeds from shares issued under  FERRHERTE|3E7T 2 IR TS
share option scheme A 27 = 2,844
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash R BITR LR, ()
at bank 22(a) 19,383 (11,000)
Proceeds from advances from B3 AN T B P15 58
related parties - 32,000
Other finance costs paid Hh 2 1 g & B AR 22(b) (170,028) (151,569)
Net cash used in financing MEITBHFEAZERS
activities (135,162) (241,268)
RS EHEIZERERA T
BN -NEER

<D R
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB) (LA AR¥EZ51)
2019 2018
—E-NE —T-N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it ARMFR AREFT
Net (decrease)/increase in cash BeRBSEEEBEBRHZZF
and cash equivalents (R 2) /& (217,230) 95,682
Cash and cash equivalents atthe F#HEHERRLSEZEIER
beginning of the year 22(a) 470,569 375,056
Effect of foreign exchange rate ¥ HBRSE o &
changes 113 (169)
Cash and cash equivalents atthe FREERRLSEEER
end of the year 22(a) 253,452 470,569

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 ffst: AEBMER T —\FHNA—HHXERSF

April 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 119 to 256 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 8 August 2000 as
an exempted company with limited liability under
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. The shares of the
Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 23 October
2000. The consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2019 comprise
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”). The principal activities of the Group
are the operation of department stores, a shopping mall
and supermarkets in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

(BGIF=EERH BRIAAREZS)

YNEIR-—¢2
HESEHEZERER AR (AR
AR -_EEZEFNANEBRER
RE-—NN\—FRAERBRERM
Y BERRER AT - AR R ZK
MR=ZZFEEZF AT =HREE
EEBBAERSMBARAR ([HR
Frl) Eme-ARBEHE_ZTE—NF=
A=T—BLEFEZHEUBHERER
BARBIREKB AR (REAE
B AEBZFEXBANFEA
REME ([FE])&EAERS B
YR B AR TR 5 ©

B RREH

(a) BHIEHA
ZEVBHRREREMBERZ
BRMBHRELER ([BEYH
WEER]) - BRBEGFER
g((BEEFMAg])EHZ
FrAER 2 BRI BB RELE
A BB ER ([HEGE
A EaBAREE ARG
JRA- ZEM B RERITTEER
N EMED) 2 8RR AR E A K
BRES EmAR(TEHR
Al]) 2R BE IR - AR EIR
MZETBGABERIWBAT

BEGAIAGERMBE THA]
FMERT 2 BBM R E LR -
TRAKEZANPEFHEER
R R IR R R - BRER
It BN ER BG B  FR] R e
Al ERIPTSI BN E I R IAE R
AR Z S BREHER
ZEMHRERARE - BREER
R FE2() ©

HAESEREERERD
“E-N-NEFER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2019 comprise the Group and the
Group’s interests in joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except for investments in debt and equity securities
(see Note 2(g)), land and buildings held for own use
(see Note 2(h)) and investment property (see Note
2(i)) which are stated at their fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had net current
liabilities of RMB978,780,000 and incurred net
loss of RMB263,825,000 during the year ended
31 March 2019. Notwithstanding the net current
liabilities as at 31 March 2019, the directors
of the Company do not consider that material
uncertainties related to events or conditions
exist which, individually or collectively, may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. This is because:

—  the Group has unutilised banking facilities of
RMB318,534,000 as at 31 March 2019 (see
Note 24(e));

- new short-term bank loans of RMB216,000,000
have been drawn down by the Group after
the end of the reporting period;

-  the Group has entered into a loan facility
agreement of RMB120,000,000 with Ginwa
Investments Holding Group Limited (“Ginwa
Investments”), the ultimate holding company
of the Company;

— the Group has obtained indicative letter
from two financial institutions with the
intention of renewing current loan facilities of
RMB200,000,000 when they fall due in the
next twelve months;

—  based on a cash flow forecast of the Group
for the twelve months ending 31 March 2020
prepared by the management, the Group
would have adequate funds to meet its
liabilities as and when they fall due for at least
twelve months from the end of the reporting
period.

Accordingly, the directors are of the opinion that
it is appropriate to prepare the Group’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 on a
going concern basis.

(BGIF=EERH BRIAAREZS)

2 EBIBXREH(4A)

(b)

MBEBREREE (F)

R-ZE-NAFE=A=+—H K
SEHERBDEBEFEAARK
978,780,000t R EHE T — N,
FZA=+—HIEFERELR
1R AR 263,825,000 °
BER—_Z—NLF=A=+—H
BERBBEFE ARAES
RBA - WATFIEE R s ZE e n] g
SSAREEREL LR NEKE
ASREHNERNIBREBENERKR
TREE M TR

- RZE—hAE=ZA=+-—
H AEBEREHIRT
& A A R#318,534,000
70 ( R 5E24(e) )

- RHEHREAKRECDRE
B R HISRITERARSE
216,000,0007T :

- AEBBEARRAREER
BEReEREEZBREESF
Ram ([£ERE])FT
VERBREHBEARSE
120,000,0007T :

- AKECDKIIMKEEHE
BHEREER BEE
BRARE T @A 2 H
CHRBEFRBREARE
200,000,0007T

- BEEEERENLKE
BEHzE_—_ZT_FTF=H
=+—BHLE+=@AKIR
enEdill - AEEESE
TRES UNEBERBRE
HIR#EZE D+ =& A 2 5
FRRAE-

Rt AR R EZRE  BEFERL
EEERHEAKEEE_T N
FZA=tHULFEZHEE
BHRRDBEE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(BRIHFZEIER TAIUARKZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the Group’s
financial statements:

o HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

° HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

° HK(IFRIC)-Int 22, Foreign currency transactions
and advance consideration

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period, except for the
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with
negative compensation which have been adopted at
the same time as HKFRS 9.

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment
features with negative compensation

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial
instruments: recognition and measurement. It
sets out the requirements for recognising and
measuring financial assets, financial liabilities
and some contracts to buy or sell non-financial
items.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment
features with negative compensation
(continued)

The Group has been impacted by HKFRS 9 in
relation to classification and measurement of
financial assets. The Group has applied HKFRS
9 retrospectively to items that existed at 1
April 2018 in accordance with the transition
requirements. The Group has recognised the
cumulative effect of initial application as an
adjustment to the opening equity at 1 April
2018. Therefore, comparative information
continues to be reported under HKAS 39.

The following table summarises the impact of
transition to HKFRS 9 on retained earnings and
reserves and the related tax impact at 1 April
2018.

(BGIF=EERH BRIAAREZS)

2 EBIBXREH(4A)

() BFBERZD (F)

(i)

BB EERFEIFE
[£@T A (BEFEFEH
IR & 2E R BI5 2 15T
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise md:cated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment
features with negative compensation
(continued)
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RMB'000
ARETFT
Retained earnings REEF
Transferred from fair value reserve relating to financial assets # B8 HBERA L EEBEZHTA
now measured at FVPL Ba/tREERB AR ERS 7,251
Recognition of additional expected credit losses on financial  HERIZE EK At & 2 S REE 2 FI
assets measured at amortised cost BHEEER 1,991
Related tax HERIE (272)
Net decrease in retained earnings at 1 April 2018 RZE-NFNA—-—BHRBBFRD
et 8,970
Fair value reserve (recycling) ARERE (TEE)
Transferred to retained earnings relating to financial assets EZXHEBERALEEBESHA
now measured at FVPL BaeREERBNRERT (7,251)
Transferred to fair value reserve (non-recycling) relatingto  EEHZHB AR AR Bt EEZ
equity securities now measured at FVOCI A2 ERRNERESTENA
RERE (FEE) (29,340)
Net increase in fair value reserve (recycling) at 1 April 2018 RZ-ZE—\EWA—BHAL EREE
(T &I%) %8 (36,591)

Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

Transferred from fair value reserve (recycling) relating
to equity securities now measured at FVOCI at
1 April 2018

Non-controlling interests

Recognition of additional expected credit losses on financial
assets measured at amortised cost and decrease in non-
controlling interests at 1 April 2018
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment
features with negative compensation
(continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies and
the transition approach are set out below:

(a)

Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities

HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into
three principal classification categories:
measured at amortised cost, at fair value
through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) and at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL). These supersede HKAS
39's categories of held-to-maturity
investments, loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets measured at FVPL. The
classification of financial assets under
HKFRS 9 is based on the business
model under which the financial asset is
managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics.

The following table shows the original
measurement categories for each class of
the Group’s financial assets under HKAS
39 and reconciles the carrying amounts
of those financial assets determined
in accordance with HKAS 39 to those
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment
features with negative compensation
(continued)

(a)

Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities (continued)
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HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
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amount at 31 amount at 1
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Financial assets measured at BBERATEZSRER
amortised cost
Trade and other receivables MBS RE M 351,970 - (2,026) 349,944
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LEREE
Listed equity securities (Note (i) FiERER (M) - 296,400 - 296,400
Financial assets measured at FVPL B AAEBARZHH A
BRVEREE
Investment in subordinate trust units & EEFEER 2 & E
(Note (i) (Bizt(i) - 10332 - 10332
Financial assets classified as REZREIERE0%S
available-forsale under HKAS39  BATMHHEZEREE
(Notes (i) and (i) (W0 () 306,732 (306,732) - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment
features with negative compensation
(continued)

(a) Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

Under HKAS 39, equity securities not
held for trading were classified as
available-for-sale financial assets. The
Group elected to present in OCI for the
fair value changes of its investments
in A-shares in Ginwa Enterprise
(Group) Inc, a company listed in the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (“Ginwa
Enterprise A-Shares”) (see Note 18)
previously classified as available-for-
sale financial assets. These investments
are not held for trading. At the date
of initial application of HKFRS 9,
RMB296,400,000 were reclassified from
available-for-sale financial assets to
financial assets measured at FVOCI.

Under HKAS 39, investment in
subordinate trust units were classified as
available-for-sale financial assets. They
are classified as at FVPL under HKFRS 9.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #HZE—-—ZF— NWF=ZA=+—HIFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrFESEHHH B BIUANREZS)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment
features with negative compensation
(continued)

(a) Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities (continued)

For an explanation of how the Group
classifies and measures financial assets
and recognises related gains and losses
under HKFRS 9, see respective accounting
policy in Notes 2(g), 2(I)(i) and 2(n).

The measurement categories for all
financial liabilities remain the same.
The carrying amounts for all financial
liabilities at 1 April 2018 have not been
impacted by the initial application of
HKFRS 9.

(b) Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss”
model in HKAS 39 with the expected
credit loss (“ECL"”) model. The ECL model
requires an ongoing measurement of
credit risk associated with a financial
asset and therefore recognises ECLs
earlier than under the “incurred loss”
accounting model in HKAS 39.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIES B TAIKARKZ7)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment
features with negative compensation
(continued)

(b)

Credit losses (continued)

The Group applies the new ECL model
to financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents
and trade and other receivables).

The further details on the Group's
accounting policy for accounting for
credit losses, see Notes 2(I)(i)and 2(I)(ii).

The following table reconciles the closing
loss allowance determined in accordance
with HKAS 39 as at 31 March 2018 with
the opening loss allowance determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9 as at 1 April
2018.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment
features with negative compensation
(continued)

(@)

Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting
from the adoption of HKFRS 9 have
been applied retrospectively, except as
described below:

Information relating to comparative
periods has not been restated.
Differences in the carrying amounts
of financial assets resulting from the
adoption of HKFRS 9 are recognised
in retained earnings and reserves
as at 1 April 2018. Accordingly,
the information presented for the
financial year ended 31 March 2018
continues to be reported under
HKAS 39 and thus may not be
comparable with the current period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRI SHIEH  TAILAARKZ3)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment
features with negative compensation
(continued)

(c) Transition (continued)

e The following assessments have
been made on the basis of the facts
and circumstances that existed at
1 April 2018 (the date of initial
application of HKFRS 9 by the
Group):

- the determination of the
business model within which a
financial asset is held; and

— the designation of certain
investments in equity
instruments not held for
trading to be classified as at
FVOCI (non-recycling).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZFEE BRIUAREZS)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(ii) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with

customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
framework for recognising revenue and
some costs from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18, Revenue, which
covered revenue arising from sale of goods
and rendering of services, which specified the
accounting for construction contracts.

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements which
aim to enable users of the financial statements
to understand the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising
from contracts with customers.

The Group has elected to use the cumulative
effect transition method and has recognised
the cumulative effect of initial application
as an adjustment to the opening balance of
equity at 1 April 2018. Therefore, comparative
information has not been restated and
continues to be reported under HKAS 18. As
allowed by HKFRS 15, the Group has applied
the new requirements only to contracts that
were not completed before 1 April 2018.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have
a significant impact on when the Group
recognised revenue. However, the accounting
policy of customer loyalty programme is
affected as follows:

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018/19

‘---_“....-.'

BRRREH (&)

(c) BHXEH (£)
(i) ZEUBHEERFE155

[REEFES#H K]
BB ISR EER F 155
BUYBERKREBERFEELM
Wk REFTRANZEIE
R-BBPBRELDE
1S5RERR BB & ERIE
1858 [ | (REHEE
) I 1 £ AR 75 BT 22 AR B UK
HORIHEREAONEET
BRIE) -

& W 5 ¥R & 22 B 55 155R
TRa| NBEINE M K E B
BARE EERMHRE
ERETHREPAHNME
ErmkmE kR RENE
B 28 KRARITEE
o

AEBEBEEFHREBER
EBEER YR EKE
ARERESEEAE -
—)\E/MA— BRI
EHRNFAEE AL L RE
B EEY REERER
B EAFISSRTUR
W-EBR B HREER
FISHAFASERN A%
EEHE_T—\FMNA
—HZAIRTERD A LB
F#FHRE -

KRB B REER
1555 %t < & B fa] B 7 528
mIWEBEBEBRFZE - A
FRBETE N BR

REMTRE:

0% s&



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &% —
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(ii) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

Customer loyalty programme

Prior to adoption of HKFRS 15, customer
loyalty programme offered by the Group in
the allocation of a portion of the transaction
price to the loyalty programme using the
fair value of credits issued and recognition
of the deferred income in relation to credits
issued but not yet redeemed or expired. The
Group concluded that under HKFRS 15 the
customer loyalty programme gives rise to a
separate performance obligation because
it generally provides a material right to
the customer. Under HKFRS 15, the Group
allocated a portion of the transaction price
to the customer loyalty programme based
on relative standalone selling price. The
Group determined that, considering the
relative stand-alone selling prices, the amount
allocated to the customer loyalty programme
should not be significantly different compared
to the previous accounting policy.

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity interests
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those equity interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those equity interests that meets the definition of
a financial liability. For each business combination,
the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the period between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s equity interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(e)

(continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire equity
interests in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Any equity interests retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see Note 2(I)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the
Group or Company and other parties contractually
agree to share control of the arrangement, and have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale). Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of
the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of
the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group's
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see Notes 2(f) and 2(1)).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e) Joint ventures (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the joint venture, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For this
purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount
of the investment under the equity method together
with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment
in the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its joint
venture are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the investee, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate or vice versa, retained
interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment
continues to be accounted for under the equity
method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
investee at the date when joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see Note 2(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in joint venture are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(1)), unless classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &% —
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

(9)

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess
is recognised immediately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see Note 2(])).

Investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’'s policies for investments in debt
and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associate and joint venture, are as
follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are
recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investment. The
investments are initially stated at fair value plus
directly attributable transaction costs, except for
those investments measured at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL) for which transaction costs
are recognised directly in profit or loss. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUANREZ %))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(g) Investments in debt and equity securities
(continued)

(@) Policy applicable from 1 April 2018

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group
are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held
for the collection of contractual cash
flows which represent solely payments
of principal and interest. Interest income
from the investment is calculated using
the effective interest method (see Note

2(v)(vi)).

—  fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) - recycling, if the
contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal
and interest and the investment is held
within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both the collection of
contractual cash flows and sale. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of expected
credit losses, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method)
and foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from
equity to profit or loss.

- fair value at profit or loss (FVPL) if the
investment does not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost
or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the
fair value of the investment (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.

Ty
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &% —
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(g) Investments in debt and equity securities
(continued)

(a)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018 (continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVPL unless the equity investment is
not held for trading purposes and on
initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the
investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through
profit or loss. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised
in profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policy set out in Note 2(v)(v).

Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018

Investments in securities held for trading
were classified as financial assets measured at
FVPL. Any attributable transaction costs were
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the
end of each reporting period the fair value was
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(BRIHFZEIER TAIUARKZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

BRRREH (&)

(continued)

(9)

Investments in debt and equity securities
(continued)

(b)

Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018 (continued)

Dated debt securities that the Group had the
positive ability and intention to hold to maturity
were classified as held-to-maturity securities.
Held-to-maturity securities were stated at
amortised cost (for impairment see Note 2(I)(i) —
policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018).

Investments which did not fall into any
of the above categories were classified as
available-for-sale financial assets. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value was
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity
in the fair value reserve (recycling). Dividend
income from equity investments and interest
income from debt securities calculated
using the effective interest method were
recognised in profit or loss in accordance
with the policies set out in Notes 2(v)(v) and
2(v)(vi), respectively. Foreign exchange gains
and losses arising from debt securities were
also recognised in profit or loss. When the
investments were derecognised or impaired
(see Note 2(I)(i) — policy applicable prior to
1 April 2018), the cumulative gain or loss
recognised in equity was reclassified to profit
or loss.

(h) Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings held for own use are stated at
their revalued amount, being their fair values at
the date of the revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amounts of these assets
do not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair values at the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIES B TAIKARKZ7)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BIBREEE(£)
(continued)

(h) Property, plant and equipment (continued) (h) M¥E -BEREE (&)

Changes arising on the revaluation of land and
buildings held for own use are generally dealt
with in other comprehensive income and are
accumulated separately in equity in the property
revaluation reserve. The only exceptions are as
follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that
it exceeds the amount held in the reserve in
respect of that same asset immediately prior to
the revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or
loss.

Residential properties held for own use and other
items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see Note 2(1)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any
related revaluation surplus is transferred from the
property revaluation reserve to retained profits and
is not reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

()

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual values, using the
straight line method over their estimated useful lives
as follows:

Land and buildings held for own use
carried at fair value EF

Residential properties held for own
use carried at cost and leasehold
improvements

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Motor vehicles BT A

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the
cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an
asset and its residual value are reviewed annually.

No depreciation is provided in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

Investment property

Investment property is land and/or building which
is owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
Note 2(k)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment property is stated at fair value, unless it
is still in the course of construction or development
at the end of the reporting period and its fair value
cannot be reliably measured at that time. Any gain
or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property
is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment property is accounted for as described in
Note 2(v)(iii).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()]

(k)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see Note 2(1)).

Intangible assets are not amortised while their
useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any
conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that
asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted
for prospectively from the date of change and is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MBHRRNTE
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Leased assets (continued)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in
equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term except
where the property is classified as land and
buildings held for own use (see Note 2(h)) or
an investment property (see Note 2(i)).

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(@) Policy applicable from 1 April 2018

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for ECLs on the following items:

- financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and
cash equivalents and trade and
other receivables);

- debt securities measured at FVOCI
(recycling)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIES B TAIKARKZ7)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SIHEReH (£)
(continued)
(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets () EEEBRREERE (&)

(continued)

() EMITAZEFEREE

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(continued) (&)
(@) Policy applicable from 1 April 2018 @ BEZZE—-—NFH@EA
(continued) —HREER B E
(%&)
Financial assets measured at fair value, EARBEFENER
including equity securities measured at BE(BREALE
FVPL and equity securities designated at T2 RHEEEHT AR

FVOCI (non-recycling) are not subject to

W SRR S RIETE

the ECL assessment. BAREF=EEES
et AE b2 W
(TR 88 ) v ERE
F)HAEETEBE
BB
Measurement of ECLs FrTEREEEE
ECLs are a probability-weighted EHEEEEARE
estimate of credit losses. Credit losses &5 18 B9 B R 0 #E 1
are measured as the present value of S EEEEBUMEA
all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the JEHAIR & EFEMIRE
difference between the cash flows due (ANBEA N ENT
to the Group in accordance with the AEBENRERER
contract and the cash flows that the AEE AU ELHY IR
Group expects to receive). TREBZBEHNER)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

(a)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following discount
rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

- fixed-rate financial assets and trade
and other receivables: effective
interest rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation
thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets:
current effective interest rate;

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group
is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without
undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

(a)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from
possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date;
and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from all
possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which
the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are
always measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting
date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

(a)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since
initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition.
In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs
when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in
full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any
is held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90
days past due. The Group considers both
guantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2018/19

‘---_“....-.'

2

(BRIEZFEE BRIUAREZS)

BRRREH (&)

U]

FEBEREERE (&)

() EMITAZEFEEE

(&)
(a)

BE-Z—-N\FHAH
—HEBREAZHERE
(&)

FrTEAHEEEE
(&)

RATEHEtbEemIT A
e A% B R
ER1N2EABEHEE
EEOEERE K
FEMITAMNEER
S BV RERIAKE
WMAEEF EHIE
T BB ERAE
ERREFEHNTE
HEEEENSET

=
E= -

15 F B b 78 & 12 00
HAEERMIAENEE
[ B2 5 470 54 B 3R LA 2
ERBEEENE K
SESHERFER
R AW Z R B B
fEMEeR T AL
EHHRR R EHL
EBEEFHTEE K
SERABEZNOERA
RRATRER AN E B &
BREFRIRTE (W0
BHEE L (W
) )WERTRAAK
EERHEIMHEEE
BEER: H(i)emE
EE B HA90K B - B /B
BEENEH - A&
EezEAEA RN
TEAEEER B8
RRATKERREES
NHBZKAKE N
T BN A] 1S KO AT RE M
Bxto



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

(a)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(continued)

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of
principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

-  existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on
the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise md:cated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

(a)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(continued)

Depending on the nature of the
financial instruments, the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or
a collective basis. When the assessment
is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics, such
as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment
to their carrying amount through a
loss allowance account, except for
investments in debt securities that are
measured at FVOCI (recycling), for which
the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
in the fair value reserve (recycling).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

(a)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance
with Note 2(v)(vi) is calculated based
on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset is
credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes the following
observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of
the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter into bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise md:cated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

(a)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(continued)

— significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of
financial difficulties of the issuer.

Werite-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset or contract asset is written off
(either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when
the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject
to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that
was previously written off are recognised
as a reversal of impairment in profit or
loss in the period in which the recovery
occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIES B TAIKARKZ7)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SIHEReH (£)
(continued)
(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets () EEEBRREERE (&)

(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments () EMITAZEEEE
(continued) (&)

(b) Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018 (b) RZZE—NFHAH—

Prior to 1 April 2018, an “incurred loss”
model was used to measure impairment
losses on financial assets not classified as
at FVPL (e.g. trade and other receivables,
available-for-sale investments and held-
to-maturity debt securities). Under the
“incurred loss” model, an impairment
loss was recognised only when there
was objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment
included:

—  significant financial difficulties of
the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

— asignificant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment in an
equity instrument below its cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MBHRRNTE
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

(b)

Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018
(continued)

If any such evidence existed, an
impairment loss was determined and
recognised as follows:

For trade and other receivables
and other financial assets carried
at amortised cost, impairment loss
was measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective
interest rate, where the effect of
discounting was material. This
assessment was made collectively
where these financial assets shared
similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and had
not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which were assessed
for impairment collectively were
based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - % —ﬂi A=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIES B TAIKARKZ7)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BItBREE (&)
(continued)
(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets () CEEEBEREERE (&)

(continued)

() EMITAZEFEREE

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

irrecoverable was written off
against the gross carrying amount
of those assets directly. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account
were reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly were recognised
in profit or loss.

(continued) (&)
(b) Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018 by RZZE —)\¢@ A
(continued) —HATERZBR
(&)
If in a subsequent period the amount iR EEEsE
of an impairment loss decreased R E AR
and the decrease could be linked A AR A
objectively to an event occurring after BB B SRR
the impairment loss was recognised, BEEBREEY
the impairment loss was reversed SMERE - AR
through profit or loss. A reversal of an BEEEERER
impairment loss was only recognised FRHEE] < REEHE
to the extent that it did not result in B #8% [B] 12 12 3f %
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding BYEENRE
that which would have been BERBENTEFE
determined had no impairment loss 7 £ B SR Rk (LS
been recognised in prior years. B EEE R
BENEATAE
T LARER
When the recovery of a trade i FE WS BR R S I
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allowance account. When the a0 8% AH B R (B S
Group was satisfied that recovery 18 - RIS EER
was remote, the amount considered A] Yz [B] e s BR 3R

BB R ELD
AR S A =
ZEHEEHEEN
SEEE R
e - HiR

Y@ 2 A 2 1 B
wRPEANE
' AR Rk
FRE[E - %ﬁ%ﬁﬁw

1%451@2}%' EE
BEMEr 28R
b= Wﬁgnu

HAESEREERERD
“E-N-NEFER

<D R



. 4
156

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise md:cated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

(b) Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018
(continued)

For available-for-sale investments,
the cumulative loss that had been
recognised in the fair value reserve
(recycling) was reclassified to
profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that was recognised
in profit or loss was the difference
between the acquisition cost (net
of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in profit
or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in
profit or loss in respect of available-
for-sale equity securities were not
reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value
of such assets was recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses recognised in
profit or loss in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities were
reversed if the subsequent increase
in fair value could be objectively
related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in
such circumstances were recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIES B TAIKARKZ7)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SIHEReH (£)
(continued)
(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets () EEEBRREERE (&)

(continued)

(ii) Credit losses from financial guarantees

(i) ERHMBERZEERS

issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially
recognised within “trade and other payables”
at fair value, which is determined by reference
to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction
for similar services, when such information
is obtainable, or to interest rate differentials,
by comparing the actual rates charged by
lenders when the guarantee is made available
with the estimated rates that lenders would
have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of
the guarantee, the consideration is recognised
in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or
loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount
initially recognised as deferred income is
amortised in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUANREZ %))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SIHEREH (£)
(continued)
(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets () FEEBRREERE (&)

(continued)

(i) ERHMBERZEERS

(ii) Credit losses from financial guarantees

issued (continued) B (E)
(a) Policy applicable from 1 April 2018 (@ BZZE—N\FHA—
H #EiE A 2 R

The Group monitors the risk that the
specified debtor will default on the
contract and recognises a provision
when ECLs on the financial guarantees
are determined to be higher than the
amount carried in “trade and other
payables” in respect of the guarantees
(i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers
changes in the risk of default of the
specified debtor since the issuance of the
guarantee. A 12-month ECL is measured
unless the risk that the specified debtor
will default has increased significantly
since the guarantee is issued, in which
case a lifetime ECL is measured. The
same definition of default and the same
assessment of significant increase in
credit risk as described in Note 2(I)(i)

apply.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(ii) Credit losses from financial guarantees
issued (continued)

(a)

(b)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(continued)

As the Group is required to make
payments only in the event of a default
by the specified debtor in accordance
with the terms of the instrument that
is guaranteed, an ECL is estimated
based on the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss
that it incurs less any amount that the
Group expects to receive from the holder
of the guarantee, the specified debtor
or any other party. The amount is then
discounted using the current risk-free
rate adjusted for risks specific to the cash
flows.

Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018

Prior to 1 April 2018, a provision would
be recognised if and when it became
probable that (i) the holder of the
guarantee would call upon the group
under the guarantee and (ii) the amount
of the claim on the group was expected
to exceed the amount carried in “trade
and other payables” in respect of the
guarantee.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUANREZ %))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at each end of reporting period
to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment (other
than land buildings held for own use
stated at revalued amounts);

—  intangible assets;

—  goodwill

- non-current prepayments for acquisitions
of properties;

- investment in a joint venture; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the
Company'’s statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

. 4
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIES B TAIKARKZ7)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SIHEReH (£)
(continued)
(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets () EEEBRREERE (&)

(continued)
(iii) Bt RnBEEZRE
(&)

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

- Calculation of recoverable amount -

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

(iv) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see Notes 2(I)(i) and 2(I)(ii)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - % —ﬂi A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIES B TAIKARKZ7)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SIHEReH (£)
(continued)
(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets () EEEBRREERE (&)

(continued)

(iv) Interim financial reporting and impairment
(continued)

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill and available-
for-sale equity securities are not reversed in
a subsequent period. This is the case even if
no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates. Consequently,
if the fair value of an available-for-sale
equity security increases in the remainder
of the annual period, or in any other period
subsequently, the increase is recognised in
other comprehensive income and not profit or
loss.

(m) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method
and comprises all costs of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to
the sales proceeds of items sold in the ordinary
course of business subsequent to the financial year
end date or to management estimates based on
prevailing market conditions.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise md:cated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(q)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance
for credit losses (see Note 2(I)(i)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
allowance for credit losses (see Note 2(1)(i)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs and,
where applicable, the fair value of the embedded
derivative financial instruments. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings
are stated at amortised cost with any difference
between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Convertible preference share capital

Convertible preference share capital is classified as
equity if it is non-redeemable, or redeemable only
at the Company’s option, and any dividends are
discretionary. Dividends on convertible preference
share capital classified as equity are recognised as
distributions within equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(BRIFZFER TRIKARKZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

(s) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts
are stated at their present values.

(ii) Share-based payments
- Share option scheme

The fair value of share options granted
to employees and service providers
is recognised as an employee cost or
operating expense with a corresponding
increase in capital reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date
using the Black-Scholes Model, taking
into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(s) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Share-based payments (continued)

Share option scheme (continued)

During the vesting period, the number
of share options that is expected to vest
is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to
profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).

Share award scheme

The shares awarded under the share
award scheme are acquired from open
market. The net consideration paid,
including any directly attributable
incremental costs, is presented as “Shares
held under share award scheme” and
deducted from equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(s) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Share-based payments (continued)

Share award scheme (continued)

For shares granted under the share
award scheme, the fair value of shares
granted to employees is recognised as
an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in capital reserve within equity.
The fair value is based on the closing price
of the Company’s shares on grant date
plus any directly attributable incremental
costs. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the shares, the
total fair value of the shares is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the shares will vest.

During the vesting period, the number
of shares that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to profit
or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of shares that
vest with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s) Employee benefits (continued)

(t)

(ii) Share-based payments (continued)
- Share award scheme (continued)

When the awarded shares are transferred
to the awardees upon vesting, the related
weighted average acquisition cost of
the awarded shares vested are credited
to “Shares held under share award
scheme”, and the grant date fair value
of the awarded shares vested are debited
to the capital reserve. The difference
between the related weighted average
acquisition cost and the grant date fair
value of the awarded shares vested is
transferred to retained profits directly.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the period comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate to
business combinations, or items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the period, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

Where investment property is carried at its fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2(i), the amount of deferred tax recognised
is measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of this asset at its carrying value at the
reporting date unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather
than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of
deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIES B TAIKARKZ7)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BIBREEE(£)
(continued)
(t) Income tax (continued) (t) FrB# (&)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
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recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
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(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities (u) BERIREE

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUANREZ %))

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(v) Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods, the provision of
services or the use by others of the Group’s assets
under leases in the ordinary course of the Group’s

business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, or the
lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is

after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group's revenue and other

income recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Sale of goods and net income from

concession sales

Revenue arising from the sale of goods
and net income from concession sales
are recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the goods. No
revenue or net income is recognised if
there are significant uncertainties regarding
recovery of the consideration due, the possible
return of goods, or continuing management

involvement with the goods.

(ii) Service fee income

Service fee income from the operation
of department stores, shopping mall and
supermarkets is recognised when the related

services are rendered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE=—FT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v) Revenue and other income (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are
earned.

Customer loyalty programme

The Group’'s customer loyalty programme
awards customers credits which entitle the
customers to the right to exchange for
products offered under the customer loyalty
programme and gives rise to a separate
performance obligation. The Group allocated
a portion of the transaction price to the
customer loyalty programme based on relative
standalone selling price. Such amount is
deferred and revenue is recognised when the
programme credits are redeemed and the
Group has fulfilled its obligations to supply the
products offered under the customer loyalty
programme. Deferred revenue is also released
to revenue when it is no longer considered
probable that the programme credits will be
redeemed.

Dividends

Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v)

(w)

Revenue and other income (continued)
(vi) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost or
FVOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit
impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see Note 2(I)(i)).

(vii) Income from financial guarantees issued

Income from financial guarantees issued is
recognised over the term of the guarantees
(see Note 2(I)(ii)).

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional currency
of the entity to which they relate using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated into the functional currency of
the entity to which they relate using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &% —
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(w) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(x)

(y)

The results of operations which have a functional
currency other than RMB, the Group’s presentation
currency, are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, are translated into RMB at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(y) Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group.

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group's
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

The Group’'s revenue is substantially derived from
retail customers in the PRC and the Group’s
operating assets are substantially located in the
west region of the PRC. Accordingly, no segment
analysis based on geographical location of the
customers and assets is provided.

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Notes 12, 13, 15, 25 and 28 contain information
about the assumptions and their risk factors relating
to valuation of land and buildings held for own use,
investment property, goodwill impairment, fair value of
share options granted and financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value. Other key sources of estimation
uncertainty are as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(a) Expected credit losses of receivables

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses (i.e. the present value
of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of
receivables. Receivables are categorised by individual
characteristics of each customer. The Group
estimates the loss allowance at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses for receivables based
on the ageing of overdue balances, repayment
histories of individual debtors, debtor credit-
worthiness, historical write-off experience, existing
customer-specific and market conditions and
forward-looking information.

The Group considers the following indicators when
assessing the credit risks, such as the changes in
macroeconomic conditions, probabilities of default
and internal or external credit ratings, or expected
operating performance of the customer, etc. At
every reporting date the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking information are analysed. Such assessment
involves a significant degree of judgement by the
management.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of long-lived assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of a long-lived asset may not be recoverable,
the asset may be considered “impaired”, and an
impairment loss may be recognised in accordance
with accounting policy for impairment of long-
lived assets as described in Note 2(I). The carrying
amounts of long-lived assets are reviewed
periodically or when indications are identified in
order to assess whether the recoverable amounts
have declined below the carrying amounts. When
such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount
is reduced to recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In determining the
value in use, expected future cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant judgement relating to the
level of revenue and amount of operating costs.
The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of the recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of the level of revenue
and amount of operating costs. Changes in these
estimates could have a significant impact on
the carrying value of the assets and could result
in additional impairment charge or, except for
goodwill, reversal of impairment in future periods.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets, after taking into account the estimated
residual values. The management reviews the
estimated useful lives and the residual values, of the
assets regularly in order to determine the amount
of depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The determination of the useful
lives and the residual values, are based on historical
experience with similar assets. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MBHRRNTE
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(d) Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses and deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the deferred tax
assets can be utilised. In determining the amount
of deferred tax assets to be recognised, significant
judgement is required relating to the timing and
level of future taxable profits, after taking into
account future tax planning strategies. The amount
of deferred tax assets recognised at future dates are
adjusted if there are significant changes from these
estimates.

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the
operation of department stores, a shopping mall
and supermarkets in the PRC.

Revenue represents the sales value of goods sold to
customers, net income from concession sales, rental
income from operating leases and management and
administrative service fee income. Disaggregation
of revenue from contracts with customers by major
products or service lines is as follows:

3

(BRISHHEH  BRINUAREZS)
FEFHE R G (&)

(d) EEHIE

{EBRMN A AJ BE 3R R R FE R PR
ME B RIRER IR E ER 5L
RE)R IR R Ko Al HURE B =
REREEHREE -RNETEH
TR ETCHRAEES R -
EE RARRBIE T EIRAZR - 5
2 BRI FE R ) < I i S A2
JE 1EH B AR HE - 7% F AT H
REREE  NARK A HERE
EMAEECSREELHAR-

4 WEMDEB®RE

(a) Wz

AEEZEEXH/NTEE
LRERS BYPLRBRT

i

WaEnEPEE s EmiEEE
B -HFAEEEEFWA KE
REME HERA URERE
RATHRBEEBRA - & FE
MFWARER 2 282 9T
T~

2019 2018
—E-NE “2-\%F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFTT
Revenue from contracts with customers within BB HEREEHNESHEERN 2 RES
the scope of HKFRS 15 Fafizhi
Sales of goods HmiHE 596,232 644,650
Net income from concession sales BHEEHEEFRA 324,253 386,759
Management and administrative service fee income &2 RITHIRE B M A 56,148 53,958
976,633 1,085,367
Revenue from other sources H R W&
Rental income from operating leases LEREzZ RS KA 77,432 73,693
1,054,065 1,159,060
Disaggregated by timing of revenue recognition W HERAKE 8
Point in time s 2 920,485 1,031,409
Over time W& B ] 133,580 127,651
1,054,065 1,159,060
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIES B TAIKARKZ7)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WRMDEHE (&)

(continued)
(a) Revenue (continued) (a)

Wz (&)

The Group’'s entire revenue is attributable to the
market in the Xi‘an City, PRC. No analysis of
geographical information is therefore presented.

The Group engages in the retail business, and
accordingly, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s customer base is diversified and
the Group has no customer with whom transactions
have exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue for the
year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: RMBNil). Details
of concentrations of credit risk are set out in Note
28(a).

Information on gross revenue

Gross revenue represents the gross amount arising
from the sales of goods, concession sales charged
to retail customers, rental income from operating
leases and management and administrative service
fee income charged to tenants.

A ) 2 BUGE T R EPR
i e EiL - LR 2 5 IR AR
S -

$%@?ﬁé$%@%¥a”% )z AN

RAESERA AEENERE

Wzt BHE-_ZT—NF=
A=T—BIEFEAREEWE
SEBAEERFZIODNER
(ZE—NF: ARBZT) o5
ERREFRFHEIHT AN
28(a) °

HBKSEEZEHR

Ut ER M AATER

FZBrEEHEE KREKEH
B2 HE WA K AP WEZ
EENMITHRRBERA 2 B -

2019 2018

—E-AEF —N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBF T ARBF T

Sales of goods 2 im 8 5 596,232 644,650

Gross revenue from concession sales A EENE AR 1,999,289 2,320,766

Rental income from operating leases KEREHEEZ7HE WA 77,432 73,693
Management and administrative service & 3% & 77 BUR & U A

fee income 56,148 53,958

2,729,101 3,093,067

Further details regarding the Group’s principal
activities are disclosed below.

ERAREEEERE E—FFF

SR T XHE -
-
S a3 W §°
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(BRIHFZEIER TAIUARKZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by lines of
business. In @ manner consistent with the way in
which information is reported internally to the
Group's most senior executive management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following
two reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

(i)

Department stores and shopping mall: this
segment operates 6 department stores and a
shopping mall.

Supermarkets: this segment operates 7
supermarkets.

Segment information

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results attributable
to each reportable segment on the following
bases:

Revenue and net income and expenses
are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to revenue and net income
generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments.
However, assistance provided by one segment
to another is not measured.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &%= ==
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment information (continued)

The measure used for reporting segment profit
s “adjusted EBITDA” i.e. "adjusted earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation”, where “interest” is regarded as
including interest income, and other financial
charges and income, and “depreciation
and amortisation” is regarded as including
impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets and valuation gain or loss on investment
property. To arrive at adjusted EBITDA, the
Group’s earnings are further adjusted for
items not specifically attributed to individual
segments, such as head office or corporate
administration costs. No inter-segment sales
have occurred for the year ended 31 March
2019 and 2018.

Assets and liabilities are not monitored by the
Group’s senior executive management based
on segments. Accordingly, no information on
segment assets and liabilities is presented.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Group's most
senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the year ended 31
March 2019 and 2018 is set out below.

B 7% R R Y &

FE-NF=ZA=+—HLULFE
(BrIF=B1EH

D/\jLXAEIngd_Ei/)

4 WEMDBEE (&)

(b) ZE|/SE (&)

(i)

DEER (E)
BRBEnEarzh
VA A [ £ FEEBITDA | -
B[4 82 2 Rt F B
HE - TERBHEHAZA
FMl-EPIFE]BEF
BUWAREAME X H &
WA - mIFTEREE] B
REREEREREEZ
REBEEEEME A
Bl amsEEB BTEL
FEEBITDA NEE 2 &
FI T ¥ R W EFIIE T B
FME R 5 &6 2 38 B {EH #
—fﬂ% U0 48 9% = B 3k
NAITHEA -REZE =
E—NER_FT—N\F=
A=+—BL&E "I
DESFE A E o

lZ%@E@Fﬁﬁﬂw
EoH - EESIEE
LEBEARZERNZR-

uT%ﬁﬁW$§lZﬂ
BEDMEHTRET A
SBzERRAEERE A

HESHEE-T—NF
=A=+-RALFERS
—E-N\E=A=t—

BiEFEDRER NG
DEBRH

HAESEREERERD
“E-N-NEFER

-
183

<D R



T

184

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUANREZ %))

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WHNDHHRE (&)

(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) 2w (&)
(i) Segment information (continued) (i) ZZBEH (E)
2019
“2-nE
Department
stores and
shopping mall Supermarkets Total
BEBER
BYHO B& TS At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARE T ARETF T
Disaggregated by timing of RUWERABEIE
revenue recognition
Point in time IRy 24 658,679 261,806 920,485
Over time BE 5 ] 106,075 27,505 133,580
Revenue and net income IREEZBHERFRAR
from external customers THREIBHERZ
and reportable segment A
revenue and net income 764,754 289,311 1,054,065
Reportable segment profit ~ WL S PEF (LHE
(adjusted EBITDA) EBITDA) 178,625 17,531 196,156
2018
—T-N\F
Department
stores and
shopping mall Supermarkets Total
BEASR
BOHL AR5 @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT
Disaggregated by timing of B aERREEE
revenue recognition
Point in time IR 24 766,053 265,356 1,031,409
Qver time I8 5 [ 104,644 23,007 127,651
Revenue and net income from  4MNREP 2 Wz KFRA K
external customers and RS o e %
reportable segment revenue A
and net income 870,697 288,363 1,159,060
Reportable segment profit ARED R F] (LA
(adjusted EBITDA) EBITDA) 283,047 13,278 296,325
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(BRIFZFER TRIKARKZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WHNDHHRE (&)

(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)
(ii) Reconciliation of reportable segment

(b) ZE|/SE (&)

(i) "I E D EEFE R

profit
2019 2018
—E-h#E —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT AR¥F T
Reportable segment profit A ¥R 45 7 26 A 196,156 296,325
Other net income H Ao F WA 3,895 17,658
Depreciation expenses WERY (143,350) (141,959)
Impairment losses on goodwill EEREEE (194,728) -
Valuation gain on an investment KEYEAERE
property - 200
Net finance costs BEERFHE (88,107) (96,997)
Unallocated head office and ROEAAI R EETHRRAS
corporate administration expenses (21,673) (28,567)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BT (B18) %A (247,807) 46,660
5 OTHER NET INCOME 5 HFEkA
2019 2018
—E-AEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT AR FT
Interest income FEWA 7,667 8,899
Net income on a financial guarantee issued 2 %174 BHIER 2% WA 5,660 5,660
Government grant BT 5 K - 1,810
Dividend income % 2 U A 900 900
Changes in fair value of other financial HiteMEELARER
assets (10,332) =
Others HAi = 389
3,895 17,658

>
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B3ESH 58 T AIUANREZ %))

6 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6 PBRBiAT (BER) ER
(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BRELAT (EEB), & FE Mk, (5
(crediting): A)

(a) Net finance costs () MBERFE
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-)N\E
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFR AREFL
Interest expenses on bank and other TR HEME R 2 8% H
loans 157,464 146,509
Bank charges and other finance costs  $R1TE R R H MK E B 12,042 4,741
Total borrowing costs BEERA 169,506 151,250
Less: interest expense capitalised into 35 : @ B AL AURE W £ FB R 3
prepayments for acquisitions of A2 MERX
properties (79,809) (53,333)
Finance income on loan receivables RURE=FERZHBERA
from third parties (1,591) (922)
Net foreign exchange loss NS b 1 2
88,107 96,997

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate
of 6.70% per annum for the year ended 31 March

2019 (2018: 5.96%) (see Note 17).

HE-_Z—NF=HA=1+—H
I FEEERABETF6.70%

—E - N\F:596% ) ZthRE
ANME (R HIEE17) -

(b) Staff costs (b) EIRA

2019 2018
“E-hE —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR FT
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe TEREMBF 127,746 130,725

Contributions to defined contribution A 7E %8 (& 2R (R 51 2 4 3¢
retirement plans 16,320 15,737
144,066 146,462

g
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIES B TAIKARKZ7)

6 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6 PBRBiAT(EE) BN (E)
(continued)
(b) Staff costs (continued) (b) EIRAE (E&)

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes managed
by the local government authorities, whereby
these subsidiaries are required to contribute to
the schemes at 20% of the employees’ basic
salaries. Employees of these subsidiaries are entitled
to retirement benefits, calculated based on a
percentage of the average salaries level in the PRC,
from the above mentioned retirement schemes at
their normal retirement age.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance for employees under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by an independent trustee. Under the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the plan at
5% of the employees’ relevant salaries, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant salaries of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest immediately.

The Group has no further obligation for payment of
other retirement benefits beyond the above annual
contributions.

AEERPBEXZZHBEBRRZ
BEZ2EM T BTRBEEREZE
BE RGBS B %F
MEARAZBREEAHEZ
20% (A& F T &I R - RIF Lt
BKETE ZFHBAREER
EHIERRNFRIEEER bt
BRI ZERPEFHHEEK
FEDLLAHE ZRIKNEF

AEETREEFERHIERES
HEIRDI RE B REERNZ BE
R T2 EBE M —fEmH 1%
AEEE ([REESFE]) -
siEE T E A —ERBLZEA
B 2 ERMREE - RIBRTE
FE BXREEEHERE
B EZ5% (8 AEBE
& IR /A30,000% 7T ) A5t &4
o MR E & AT 82 KBNS R
= o

BRE Dt SR RSN N
BMEREMRARENNRZE
Fo

HAESEREERERD
“E-N-NEFER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z—=
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

—NF=ZA=+—HIFE
(BRIEZFEE BRIUAREZS)

6 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6 BRBiAT (EB) uF (&)
(continued)
(c) Other items () HfEA
2019 2018
—E-hF —N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFTT ARBFT
(Note)
(Ktaz)
Auditors’ remuneration: ZEREE -
— statutory audit service - EAEZHIRE 4,000 3,800
— other services - Hi IR - 280
Impairment losses on trade and other — F&E U BR 2% K E 4 i W 3% 2 R (B
receivables BB 17,394 =
Net loss on disposal of property, plant  EE¥¥ - MER&E 2 ERE
and equipment FER 1,123 630

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 at 1 April
2018. Under the transition methods chosen,
comparative information is not restated. See note

ffet: REBR - N\FHA—
HEXREREE
R 2957 R IR PR A BIR

I mEE

2(0). BRI AREY - BT
+2(c) °
7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HEBERAEBH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) mEBEERAZHEIE:
profit or loss represents:
2019 2018
—E-hE —N\&E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT ARBFT
Current taxation (see Note 26(a)): RNEATRIE (R HIE26(a))
— Provision for PRC Corporate Income Tax — A [ (b 25 P 15 71 {5 13,557 20,250
— (Over-)under-provision in respect of ~ —BEFE GBERE) BET
prior years & (5,013) 1,289
8,544 21,539
Deferred taxation (see Note 26(b)):  EERIE (B Hf26()) :
- Origination and reversal of temporary —¥ i =2 7 &4 k& [O
differences 7,474 1,473
16,018 23,012
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and

(BGIF=EERH BRIAAREZS)

REBRBRAMEH (&)

(b) BEXHRE (FE) &

accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax MREBABREZRAGTUOT :
rates:
2019 2018
“E-NF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMF T ARK T
(Loss)/profit before taxation BrEiAT (E51R) % F (247,807) 46,660

Briian (B18) g Az T
IR AR IS R A R
BEaN 2 ERRESE
( 2 B2 ~ (i) & (i) )

Expected tax on (loss)/profit before
tax, calculated at the rates
applicable to profits in the tax
jurisdictions concerned (see Notes

(i), (i) and (iii)) (57,870) 16,944
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses N B] Fak 2 H 2 #7552 & 56,555 9,196
Tax concessions (see Note (iv)) HRIEER (AHEY)) (5,841) (12,909)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not  RIERRE) B EE 2 BT

recognised TE 28,187 8,492
(Over-)/under-provision in respect of BEFE (EBREEME)

prior years BETRE (5,013) 1,289
Income tax FriS i 16,018 23,012
Notes: Bt -

(i)

(ii)

The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%). No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made,
as the Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong did not have assessable
profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year
ended 31 March 2019 (2018: RMBNil).

The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in countries other than the PRC
(including Hong Kong) are not subject to any
income tax pursuant to the rules and regulations of
their respective countries of incorporation.

(ii)

AR RALBERE S MK
2 KB AR BB AT SR
BHMEE165% (ZF— )\
F:16.5%) cHRAR A K&
KNEBRE B AR 2 K
BAREZE-_Z—HhE=A
=+ —BIFETEEHNE
BRNER 2 EERER (=F
—N\F:ARBZTT) i
R BB FISFAEL B -

ARBRAEERPE (24
BB ) ASN B R R ik Sz 2z Bt
BRRIREE S B At B
R AR ROER BABMER
PSR

HAESEREERERD
“E-N-NEFER
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

7

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax
rates: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

The subsidiaries of the Group established in the
PRC are subject to PRC Corporate Income Tax rate
of 25% for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018:
25%).

Certain subsidiaries of the Group established in
the PRC obtained approvals from the respective
tax bureaux in 2012 that they are entitled to tax
benefits applicable to entities under the Second
Phase of the Western Region Development Plan of
the PRC, and enjoy a preferential PRC Corporate
Income Tax rate of 15% for the calendar years from
2011 to 2020.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIES B TAIKARKZ7)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8 EEHM

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section BIFEEE R ARG FE383(NE KA A
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part (BEESNZER) ROIE 2805 5=
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about ZEEHMIT

Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2019
“E-NE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors'  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e 2ER
EShe ENEF REEL BHTHER @it

RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETR  ARKTR ARRFr  ARETT  ARETZ

Executive directors #EE

M. W Yijan (Chairman) 8-BEE (1) 4279 695 - 5 4,989
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter RALEE 1,540 246 - 15 1,801
Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John (resigned on 31 SZERE(RZE-N\%

October 2018) TRA=T-HEf) 1123 - - 9 1,132
Mr. Sha Yingjie DENE 82 - - - 8
Non-executive directors FHUTEE
Mr. Chen Shuai BREN % & - - - - -
Mr. Cao Yonggang BxRLE - - - - -
Mr. Qu Jiagi MmFE LA 92 - - = 9
Independent non-executive directors ~ BLU#H7TEE
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng i £ 4 257 - - - 257
Ms. Sun Zhil (resigned on 19 October 2018) ZREZ L (R=F—/\F

TATARRE) " - - - (0]
Dr. Cao Guog EEUEL 257 - - - 257
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai BfErs 257 - - - 257

8,028 94 - 39 9,008

>
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z—=
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

—NF=ZA=+—HIFE
(BRIEZFEE BRIUAREZS)

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8 EEFM (&)
2018
“5-N\F
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind honuses  contributions Total
¥5 2HR
EELE ENE BEEL RUGHEER gt
RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARETT  AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETrH
Executive directors HTEE
Mr. W Yijian (Chairman) R-B5k(2E) 424 739 - 15 4,99
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter RALEE 1527 301 - 15 1,843
Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John (appointed on 2 May £ZE %4 (R=F—t£1 A=A
2017) EZ () 1,745 - - 14 1,759
Mr. Sha Yingjie PEALE 81 - - - 81
Non-executive directors FHTEE
Mr, Chen Shuai BRLE - - - - -
Mr. Cao Yonggang ExllLE - - - - -
Mr. Qu Jiagi MmFE LA 9 = = = 9
Independent non-executive directors ~ BU#H7TEE
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng gl %4 255 - - - 255
Ms. Sun Zhil BBt 255 - = - 255
Dr. Cao Guog EEUEL 255 - - - 255
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai LEELE 255 - - - 255
8,707 1,040 - 44 9,791
9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EEFAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, FRAEZReHFALH =ZFZ(=ZF
three (2018: three) are directors whose emoluments are —NF: =R)REF MAMEFE
disclosed in Note 8. ERM TSI EE
The emoluments in respect of the other two (2018: two) EREMME (ZE—N\F:WE) A
individuals are as follows: T2BEMT:
2019 2018
—E-hE —N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR FT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4« 2EL R E 4 E YR T 1,946 1,894
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIHE R 146 15
2,092 1,909
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

The emoluments of the two (2018: two) individuals who
are not directors and who are amongst the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are within the following
bands:

(BRISEHH  BAUARELS])
BEHAL (E)
M& (—F—\F: W& UFERA

BRASERLEZRSFH AL ZHERIA
TZHEMNFLATEE:

2019 2018

—E-NE —F-N\F

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

R AR {E R A 2

HK$ Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z7%8 021,000,000/ 7T = 2

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7t £1,500,000/% JT. 2 —
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 10 Hftz2EW =

Tax effects relating to each component of other
comprehensive income:

B

Htt 2R am S B0 BB IHEAR

b
Z

I

2019 2018
“E-NE —E-N\F
Before tax Tax Net-of-tax  Before tax Tax  Net-of-tax
amount  expense amount amount expense amount
BRBLE A HNEBE  BREE MERTIE
¢ BERX &5 £8 HERX e

RMB’000  RMB’000

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBTFRT ARETRT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT

(Note 26(b)) (Note 26(b))
(Hfat26(b)) (KfzF26(b))
Surplus on revaluation of land E EHEE B i1 ) 12
and buildings held for own ~ Fz &
use (see Note 12) (R H1E12) 24,677 (5,982) 18,695 93,955 (23,309) 70,646
Other financial assets/ Hite BEE,/HH
Available-for-sale financial &4 ®BEE:
assets:
Net movement in the fair AL EEEE S %
value reserve (43,800) 6,569 (37,231) (60,880) 10,120 (50,760)
Exchange differences BB B2 EEEY
on translation into =%
presentation currency (14,438) - (14,438) 20,529 - 20,529
Other comprehensive income H 1% &% (33,561) 587 (32,974) 53,604 (13,189) 40,415

There was no reclassification adjustment relating to
components of other comprehensive income during the
year (2018: Nil).

FRATEFREMEEKEHOZE
HMOBHABR(ZFT—\F &)

HAESEREERERD
“E-N-NEFER

-
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

11 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE

(BRIEZFEE BRIUAREZS)

1M 2R (EER) BF

(a)

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is
based on the loss attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB261,575,000 (2018: profit
of RMB27,234,000) and the weighted average
number of 2,323,693,000 ordinary and convertible
preference shares (2018: 2,313,025,000 ordinary
and convertible preference shares) in issue during

the year calculated as follows:

BREX (FE) EF
BERER(EB) /BFDE
RARGRREMLMEBBEAR
#261,575,0007C (ZZF— N\
& AR AR#27,234,0007T)
MRARFERNE BEITINEFEY
£02,323,693,000% & @ A% &
ABEEER(ZZT—N\F:
2,313,025,0000% & 38 i & 7] 32
REER)GTEWDT

Issued ordinary and convertible
preference shares at 1 April
(see Note (i)

Effect of shares issued under share

option scheme (see Note 25(a))

REUA—HZERTERK
RO -Fidie
(R ()

R FE A Rt 8 BT D
T & (Hi250))

Weighted average number of ordinary R=A=+—HZ EBRK

and convertible preference shares at

31 March (see Note (i)

Note:

AL PR S AR AN AE P19 2
(RHEG))

(i) The holder of the convertible preference shares
is entitled to receive the same rate of dividends/
distributions as the holders of ordinary shares.
Accordingly, for the purpose of the calculation of
basic earnings per share, the convertible preference
shares issued have been included in the calculation
of the weighted average number of shares in issue.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018/19
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2019 2018
—g-hE —FTN\F
‘000 ‘000

7 TR
2,323,693 2,312,693
- 332
2,323,693 2,313,025

GEE

()  FIHAREERRITA AR RS
RS AR 2 L XRERF
REmike Bt et EE
BRERBFME  FESHET
R A A P19 BB B AT A RT3
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIES B TAIKARKZ7)

11 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 11 SR (E58) BA(2)

(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (b) BREE (HE) EF
The calculation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share is GREE (BB BAINDHE
based on the loss attributable to equity shareholders REARBREEEEEARE
of the Company of RMB261,575,000 (2018: profit 261,575,000 (=T — \F:
of RMB27,234,000) and the weighted average AR AR #27,234,0007T ) K i
number of 2,323,693,000 ordinary and convertible #E 15 12,323,693,000/4% & A
preference shares (diluted) (2018: 2,430,923,000 MR AT R B AR (H5E) (=
ordinary and convertible preference shares Z— )\ :2,430,923,0000% &
(diluted)), calculated as follows: BN AT EBENR (#E) )
FTEWMT

2019 2018

—E-0F —F-N\F

‘000 ‘000

Fi® Fi

Weighted average number of ordinary R=A=+—HzE@KR LA
and convertible preference shares at % & 5t I% o0 F 15 £

31 March 2,323,693 2,313,025
Effect of conversion of convertible ERiBRRELERTE

preference shares - 117,707
Effect of deemed issue of shares under 18 BIRIEA R AIE MR ET 2%

the Company’s share option schemes T 2 &£ - 191

Weighted average number of ordinary R=A=+—BZEBKR KX

and convertible preference shares AT AR (B 55 AR AN 39 &1
(diluted) at 31 March (#58) 2,323,693 2,430,923

>
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(BRIEZFEE BRIUAREZS)

12 % BERERE

Residential
properties
Land and held for own
buildings held  use carried
forown use  at cost and Furniture,
carried at fair leasehold  fixtures and Construction
value improvements  equipment Motor vehicles in progress Total
WARE BRI
SR FE FIERRAT
BRALHR WEREE HECRER
BF ES & EHTA FETR @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT
Cost or valuation: RASRMEE:
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+&MNA—H 2,925,710 462,705 102,639 7,440 11,814 3,510,308
Exchange adjustments 5 AR = (49 (1,768) (16) = (1,833)
Reclassification from investment  {EX BN EEFHH B
property (see Note 13) (BHE13) 34,100 = = = = 34,100
Additions AE - - 3,136 367 23,370 26,873
Transfer in/(out) 81/ (1) 2,416 29,795 1,690 - (33,901) -
Disposals RE - (11,474) (1,917) (677) - (14,068)
Surplus on revaluation BEER (EHH10)
(see Note 10) 93,955 - - - - 93,955
Less: elimination of accumulated i : i 25t E
depreciation (91,871) - - - - (91,871)
At 31 March 2018 WZE-NE=A=1—H 2964310 480,977 103,780 7,114 1283 3,557,464
Representing: B
Cost KA - 480,977 103,780 7,114 1,283 593,154
Valuation - 31 March 2018 HE-—2-\F
=A=t-H 2,964,310 - - - - 2,964,310
2,964,310 480,977 103,780 7,114 1,283 3,557,464
Accumulated depreciation and it E R HEFE:
impairment losses:
At 1 April 2017 W_E—+FWA—H - 265,661 62,764 6,091 - 334,516
Exchange adjustments s - (25) (1,491) (12) - (1,528)
Charge for the year REERE 91,871 35,515 14,261 312 - 141,959
Written back on disposals RERED - (10,378) (1,450) (654) = (12,482)
Elimination on revaluation E{f i (91,871) = = = = (91,871)
At 31 March 2018 RZZ-\$=A=+-H - 290,773 74,084 5,737 - 370,594
Net book value: FERE:
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\F=F=1t—H 2,964,310 190,204 29,696 1,377 1,283 3,186,870

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIES B TAIUARKZ7)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 ¥ BERRLE(£)
(continued)
Residential
Land and properties held
buildings held ~ for own use
for own use carried at cost Furniture,

carried at fair  and leasehold  fixtures and Construction
value improvements  equipment Motor vehicles in progress Total
REIARSIR 2

WRnESIe  RfERRLEE
BEEA  MRREE  KACRER
THRET VES afh By1a ERIR it
RMBOO)  RMBO00  RMBO0  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMB'000
ABRTR  ARRTn  ARBTn  AREFT  ARKTT  ARETx

Cost or valuation: HASME:
At 1 April 2018 R-E-\EMA-A 2,964,310 480,977 103,780 7114 1,283 3,557,464
Exchange adjustments EXHRE - E}) 1,155 - - 1,187
Reclassification from investment property A& ENEEH 78

(see Note 13) (BHi13) 38,600 - - - - 38,600
Additions NE - 2,121 3,461 - 1,112 17,29
Transfer in{out) g1/ (1) - 11,356 - - (11,356) -
Written off and disposal WHREE - (57,675) (6:813) (1,237) (414) (66,139)
Surplus on revaluation (see Note 10)  Eft&ék (EH#10) 24,677 - - = = 24,677
Less: elimination of accumulated B BEEE

depreciation (96,277) - - - - (96,277)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=T-H 2,931,310 437,411 101,583 5877 625 3,476,806
Representing: &
Cost AR - 437411 101,583 5871 625 545,496
Valuation - 31 March 2019 AE-ZZE-AEZAZ+-H 2931310 - - - - 2,931,310

2,931,310 437411 101,583 5871 625 3,476,806

Accumulated depreciation and ZHTERBERSE:

impairment losses:
At 1 April 2018 R-E-\EMA—H - 290,773 74,084 5731 - 370,594
Exchange adjustments B A% - yI} 1,081 - - 1,105
Charge for the year TEEFE 96,277 35,356 11,468 249 - 143,350
Written off and written back on disposals #i35 Rz Bk - (56,743) (6,306) (954) - (64,003)
Elimination on revaluation Bk (96,277) - - - - (96,277)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=1-H - 269,410 80,327 5,032 - 354,769
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=1-H 2,931,310 168,001 21,256 845 625 3,122,037

>
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of land and
buildings carried at fair value and
investment property

(i) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s land and buildings and investment
property measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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(BRIEZFEE BRIUAREZS)

12 Y% -BEKEE(E)

(a) BERAEIRZTHBREFR
REVMEZAAEFE

(i)

RREER

TREFNHERRIREE
WEEFE RSB 2 Tt
MBFULREMRLZ AR
B BRZARERA=4&
DAHIE (REBM B RS
ERIE® [ A EAFTE
ZEE)DE-BRAER
ENBZERTHIBEN M
B AR A SR 2 T B

RUERBERRERE

e F—HfAE:EER
£ —Rw A s (8
Rt EBRBEESX
BERNAEMS 2K
RHAERE)FTEZ

DRfE

o ZEIARME:FRAEC=
i AN BUE (BIARAEZE
BB — 2 ATEERE A
) AW RFRAEKX
e R ABIET =
ZRARETAIERE
AEUR BEMISERIE
R 2 ABUE -

. E=HME:ERE
SR EL YN e
HEZARE:



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRI SHIEH  TAIAARKZ3)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 ME-BERRE (&)

(continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of land and (a) RAARBEIRZIHEEFR
buildings carried at fair value and RENEZDNAREE (&)
investment property (continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued) (i) AAREEK(E)

Recurring fair value

measurements gﬁﬁi\\ﬁﬁ‘ﬁ-é

Fair value measurements
categorised into Level 3

PEREF=ZRZAREFTE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARMFT ARETT

Land and buildings held forown use (e A~ + i RiESF 2,931,310 2,964,310

Investment property (see Note 13)  1&EWE (B H1zE13) 1,294,000 1,332,600

During the year ended 31 March 2019, there
was no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfer into or out of Level 3 (2018: no
transfer). The Group’'s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.

All of the Group’s land and buildings carried
at fair value and investment property were
revalued as at 31 March 2019. The valuations
were carried out by an independent firm of
surveyor, Roma Appraisals Limited, who have
among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in
the location and category of properties being
valued. The Group’s Chief Financial Officer has
discussion with the surveyors on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the
valuation is performed at each interim and
annual reporting date.

BHE_ZT— N =H
=t+—HLEFE TESF
— R ARz SR
BAFEBHE=R(=Z
—NF EBER) AEH
CHERBRBEEER R
EHAERAABEEBRS
oA E 2 s o

NEBAABRARBEYER
ZITHEREFUARESE
MER_-_ZT—HLFE=A
=+ —B#ETER - REBM
BER— BRI ERMTE
SRR HERAR (B8
RAEMmEg ra8  WAH
REGEYEMEHRY
A R EHELR) &
T-REHERFEREA
HETT IR (ER  AEB 2 E
FHEECEAEMT R
ERAMERERHESER -

-
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(BRIHFZEIER TAIUARKZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12 Y% -BEKEE(E)

(continued)
(a) Fair value measurement of land and (a)
buildings carried at fair value and
investment property (continued)
(ii) Valuation techniques and inputs used in
Level 3 fair value measurements
Valuation Unobservable
techniques input
FABER
fHER % BARE

BRAREINRZTHBREFR
REWMEZNARERNE (F)

(i) FE=RAREAEFER

Land and buildings held for own use

Market comparison

Average market unit

approach  sale rate (per sg.m)

BEERLIRET mELRE  THNGENER
(8F5K)

Investment property Market comparison  Average market unit
approach  sale rate (per sq.m)

RENE mEEE  THMSELER
(8F5K)

The fair value of land and buildings carried

at fair value and investment property located
in the PRC is determined using market
comparison approach by reference to recent
sales price of comparable properties on a
price per square meter basis in the relevant
market. Comparable properties of similar size,
characteristics and location are analysed and
selected for each property in order to arrive at
a fair comparison of their fair values. The fair
value measurement is positively correlated to
the average market unit sale rate.

Fair value adjustment of investment properties
is recognised in the line item “Valuation gain
on an investment property” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Z1GETER AR E
Range
L
2019 2018
“E-NF “F-)\f
RMB RMB
ARH ARE
14,000 ~ 53,000 14,000 ~ 56,000
28,809 29,088

RPEzERRESR

ZEHRBFARKREY
EZRArEEAMSBLEER
EEE CHEHK2EAMHIL
BYEZBBTISEEY
KEBEEFEZOHE
BE-RAFLEREREY
R2nrE DMREE
MR R RMERIZ
ALBME-ZARER
ENARFHMISEME
{EH AR -

REWMEZ AARERAEBR
RAEBRERZI[REYE
fhEd e | BARER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRI SHIEH  TAIAARKZ3)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
(a) Fair value measurement of land and
buildings carried at fair value and
investment property (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Valuation techniques and inputs used
in Level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)

Surplus on revaluation of properties held
for own use are recognised in other
comprehensive income in “Property
revaluation reserve”.

All the gains recognised in profit or loss for the
year arise from the properties held at the end
of the reporting period.

Depreciated cost of land and buildings
held for own use carried at fair value

12 Y% -BEKREE(E)

(a) BAREIRZLHREFR
REWMEZAAREE (F)

(i) FE=RAREAEFER
ZIEEEERBABE
(%)
HIFEERMEZERABH
R IMEEEFEE] AR
ARE M A o

AERBmER AR
SmELEREHPRTEZ

W o
(iii) ALXREIRZIFEEH
T REFITERAE
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®EFRT ARETT

Had the revalued land and LA R B BR 2 E i
buildings carried at fair value FAEF AR AR 25T E
been carried at cost less MREBEYE REE
accumulated depreciation and  # A&
impairment losses, the carrying
amount would have been 1,654,384 1,667,947
(b) XEEHE

(b) Title ownership

As at the date of this report, the Group was
in the progress of applying for registration of
the ownership certificates for certain of its
properties. The aggregate carrying value of such
properties as at 31 March 2019 was approximately
RMB26,594,000 (2018: RMB27,408,000). The
directors are of the opinion the Group is entitled to
lawfully own and occupy these properties.

RAFREBH AEEBEEE
HETMERBECLMBEE
E ZEMER—_T—HNE=A
T+ BZBEEREAENAR
#26,594,0007T (=& — )\ F:
AR #27,408,0007T) - EER
B AEEEEAEFERRGA

>

seagmrenzay 201

<D R



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Br3ESH 585 T AIUAN REZ %))

13 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

13 BEWE

2019 2018
—EB-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%Fr ARBTFIT
Valuation: fh{E :
At 1 April R A—H 1,332,600 1,366,500
Reclassification to property, plant and EEHHEEYE  WE LR E
equipment (see Note 12) (RFtaE12) (38,600) (34,100)
Fair value adjustments DNRERE - 200
At 31 March W=A=+—8 1,294,000 1,332,600
14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14 BEFEEE
Trademark-
use-right
EEE A
RMB’000
ARBTFIT
Cost: A
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 and RZE—tFHA—R ZT—N\F
31 March 2019 —A=+—HEk=_F—h&F
—f=1-pg 424,812
Accumulated impairment losses: ZIREEE :
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 and RZE—tFHA—R ZT—-N\F
31 March 2019 —A=+—HEk=_F—h&F
—A=+—8 -
Carrying amount: BREIE :
At 31 March 2018 and 2019 R_B-N\FR_ZE-NF
—A=4-p 424,812

The Group’s trademark-use-right represents the Group’s
use of the trademark “Ginwa” which the Group has
acquired through its acquisitions of department store and
supermarket operations in prior years.

T
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIES B TAIUARKZ7)

15 GOODWILL 15 B8
RMB'000
ARKF T
Cost: R
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 and RZFE—tFHOA—RB ZZT—-N\F
31 March 2019 ZA=E+—HBRZZ—NF
=A=+—H 1,451,814
Accumulated impairment losses: PR EEE :
At 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018 RZBE—tFHA-BRZZF-N\F
=—A=+—8H 563,663
Impairment losses WEEE 194,728
At 31 March 2019 RZE2—hF=A=+—H 758,391
Carrying amount: BREIE :
At 31 March 2019 R-_ZE-—hF=A=+—H 693,423
At 31 March 2018 R-_ZE-N\F=ZRA=+—H 888,151
Impairment tests for cash-generating units HERECRSELENZREN
containing goodwill and intangible assets with AR EEHRAUFERAFEFH2EEE
indefinite useful life =
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating HELBOTHRKE > BENE LR
units identified according to the department store and BB EEIREEANEE 2 B3 5IR
supermarket operations acquired as follows: SELEN:
2019 2018
Country of operation “E-NE ZE-)N\F
and operating segments RMB'000 RMB’000
EREZRREED ARBFT AEETTL
Century Ginwa Company Ltd. (“Ginwa Bell Tower") Department stores and shopping mall - PRC 396,569 515,069
tREEROERAR ([R7EEE]) AEEGRENTL-F
Golden Chance (Xian) Limited ("GCX") Department stores and shopping mall - PRC 74,036 150,264
BEERRENTL-FE
Ideal Mix Limited Department stores and shopping mall and
supermarkets - PRC 222,818 222,818
BEBSRENT L RBRMG -
693,423 888,151

>
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

15 GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful life (continued)

Notes:

(i)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the financial
performance of the Group's department store and
supermarket operations, as a consequence of the
slowing down of economic growth in the PRC as well
as a consequence of the intense competition from
surrounding shopping malls and online retail sales,
has underperformed management’s expectations.
Management performed impairment assessments of the
relevant cash-generating units to which goodwill and
intangible assets has been allocated.

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units
were determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period. These cash flow projections adopted annual sales
growth rates ranging from -21% to 2% (2018: from
1% to 6%), which are based on the Group’s historical
experience with these operations and adjusted for other
factors that are specific to each cash-generating unit.
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using an estimated growth rate of 3% (2018: 3%). The
cash flows are discounted using discount rate of 15%
(2018:16%). The discount rates used are pre-taxed
and reflect specific risks relating to the respective cash-
generating units.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIES B TAIUARKZ7)

15 GOODWILL (continued) 15 B&E (&)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units BREBEZReELENZHER

containing goodwill and intangible assets with ARAEHBRAUCHAFHZELE

indefinite useful life (continued) E(&)

Notes: (continued) Hitat: (&)

(i) As a result of the above impairment test, impairment (i) @AREdRERNS  mEREEIE
losses on goodwill of approximately RMB194,728,000 4N #194,728,0007T R 2R B B4
were recognised in the consolidated statement of profit EmMireBaRkER PRR_Z
or loss for the current financial year, which relates to the ZNENARENSEEERKZ
cash-generating units of Ginwa Bell Tower acquired in T—ZF+ - ARERNGCXM R €
August 2008 and GCX acquired in December 2010. EEEf-

The key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations R eELEUNERAEBENE
for the above two cash-generating units are as follows: FriE AE BB R B zA T
At At
Key assumptions 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
R=-B—-N&F RZT—N\F
BERR =A=+-8 =RA=+—H
Ginwa Bell Tower Annual sales growth rate for the first five-year period -21% - 2% 2% - 6%
EEEE BEOFPRANEHEERE
Annual sales growth rate beyond five-year period 3% 3%
LEPRBANFHEERE
Discount rate 15% 16%
BRI
GCX Annual sales growth rate for the first five-year period -16% - 2% 1% - 6%
BOFPRNEHEERE
Annual sales growth rate beyond five-year period 3% 3%
hEPREBAFHEERE
Discount rate 15% 16%
BRI %
Any adverse change in the assumptions used in the ST E IR & B A B U /Y AT U [E] < FE A
calculation of recoverable amount of cash-generating FiT {5t PR B2 5% B0 1 ] 1~ 1) 2 8 5 B A=
units would result in further impairment losses. HE—TREEE-

>
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

16

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets

or liabilities of the Group.

(BRIEZFEE BRIUAREZS)

16 RENBAF

Proportion of ownership interest

RSBk E &
B (2 B A R -

ERRELL
Particulars of
Place of registered and  The Group's
establishment paid  effective  Held by the Held by Principal
Name of companies and operations up capital interest Company subsidiaries activities Legal form
HIR EEfik  AKEZ HAAE  AREAR

ARER XY ARRTER  ERER K5 2] IEXH EEFA

Ginwa Bell Tower* The PRC RMBARH 83.88% - 83.88% Operation of Limited liability

SrER # 235,500,0007C department store company

L ERELAT

Century Ginwa Urumai Shopping Mall  The PRC RMBA R & 100% - 100% Operation of Limited liability
Company Limited* (Note (i) B 50,000,007 department store company

ERETEAREENDLERAT gEEEEE  ARERLA
(Hitl)

Shaanxi Century Ginwa Tangrenjie The PRC RMBARH 100% = 100% Operation of Limited liability
Shopping Mall Company Limited* & 20,000,0007 department store company
(Note (i) HERERS BRELAT

Wﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ%%)\%ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁET
(Hrit(i)

Xi'an Century Ginwa Nandajie Shopping  The PRC RMBARH 100% = 100% Operation of Limited liability
Mall Company Limited* # 5,000,00070 department store company

Bzt RS AR OERAT L BRERRE

Xi‘an Century Ginwa Saigo Shopping  The PRC RMBA R & 100% - 100% Operation of Limited liability
Mall Company Limited* H 30,000,0007t department store company

RztherEaENERAA BERgEHES BREAR

Xi‘an Century Ginwa Shopping Mall ~ The PRC HK§ 100% = 100% Operation of Limited liability
Company Limited* H 65,000,000/ department store company

RZtR e EENERAA HERRES EREEAT

Xianyang Century Ginwa Trade and ~ The PRC RMBARH 100% = 100% Operation of Limited liability
‘Commerce Company Limited* # 3,000,00070 department stores company

REtEeEHEARAA and supermarkets BREAR

BEREERR
ity

Xi'an Yixin Property Management The PRC RMBAR 100% = 100% Properties Limited liability
Company Liited” i 536,885, 7507 management company

B EENZEREARAA NEER ERELAT

Shaanxi Qianhui Properties Company ~ The PRC RMBA R & 100% - 100%  Operation of shopping Limited liability
Limited* i 252,800,000 mall and properties company

RETEEXERAA management EREFAR

BEBENTLR
VESSE

Xi‘an Honghui Property Management  The PRC RMBA R & 100% - 100% Properties Limited liability
Company Limited* H 124,000,0007 management company

AZEENZERARAA ES BRELAT

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018/19
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIES B TAIUARKZ7)

16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16 REMBLTF (&)
(continued)
*  The English translation of the names of these companies * BERACRNEEEMBEZ
are for reference only. The official names of these FRAIZIEXBEBAP X BE-

companies are in Chinese.

Notes: e -
(i)  The subsidiary has ceased operation on 1 August 2016 (i) ZWBARBARKEEEETEER
due to unsatisfactory operational results. —E-RFNA—BEEILE=-
(iiy  The subsidiary has ceased operation on 31 January 2018 (ii) ?WJ% AIHREEEETEER
due to unsatisfactory operational results. 2 N\F-A=F+—BEFLE
The following table lists out the information relating TREH RN EEME—EE S RIEER
to Ginwa Bell Tower, the only subsidiary of the Group B ([FFERER]) 2HBAT S
which has material non-controlling interests (“NCI"). TEEEBEHE2EN - TX 2V 2H
The summarised financial information presented below BEREZE W AN AR RIFEEIE
represents the amounts before any inter-company -k
elimination.
2019 2018
—EB-NF —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMF T AREFT
Revenue W 5 274,204 339,112
Loss for the year REFEE (13,958) (22,244)
Loss for the year attributable to NCI  ZN4F & JE42E A% 4% 25 FE (G E5 18 (2,250) (3,586)
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,728,986 1,617,136
Current assets MENE E 617,733 732,270
Current liabilities mEaE (1,540,553) (1,491,845)
Net assets BEFHE 806,166 857,561
Net assets attributable to NCI B S e R B E R 129,954 138,239

>
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE

T

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

17 PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITIONS OF

(BRIEZFEE BRIUAREZS)

17 WEBYEZFEARE

PROPERTIES

RMB’'000
ARETFT
At 1 April 2017 N_E—LFMA—H 879,727
Additions =Byl 206,000
Interest expense capitalised EERNMEHF B 53,333

At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 RZE—NEFE=A=+—A8XK
—FE-\FMOAHA—H 1,139,060
Additions 1 70 176,000
Interest expense capitalised EERNMEEF B 79,809
At 31 March 2019 R—ZE—hh&F=A=+—H 1,394,869

The amounts represent partial payments made by
the Group for its intended acquisition of commercial
properties under development that are situated in the
PRC. On 4 December 2014, the Group, through Ginwa
Bell Tower, entered into an acquisition agreement with
Shanghai Huade Investment Company Limited (“Huade
Investment”), pursuant to which Huade Investment
agreed to procure a project company to develop the
above properties in accordance with the requirements
of Ginwa Bell Tower, and Ginwa Bell Tower agreed to
purchase part of the above properties for an aggregate
consideration of RMB1,651,112,750. The substantial
construction of the commercial properties commenced
in October 2016. During the year ended 31 March 2019,
a scheduled payment of RMB170,000,000 was made to
Huade Investment by the Group. These properties are
intended to be used by the Group to expand its retail
operations.

208 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018/19
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TEREEDEMEL 2 DI R R
“E-NF+_AWB AEEEB
CEEENE FBIEEREAR AR
([FEBIEE DI WERZ Bt
EEFRERERMEEE RRIRERTE
EREIKEBLAYE MeEEE
BENBKEAREK,651,112,750
THEEISS LA ME -BEMENE
BETER_ZE—A"F+ARA =
—E-NAE=A=t+—HItEE K
SEZFEREEREENRIARE
170,000,0007C ° 2 SR A KB
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIES B TAIUARKZ7)

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS/AVAILABLE- 18 HitemEE "WHEES
FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS MEE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T ARETFIT
Available-for-sale equity securities AEEEETES
(see Note (i) (B BaEG)) - 296,400
Financial assets at fair value through 2R AR {ETE B &8t A H b
other comprehensive income THERCEMEE
(see Note (i) (B HaEd)) 252,600 =
252,600 296,400
Note: Bt &z -
(i) These securities represent the 30,000,000 Ginwa () ZEFE%1530,000,0000 1 FEE
Enterprise A-Shares listed in the Shanghai Stock Exchange. FREMETMZ @EBEAR -
As at 31 March 2019, 30,000,000 Ginwa Enterprise RZZE—hFLA=1+H %ZH
A-Shares of these securities were pledged to secure one % 2.30,000,0000% & & 1b 5 AR%
of the Group’s short-term other loans (see Notes 24(a) and ERUAAANEE 2B PEMERIE
24(c)). AR (R sE24(a) &24()) °
SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS 19 BEHKRE
2019 2018
—EB-NF —E-)\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR% T ARETF T
Investments in debt securities with REHBEA=@ARNZ
original maturity within three months E# & 5% &
(see Note 22(a)) ( B Htat22(a)) - 150,429
Available-for-sale securities Al it B B 5 = 10,332
- 160,761
The debt securities represent wealth management BEEEAERATRSEERITZF
products issued by financial institutions in the PRC with BARESINETEE R IBITESR  WIE
guaranteed principal amounts plus fixed or variable B E2(9) T8 2 S 5T BURTER °

returns, and are recognised in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 2(g).

HAESEREERERD
“E-N-NEFER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Br3ESH 585 T AIUAN REZ %))

20 INVENTORIES 20 78
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBTFIT
Merchandises [En 38,916 69,779
Low value consumables KEZFER 2,907 3,720
41,823 73,499
An analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an RBRTWIAGEBRRZIEFE
expense and included in the consolidated statement of SEOMTWT :
profit or loss is as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F AR®TFIT
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEERERE 517,105 557,206
21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21 EWERF N EAEI R
2019 2018
—EB-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F ARMTFIT
Trade receivables from third parties, net fEU S =B8R - H1E E 1B
of loss allowance (see Note 21(a)) B (RKE210) 41,269 43,575
Amounts due from related parties JE U B8 3E A T 5RIB
(see Note 21(b)) (B HaE210b)) 3,712 1,615
Other receivables from third parties Ho{th fE W 55 = 5 5KI8
(see Note 21(c)) (R HK1aE21(c)) 370,723 265,893
Financial assets measured at amortised IZEEESEK At E 2 2R EE
cost 415,704 311,083
Deposits and prepayments: Re RIBNFKIE
— Value added tax recoverable — RIS AR 28,578 36,497
— Prepayments and deposits for —KEHEZENRIBEREZS
operating leases 4,398 4,390
— Other prepayments — H {th &~ 58 26,477 -
475,157 351,970

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(BRIFZFER TRIKARKZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)
Except for deposits of RMB1,788,000 (2018:
RMB1,758,000), all of the trade and other receivables
are expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses
within one year.

(a)

(b)

Ageing analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are trade
receivables (net of loss allowance) with the
following ageing analysis (based on the invoice
date) as of the end of the reporting period:

21

JE W B R I L PR WK (4E)

Big4e AR #1,788,0000T (—ZZF— )\

&E ¢

A B #1,758,0007T ) 51 FT B JE

Y BR R N LAt FEMGR T ER R I — & A
Yo [ml s i fR s th e

(a)

BRiiR 2 A7

BT A W BR R B B At FE LR 2 FE
WHRK (EHMBREEEE) N W
HFHIRREZ A Z R DT
T

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E—N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARKFIT

Less than 1 month LR —1E A 20,464 20,399
More than 1 month but less than — @AM FBLR=@EA

3 months 5,607 6,607

More than 3 months ={EANE 15,198 16,569

41,269 43,575

Trade receivables from third parties relate to credit
card centres owned by financial institutions and
tenants operating in the Group’s department stores,
shopping mall and supermarkets for whom there
were no recent history of default and have a good
track record with the Group. Further details on the
Group's credit policy and credit risk arising from
trade debtors are set out in Note 28(a).

Amounts due from related parties

The amounts due from related parties are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

(b)

FEU 58 = 75 BR 5K B8 p B TS A A
BEZ2ERRYLERAEREE
% BYR O RBRTISEE
ZHEFPER mMzSHERERP
WEMHEOCG A EANEEF
BRIFZABRS -BERAAEE
EEBRRERERELEZE
ERR#E—TERFERM T
28(a) °

PR BAE A T 5KE

FEM B E A L RIBAREER 2
B e 3 4 [ T AR R o

HAESEREERERD
“E-N-NEFER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(c) Other receivables from third parties

Included in the balance are receivables of
RMB343,221,000 at 31 March 2019 (2018:
RMB224,514,000) due from a third party which
provides services in managing the Group’s customer
loyalty programme, and the sale and usage of
customers’ prepaid cards within the Group’s
department stores, shopping mall and supermarkets
(hereinafter referred to as the “Prepaid Card
Management Company”).

22 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

(BRIEZFEE BRIUAREZS)

21 BWIRRREtEYRR (&)

() HtEWE=FRE
R—_ZTE—-—HAhE=ZA=+—
H BWE=ZFRBEAREK
343,221,000t (=& — )\ F:
AR #224,514,0007T) 2 5 A
e ZE=ZH (ATEEA
[T REEQA]) BAEER
EFEHENE RAKEEE
5 By O MBS RS
ERFERARFEMNRREEER
f%(o

22 RITEERFEERES
() BeRBLZAEABEBEEE:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T ARETFT
Cash at bank and on hand in the &R NKRIE NRITAETF
consolidated statement of financial N FEEIR &
position 544,690 614,681
Add: short-term investments m: REEE A=A
with original maturity Az REIEE
within three months (2 HaE19)
(see Note 19) - 150,429
Less: restricted cash at bank B XRIRITRES
(see Note (i) (RHEEG)) (291,238) (294,541)
Cash and cash equivalents in the  #HFABELRERZEL LRSS
consolidated cash flow statement Z£{EIEH 253,452 470,569

2 1 2 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018/19
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &% —
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

22 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND (continued)

(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
(continued)

Note:

(i)

Restricted cash at bank at 31 March 2019
represented bank deposits of RMB287,080,000
(2018: RMB286,000,000) pledged to secure the
Group’s bank loans (see Note 24(c)), bank deposits
of RMB1,858,000 sealed up by courts as a result of
legal proceedings against the Group’s subsidiaries
and bank deposits of RMB2,300,000 pledged to a
bank for the performance guarantee in relation to a
sales contract.

The Group's operations of department stores,
shopping mall and supermarkets in the PRC are
conducted in RMB. RMB is not a freely convertible
currency and the remittance of RMB out of
Mainland China is subject to the relevant rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

=

B 7% R R Y &

—NF=ZA=+—HILFE
(BGIF=EERH BRIAAREZS)

22 BTEERFERE (£)
() BLeRBEZEEREE:

(%)
Ffat -

(i)

R_ZE—NF=A=1+—HBH
XRBIIHESERISAEE
RITERMBEHRARITER
A R #287,080,0005T (=&
— \&F: AR ¥286,000,000
7T) (RHsE24(c)) - At &
NEBKBRRRERFD
M AR EHMRITERA
R #1,858,0007T M. 5k B 1T B
- THEEANMERMEK
FTFRITVBITHERARE
2,300,0007T ©

AEBRTEZBEERNS B
WD KRBTSR E XTI T
AARKEET ARERIES
RABMER  WE PR RbE
HARBERAS T BERFR
eV B REINEE B R A K AR
P ARER ©

HAESEREERERD
“E-N-NEFER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Br3ESH 585 T AIUAN REZ %))

22 RITHEERFEERES (&)
(b) METHEL>EEIUE

22 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

Payables
for
Bank Other interest
loans loans expenses Total
ERFE
BITER HMEX EH Mt
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARETT ARETT ARKTTT
(Note 24)  (Note 24)  (Note 23)
(KiiE24)  (MiiE24)  (BfE23)
At 1 April 2018 R=-ZE-N\EME—H 2,097,973 235,176 20,648 2,353,797
Changes from financing MERSRELEH:
cash flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans #IEETERFAESZIE 1,097,896 - - 1,097,896
Proceeds from new other loans 734 H fth & 5k FT 12 5018 - 240,000 - 240,000
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (988,237) = - (988,237)
Repayment of other loans BEEMER - (334,176) - (334,176)
Other finance costs paid Hofth 215 B & B AR - - (170,028) (170,028)
Total changes from financing B &R &R EE %
cash flows 109,659 (94,176) (170,028) (154,545)
Exchange adjustments ERAE 15,769 - 21 15,790
Other changes: H th % B
Interest expenses (Note 6(a))  FBFX (Kf#6(a)) = = 89,697 89,697
Capitalised borrowing costs BERLEBERA
(Note 6(a)) (Ktzt6(a)) - - 79,809 79,809
Total other changes Hin &5 @s8 - - 169,506 169,506
At 31 March 2019 R=B-NEF
=H=+—8 2,223,401 141,000 20,147 2,384,548

2 1 4 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIES B TAIUARKZ7)

22 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND (continued) 22 $B{T&#ERFERE (&)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) MEFTHEEZABZHE
financing activities (continued) (%)

Payables
for
Bank Other interest

loans loans  expenses Total
RIS

BITER  HMER £2H st

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETFTT AREFIT ARKFTT ARKEFTT

(Note 24)  (Note 24)  (Note 23)

(KHizt24)  (KizE24)  (KfzE23)

At 1 April 2017 R=B-—tFWMA—H 2,246,874 210,000 21,001 2,477,875

Changes from financing MERERERE:

cash flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans 733817 & sk FT12 5018 281,097 = - 281,097
Proceeds from new other loans ¥73% H i & 25 2K IB - 142,176 = 142,176
Repayment of bank loans BEPBTEDR (419,816) - - (419,816)
Repayment of other loans EEEMER - (117,000) - (117,000)
Other finance costs paid Hfth 215 B & B A = - (151,569) (151,569)
Total changes from RMERERELTE

financing cash flows (138,719) 25,176 (151,569)  (265,112)
Exchange adjustments ERAE (10,182) = (34) (10,216)
Other changes: H th 2 B
Interest expenses MERX

(Note 6(a)) (Mfzt6(a)) = = 97,917 97,917
Capitalised borrowing costs ~ EA&(LEER A

(Note 6(a)) (KiiF6(a)) - - 53,333 53,333
Total other changes Hith #8858 - - 151,250 151,250
At 31 March 2018 R=B-N\%F

=H=+-H 2,097,973 235,176 20,648 2,353,797
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Br3ESH 585 T AIUAN REZ %))

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23 EAERMRHMEASR
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt ARETFT
Trade payables arising from: FERBRFELA T SEES
— Concession sales — I EREE 816,531 704,058
— Purchase of inventories —-BERE 55,511 84,140
872,042 788,198
Amounts due to related parties FEfTREE A L FR3E (A HEE>))
(see Note (i) 8,002 35,941
Other payables and accrued expenses: E Btz M fEFTE -
— Payables for staff related costs —ENZETIHBEER 30,269 26,222
— Payables for miscellaneous taxes — FE S HERT 8,806 5,780
— Payables for interest expenses —ERFBRAX 20,147 20,648
— Payables for handling charges to the —ENENREE AR Z
Prepaid Card Management Company &IE & = 6,557
— Payables for operating leases —ERKEHREE 36,368 61,959
— Deposits from concessionaries —BHKERRREES
and customers 32,198 33,418
— Dividends payables — RS 5,682 5,548
— Others —H A 72,656 56,359
206,126 216,491
Financial liabilities measured at DE#ERATTEC2RAaE
amortised cost 1,086,170 1,040,630
Deferred income IR E YT A 6,908 8,264
Receipts in advance 18 4 A 42,001 46,423
1,135,079 1,095,317

T
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

All of the trade and other payables are expected to
be settled or recognised as revenue or net income or
in profit or loss within one year or are repayable on
demand.

Note:

(i)  The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

Ageing analysis

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables

23

(BGIF=EERH BRIAAREZS)

AR R E BN ()

T 75 & - BR 2% K E 4th & £~ ZUFE HR 5 R
—FREZBRERBRZFRAL
BRI IREKRER-

it -

(i) ﬁﬂﬂfﬁ#ﬁ % B R

B 2 A
;#)\JEHBE X Ko B At A 3R TR AN B

with the following ageing analysis (based on the maturity RS BR 2 BRic o i (IRZIEIR)
date) as of the end of the reporting period: ZZD"I? 3

2019 2018

—E-NF —N\&F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR FT ARETT

Due within one month or on demand R —1@& B A 2l Hi sk 3% & Sk i 5 f+f 872,042 788,198

RS ERHEZRERA A

BN -IEFR

-
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(BRIHFZEIER TAIUARKZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

24 BANK AND OTHER LOANS

(@) The Group’s short-term bank and other loans

24 RITREMER

(a) FAEEZEHRITREMER

are analysed as follows: DM
2019 2018
—EF-hnF ZF)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMF R ARKF T
Bank loans: RITER
- secured by Group’s bank deposits — i A 52 B3R 1777 UK 48
and guaranteed by the Company AR QD E &R 239,935 223,248
— secured by Group’s land and —HBAEE T REFER
buildings and guaranteed by Rz = NN S /N
the Company and a director —BEEER
of the Company 100,000 =
— guaranteed by the Company — B AR R ER 181,466 208,725
521,401 431,973
Other loans: EMENK:
- secured by the Group’s furniture, —HANEBRM KE K
fixtures and equipment and REERRBRQA] -
guaranteed by the Company, a AR —RESZ -A&H
director of the Company, ultimate — FARIERR A &) &M B
holding company and subsidiaries A & #&{%
of the Group - 50,000
— secured by future income right and  — F R 2R Y A # Rl 2 7K &2 B
equity interests in a subsidiary of — FAK B A &) & A% #E 1K 17
the Group - 20,000
— secured by the Group’s available- — p 7~ 2 [ 7] fit H & R 25
for-sale financial assets BHEER (ZHF24(c))
(see Note 24(c)) - 125,000
— secured by the Group's other —HAEEE MR EERAT
financial assets (see Note 24(c)) (2 HfaE24(c)) 121,000 -
— secured by future income right and  — g 7k 2 Iz A 1) 35 #0 K2
guaranteed by the Company and/ KRR, AR T
or a director of the Company —BEEER 20,000 40,176
141,000 235,176
Add: current portion of long-term i : KEISRITE X 2 BN HA
bank loans (see Note 24(b)) 2B ( B K aE24(b)) 204,000 125,000
866,401 792,149

T
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

24 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (continued)

(b) The Group’s long-term bank loans are
analysed as follows:

(BGIF=EERH BRIAAREZS)

24 BOREMER (&)

(b) AEEZRPRTERD W

T:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Secured by the Group’s investment HANEEREYE N -t K 1E
property and land and buildings FER WHEARA R, 5

and guaranteed by the Company ~ AAQAF—REEFER

and/or a director of the Company 453,000 335,000
Secured by the Group’s bank deposits F 78 E#R1T1E 2,3+ Hb
and/or land and buildings and RIEFER - WAHARDAR,
guaranteed by the Company and/ AR FT —REER, A
or a director of the Company and/or £E &R a] R
subsidiaries of the Group 1,249,000 1,331,000
1,702,000 1,666,000
Less: current portion of long-term  Jil: REFSRTERZ
bank loans (see Note 24(a)) BIEAER 10 ( & Hat24(a)) (204,000) (125,000)
1,498,000 1,541,000

The Group’s long-term bank loans are repayable as

REE 2 RERITE AR T 5 HARE

follows: Ei&:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFx ARKFIT
Within 1 year —F R 204,000 125,000
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFNRA 257,000 227,750
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZEBERFA 973,000 1,155,250
After 5 years FF#% 268,000 158,000
1,702,000 1,666,000

All of the non-current interest-bearing bank loans
are carried at amortised cost. None of the non-
current interest-bearing bank loans is expected to
be settled within one year.

P A JEBNEAET BARTT B S IR # 3H K
AARR - B EIERNEE BIRTTE KRR
HIRR—FANFE-

HAESEREERERD
“E-N-NEFER
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

24 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The following assets and their respective
carrying values as at the end of the reporting
period are pledged to secure the Group's
bank and other loans:

(BRIEZFEE BRIUAREZS)

24 ROKHEMER (&)

(c)

TIEEREZRAZREER
REEHAREWERUMERE
SEZRITREMBERZE
®:

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR AREFT

Property, plant and equipment M BB KRR 1,997,384 1,918,057

Investment property A E 1,294,000 1,332,600
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEEcREE

(see Note 18) (2 Hax18) - 296,400

Other financial assets (see Note 18) Hfh & @& E (ZH1:F18) 252,600 -

Cash at bank (see Note 22(a)(i)) RITHETF (R M aE22(a)()) 287,080 286,000

3,831,064 3,833,057

Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans are
subject to the fulfilment of covenants commonly
found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. If the Group were to breach the
covenants, the loans would become repayable on
demand. At 31 March 2019, none of the covenants
relating to the bank and other loans had been
breached.

At 31 March 2019, the Group's banking
facilities amounted to RMB500,000,000 (2018:
RMB500,000,000) were utilised to the extent of
RMB181,466,000 (2018: RMB208,725,000).
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(e)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIES B TAIUARKZ7)

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 RREZEEUROINZRS
TRANSACTIONS

(@) Share option scheme (a)

BRRESE

The Company has a share option scheme which
was adopted on 15 February 2011, whereby the
directors of the Company are authorised, at their
discretion, to invite employees and service providers
of the Group, including directors of any company
in the Group, to take up share options at HK$1
to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company.
For the share options granted in 2011, 6,975,000
share options will vest immediately from the date
of grant, and for the remaining 37,050,000 share
options, 50% will vest after one year from the date
of grant, another 30% will vest after two years
from the date of grant, and the remaining 20% will
vest after three years from the date of grant. Each
share option gives the holder the right to subscribe
for one ordinary share in the Company at HK$1.96
each, and is settled gross in shares. The share
options granted in 2011 have lapsed on 20 October
2017.

On 28 May 2013, 67,105,000 share options were
granted to directors of the Company and employees
of the Group under the above share option scheme.
Of the share options granted, 50% will vest one
year from the date of grant, 30% will vest two years
from the date of grant, and the remaining 20% will
vest three years from the date of grant. The share
options granted will lapse on 28 May 2019. Each
share option gives the holder the right to subscribe
for one ordinary share in the Company at HK$1.73
each, and is settled gross in shares.

AABER-_TE—F_A+H
HERMBRESTE Bt AR
RESERERNSRERER
AEBZIRBHES (BEAE
EEAKERRER)RIBT
4N A] RBE AR B E B AR
ERE R _E——FEBHY
BAHEM S 0 6,975,00017 & Ik
E¥eaRE B EREANTERE
&% T~37,050,00017 B A% &
T EYHESea R HAEE—
FREB BINB0%EEARTE
HERREMFELEB 5 T20% 5
CERHBPE=-"FERE-&
MERER A AR LER
1.968 TREALNR —RER
F&R& (D WA (D 2 EEE 2
Fle RZZFB——FRE 2 BRE
ER=—_ZE—t&F+A=-t+HX
R o

R-ZE—=FRAA=1+/1\H 1B
B EABRETSAQRF L
767,105,000/ B #E T AR A
EERAEEREE -BHZER
R 50% A5 B B BE—
FRBE 30%BREREBH
EREREBR UK T20%#
RIBEHAHRE=FEEE -RH
CEREENR_-_Z—-NAERA
“—tNABXRF-BHEKRERT
BB AT AER1.738TRE—
/NI L - A R A &)
EHEE R -

HAESEREERERD
“E-N-NEFER
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Share option scheme (continued)

On 30 May 2013, in order to comply with the
Listing Rules, 4,750,000 of the share options
granted to certain directors of the Company on 28
May 2013 were cancelled, and the Company has
replaced them with the granting of 2,300,000 share
options to these directors. Of the share options
granted, 50% will vest one year from the date of
grant, 30% will vest two years from the date of
grant, and the remaining 20% will vest three years
from the date of grant. The share options granted
will lapse on 30 May 2019. Each share option gives
the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company at HK$1.76 each, and is
settled gross in shares.

On 27 September 2017, 44,000,000 share options
were granted to service providers of the Group
under the above share option scheme. The share
options do not have a vesting condition and are
exercisable within a period of two years. Each share
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company at HK$0.32
each, and is settled gross in shares.

(BRIEZFEE BRIUAREZS)

25 BRBAHRA LN 2R
5 (&)

(a)
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R-ZE—=%FRA=1+H8 AR
ALEmRA - R=ZFT—=FAA
“HNBAEBTFETARRESEZ
4,750,00017 RS AR HEE 5288 - AN
AIJNE MZEE E® 12,300,000
DEERRAE AR Z SRR 1%
H 2 B ET  50% 8RN E R T
HEIRE—F1R5FEB  30% 8RN A
RHEHEBEMTRER UKRH
T20% G AR H B HAE = 615 55
B-RECZEBRESNR=-_Z—N
FRAZTHRB - BHERE
i 738 AR AEIR1.76/8 TR
R AR R @A - I LA
By 2 EAEE 2 REF| o

R-ZE—tFhLA=-_++H"
44,000,00017 BE B HEAR 15 _E 2l B
AR B T AKE 2 RIS AR
E-ZEBEREVTEFTBIRTER
AR FHREAITE - B ER
R T H AR AER0.32/8 7T
REBALNF —REEEIG - I
D EEBEE ZEF -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(a) Share option scheme (continued)

(i)

The terms and conditions of the options
granted are as follows:

(BGIF=EERH BRIAAREZS)

25 BREGEUROD T 2R

5 (&)

(a) BBRRAESHE (&)
() ERHBREZIRRRIE

HFm

Number of Contractual life of
instruments  Vesting conditions share options
TAHE BRE&K4 BRESHEFH
Share options granted to directors:
RTESCBRE:
-on 28 May 2013 5,250,000  One year from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE-=%RA-1TN\AH AR ASRE—F N
-on 28 May 2013 3,150,000  Two years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE-=FRA=TN\A BRI BHEmE NE
-on 28 May 2013 2,100,000  Three years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE-ZFRA-1+/\A BRLBHE=F NE
-on 30 May 2013 1,150,000  One year from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE-=4RA=1H BRI BHE—F N
-on 30 May 2013 690,000 Two years from the date of grant 6 years
—-RZB-=FRA=1H BREBHEMmF NE
-on 30 May 2013 460,000  Three years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE-=FRA=+H BRLBHE=F NE
Share options granted to employees
and service providers:
BYEERBEMUEE 2 BRAE:
-on 28 May 2013 25,927,500  One year from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE-=FRA-TN\AB BRHBHE—F N
-on 28 May 2013 15,556,500  Two years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE-=FRA=F+N\A BB HEmE NE
-on 28 May 2013 10,371,000  Three years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE-=FRA=F+/\A BRLBHE=F NE
- on 27 September 2017 44,000,000  No vesting condition 2 years
-RZE—+tFNAZT+A 3 2 55 B 1R A i F
Total share options granted 108,655,000
ERILBRIEES
HESTEHEERER DA
BN -NEER

-
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Br3ESH 585 T AIUAN REZ %))

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(a) Share option scheme (continued)

(ii) The number and weighted average
exercise price of share options are as
follows:

25 BEREGEHEURDBIMFZX
% (&)
(a) WM ()
(i) WRE>HERINETY

ITEBWMT :
2019 2018
“E-hE —T-N\F

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of share price of share
HKS$ options HK$ options

¥ 13

THE 1B

Erx  BREHE Er  BREREA

Outstanding at the beginning 74 #] i R 1T 1
of the year

Granted during the year FARML

Exercised during the year FRITE

Forfeited during the year F R

Expired during the year F X 1B Ef

Outstanding at the end of the 7 4F 7R 11 R 1T 15
year

Exercisable at the end of the R A] F17{E
year

The share options outstanding at 31 March
2019 had a weighted average exercise price of
HK$1.095 (2018: HK$1.103) and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 0.3 year
(2018: 1.3 years).

(b) Share award scheme

On 17 October 2014 (the “Adoption Date”), the
directors of the Company adopted a share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) as a mean of
rewarding and retaining employees of the Group
and certain eligible participants and to attract
suitable personnel for further development with the
Group. A trust has been set up for the purpose of
administering the Share Award Scheme.

T
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1.103 74,205,000 1.823 85,380,000
- - 0.320 44,000,000

- - 0.320  (11,000,000)
1.730 (1,000,000) 1.787  (13,150,000)
- 1.960  (31,025,000)

1.095 73,205,000 1.103 74,205,000

1.095 73,205,000 1.103 74,205,000

R-ZE—hFE=A=+—H
M AR TIE R IR 2 N5
TEEA1.0958 T (=
— \F:1.103/870) K hn#E
FHHT A HFER3F
(ZE—N\F:135F)-

(b) M1pEREEHE
R-ZZF-—HWFE+A+LA (K
WA NRBESRARN
REYE 8 (A1) 2B T8 1) 1F
REBMEEASBETRET
BEBBEE W RAKEE—
FERRRSIBGEAT - ARFIE
FXAZAEREAE IR AR 1) 22 B At &
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIES B TAIUARKZ7)

25 BREGEUROD T 2R
5 (%)
(b) WRIDEREFE (&)

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Share award scheme (continued)

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the trust may
purchase shares in the Company from the Stock
Exchange with cash contributed by the Group, and
to hold such shares until they are vested.

The directors of the Company may, from time to
time, at its sole and absolute discretion, select any
employee of the Group and eligible participants
including suppliers, customers, shareholders,
advisers and other service providers (other than
those specifically excluded as stated in the Share
Award Scheme) for participation in the Share Award
Scheme and grant such number of awarded shares
to any selected employee of the Group and eligible
participants at nil consideration. The directors of
the Company are entitled to impose any conditions
(including a period of continued service within the
Group after the award) with respect to the vesting
of the awarded shares. The Share Award Scheme
came into effect on the Adoption Date, and shall
terminate on the earlier of (i) the tenth anniversary
date of the Adoption Date; and (ii) such date of
early termination as determined by the directors of
the Company.

Details of the shares held under the Share Award
Scheme are set out below:

RIERD BB B - TR
AR EESFHRSBEA
AFRG  UBBEREREES
HORE -

ARAREZAINEITEZERE
HEIEHE EEAKEIMEER
keagR2EE  BIEHER-
P BRI R A AR A%
fem (Betn 22Rhat 818051 AR REHE
Rz ALERSN) 2 BA D SR Eh T
2 WATKEL TRFEEK
DEE TAREIRAEEEE M
BEBBEE ARREEHAE
SRR AD B 55 8B Be A0 A {6k 1
(BRERRFERGASE—
BB ) o Bt BB A 31 IR
B R A 20 IR ER 4 B H
FEEHm RSB KRR
NEIESETFRAA LMZ A H
ZREERIL-

RIE R BT &I B A &
BT

Average
purchase No. of
price shares held Value
FHBEEE FAROHEUE BEE
HK$ ‘000 HK$’000
BT FR FERT
At 1 April 2017, 31 March R-—ZE—+4
2018 and 2019 MmA—AB-
RZF—-N\FR
—T-hF
=A=+—-H 1.17 3,070 3,600
>
+ o AT
eEgTRTERR 225
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Br3ESH 585 T AIUAN REZ %))

26 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Movements in current taxation in the

26 MBEARRRAZMEHR

(a) HEUBRRERAZEHHIE

consolidated statement of financial position B
are as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥FT AREFT
Balance of income tax payable at P4V A — B BB A5 Fi 4 64
1 April 44,618 37,354
Provision for income tax on the BANFE b5 E R R F 12 47
estimated taxable profits for the — BJFF1E% ( E HfsF7(a))
year (see Note 7(a)) 13,557 20,250
(Over-)/under-provision in respect BEFE (BEEE)
of prior years (see Note 7(a)) BETSE (BHfaE7(a)) (5,013) 1,289
Income tax paid during the year ~ ERB NS (14,192) (14,275)
Balance of income tax payable R=A=+—HEMAEH
at 31 March KRR 38,970 44,618
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIES B TAIUARKZ7)

26 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF 26 HHMRRAZABHR (&)
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERRELEBEEERESE:
Fair value
adjustments
on property,
Expected plant and
Financial credit equipment, Interest
assets losses on Financial  investment capitalisation
at fair value financial assets at fair property and on
Accrued through assets value intangible  prepayment
expenses other  measured at through  assets and for
and deferred comprehensive  amortised profit related  acquisition
income income cost orloss depreciation of properties Net
% BER
R RE

ROAETER  REERE ROAEHE  NERER

BEREHA  HEZER HREABHA HE2OAE  WBYE
EifixRk HbrEks HEZRH  BENSR  ARRER  BAREZ
BEMA NEREE  REFR BE g NEELRL B
RMB000 RMmB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMmB000
ARETR AREFr  ARETn ARETn AREFz  ARRTT  ARET

Deferred tax arising from: B TJIZEEE 2 BERE:
At 1 April 2017 RZE-tEMA-A 2,265 (1,477) - (53) (589,519) (6,676) (595,460)

Credited/(charged) to the SN/ (B GAEER

consolidated statement of (RMi76)

profit or loss (see Note 7(a)) 538 - - - 11322 (13,333) (1,473)
Charged to reserves (see Note 10) HE (R (ZHTEE10) - 7650 = 2470 (23,309) = (13,189)
At 31 March 2018 R-E-\E=h=1-H 2,803 6,173 - 2417 (601,506) (20,009) (610,122)
Impact on initial application of & ERABH LS

HKFRS 9 (Note 2(¢) E9RMTE (Wit20) - - m - - - 202
Adjusted balance at 1 April 2018 R=E~\EME—H 285

R 2,803 6,173 272 2417 (601,506) (20,009) (609,850)

(Charged)credited to the (1B)/GAGRBER

consolidated statement of (ZHi#76)

profit or loss (see Note 7(a)) (206) - 2,628 2417) 12473 (19.952) (7.474)
Charged 1o reserves (see Note 10) 5 fEIR: (B ATE10) = 6,569 = = (5,982) = 587
At 31 March 2019 R-E-NE=f=1-H 2,597 12,742 2,900 = (595,015) (39.961) (616,737)

>
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise /nd/cated)

26 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

—NF=ZA=+—HIFE
(BRIEZFEE BRIUAREZS)

26 MBRRRANZFEHR (EF)

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets and () REEUBERRKRBERANEL
liabilities recognised in the consolidated HEEEREEYHE
statement of financial position
2019 2018
—E-hF —N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARKFIT
Deferred tax assets recognised in the R4E R AEER Y
consolidated statement of financial  EERIBEE
position 18,239 11,393
Deferred tax liabilities recognised MR B M SR N RIER
in the consolidated statement of BEERIBEEE
financial position (634,976) (621,515)
(616,737) (610,122)
Deferred tax assets not recognised (d RERZELEBEEE
In accordance with the accounting policy set BIRM 20T 8 < & 5 IR -

out in Note 2(t), the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax losses
of RMB374,920,000 (2018: RMB368,310,000) as it
is not probable that future taxable profits against
which the losses can be utilised will be available
in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The
remaining unused tax losses at 31 March 2019 will
expire on or before the financial period ended 31
March 2022.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 March 2019, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of certain subsidiaries
of the Group established in the PRC amounted to
RMB1,656,221,000 (2018: RMB1,709,823,000).
Deferred tax liabilities of RMB82,811,000 (2018:
RMB85,491,000) have not been recognised in
respect of the tax that would be payable on
the distribution of these retained profits as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that profits from these subsidiaries will not
be distributed in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a) Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the
changes in the Company’s individual components of
equity between the beginning and the end of the
reporting period are set out below:

(BGIF=EERH BRIAAREZS)

27 EX-REERRE
(a) EBEZHBEH

NEBIEARER Z &0 2 BN
REARGEHZHEH RS
HEEBRK - AREHYEHRA
AR SEREZ D 2 B BB
YT

Shares held
under share Contributed Exchange  Accumulated
Share capital  Share premium  award scheme ~ Capital reserve surplus reserve losses Total
RERGRE
e REEE stEEENRG EARR #AEH ENRE ZitEE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBBTR  ARBTT  AREFR  AREFn  AREFn  ARETT  ARETT ARETx
(Note 27(c) ~ (Note 27(a)f)) ~ (Note 27(d)ii) ~ (Note 27(a)ii)  (Note 27(a)(i)) ~ (Note 27(a)vii)
(B2ne) — (aana)  (Raann) — (Rzaroi) — (2ndm)  (Haaneli)
Balance at 1 April 2017 R=Z-tEMA-A
ik 198,480 1,133,854 292 76,291 995,255 281,945 (319,293) 2,369,610
Changes in equity for ~ AEEBREE:
the year:
Total comprehensive income A 2z 458

for the year - - - - - (230,273) (12,011) (242,284)
Shares issued under share ~ REFERR R &R

option scheme 889 2,741 - (786) - - - 2844
Equity-settled share-based IR SN A%

fransactions 235 (2lE250)

(see Note 25(3) - - - 1,387 = = = 1387
Transfer between reserves B (EREEA - - - (33,143) - - 3183 -
Balance at 31 March 2018 W=%-NE

and 1 April 2018 ZA=t-AR

Z2-)\§RA-A
3 199,369 1,136,595 292) 43,749 995,255 57,672 (298,161) 2,131,557
Changes in equity for ~ AFEERED:
the year:
Total comprehensive income A% E 2 AN EES

for the year - - - - - 150,290 (6,629) 143,661
Equity-settled share-based ~ RIREEENRATA 2

ransactions X5 (8Hi50)

(see Note 25(a)) - - - 1,179 - - - 1,179
Balance at 31 March 2019 W=%-AE

ZR=t-R&H 199,369 1,136,595 292 44928 995,255 207,962 (304,790) 2,276,397
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(b) Dividends

(i)

(i)

Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company and holder of the
convertible preference shares attributable
to the year

The directors of the Company do not
recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: RMBNil).

Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company and holder of the
convertible preference shares attributable
to the previous financial year, approved
during the year

No final dividend in respect of the previous
financial year has been approved for the year
ended 31 March 2019 (2018: RMBNil).

(c) Share capital

(i)

(BRIEZFEE BRIUAREZS)

27 BEX-fRERKRE (F)

(b) KRB

(i)

(i)

ARFRRR TRKESL
RIEBEAELFRAENR
=

ARAEEYTERIK
NBEE-_T-NALF=H
=t—HIEFEZBRE (=
F-—N\F AREBZR)-

FRAKRRE THRRESL
RIGBEAEWNL L —BF
EEMRE (RFEFAEH
&)

BE-T-NEF=A=1+—
B S EALE F— K
FEHRBRE (ZT—N
FAREZRT) -

(0 B’E
Issued share capital (i) EBTKRA
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-\#
Number Number of
of shares shares
RAEE BRHEE
‘000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB’000
TR ARETrn FR AREFT
Ordinary shares, issued and ERTRBEEER:
fully paid:
At 1 April RIEA—H 1,149,695 103,602 1,138,695 102,713
Shares issued under share BEBRET B ETRO
option scheme = = 11,000 889
At 31 March R=R=+—H 1,149,695 103,602 1,149,695 103,602
Convertible preference CERTRAETRAREL
shares, issued and fully IR
paid:
At 1 April and 31 March REA—RAR=A=+—
H 1,177,068 95,767 1,177,068 95,767
Total share capital MR A58 2,326,763 199,369 2,326,763 199,369

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018/19

\\




Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z ==
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(i)

(i)

Issued share capital (continued)

Ordinary shares

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled
to receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares
rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

Convertible preference shares

Convertible preference shares do not carry the
right to vote. The holder of the convertible
preference shares has the right, at any time
and at the sole option of such holder, to
convert the convertible preference shares in
whole, or in any part, into fully paid ordinary
shares in the Company. The conversion ratio
is 1 convertible preference share to 1.1
ordinary shares. Holder of the convertible
preference shares ranks pari passu with other
holders of the ordinary shares in respect of its
entitlement to dividend or other distribution of
the Company. In the event of any liquidation,
winding-up or dissolution of the Company,
holder of the convertible preference shares
shall receive an amount equal to HK$1.60 per
convertible preference share, plus all accrued
but unpaid dividends in preference to the
ordinary shareholders.

At 31 March 2019, 3,070,000 ordinary shares
are held by the Company under the Share
Award Scheme (2018: 3,070,000) (see Note
25(b)).

B 7% R R Y &

—NF=ZA=+—HILFE
(BGIF=EERH BRIAAREZS)

27 BEX-fRERKRE (&)

() K& (&)

(i)

(i)

ERTRAE (&)
ZER
BB A A A ERET
R B R < BB KRB R A
NARELBRIR—F-
A RBNARAZ R
HEES EAERRZH

VA

CIE- Y8 ¥

AR EERTHERE
oA MREBEBRITAA
BN MR E R IRZE
BAZBEZBEERK T B
P48 e AR 2 A Sk A {7 3B 40
BRORRBIZEHRE
38 PR o 8 9 R 51 iR AT 8 A
BAERERIAREBERK-
ARREERFA ARE
EBARBEAEERER
BEARRAIRBSHEA DK
77 EE B R F AL fid AR
REER FEREEC T
BMERBEEBRBAEARRE
BRREREBEUREESE
R 10 4% 55 A A 32 B A8 5 R
1.60/87T * hI_LFTE FERTE
RSB Bz FRIA

NR—_E—NF=ZA=1+—
B 3,070,000/ & & %
AR R R IE KD EE

2EE(ZE—N\&:
,070,0000% ) ( R M =E
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(c)

(iii) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share

(BRIEZFEE BRIUAREZS)

27 BEX-fRERKRE (F)

B (%)

(i) FRIR & KK jaf K 2 B R 155

options at the end of the reporting period KITREBIREZIFK
2019 2018
Number Number
A A
Exercise price ‘000 ‘000
Exercise period 7665 THEE F&r Fir
Share options: IR
28 May 2013 to —E-=#7A-t/N\A
27 May 2019 E_T-NF
AA-TtH HK$1.73 39,055 40,055
30 May 2013 to “E-=fRA=1RHZE
29 May 2019 —T-NF
TAZT+NH HK$1.76 1,150 1,150
27 September 2017 to “E—+FNAZTEH
26 September 2019 E2E-NE
AAZ+/~H HK$0.32 33,000 33,000
73,205 74,205

Each share option entitles the holder to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the
Company. Further details of these share
options are set out in Note 25(a) to the

financial statements.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)  Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by Section 40 of the Bermuda

Companies Act 1981.

(i)  Shares held under share award scheme

The amount represents the consideration paid
for shares held under the share award scheme.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIES B TAIUARKZ7)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Capital reserve

At 31 March 2019 and 2018, capital reserve
comprises the following:

—  the portion of the grant date fair value
of unexercised share options granted to
directors of the Company, and employees
and service providers of the Group that
has been recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-
based payments in Note 2(s)(ii);

—  the difference between the nominal
value of the ordinary shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the share
capital and share premium of a subsidiary
acquired through an exchange of shares
pursuant to a group reorganisation took
place on 28 September 2000;

—  the difference between the carrying
amounts and the principal amounts of
the unsecured notes redeemed in 2011
and 2012; and

—  the difference between the consideration
paid on the acquisition of non-controlling
interests and the carrying amount of the
non-controlling interests.

Contributed surplus

The application of the contributed surplus
account is governed by Section 54 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve has been
set up and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies adopted for land and
buildings held for own use in Note 2(h).

27 BEX-fRERKRE (&)

(d REZMEEERAERE(£)
(i) BARGEE

RZE—AER_ZFT—N
F=ZHA=+—H &EXfR
EEEATRIE:

- BYARRESEUR
NEBEZEERRE
S Z W ARITERE
BIEAZERAHZA
AEZD THERE
B 5 2(s)(ii) B LA B BR A
B R 2 ERTBUR
TR

- ARTRBR-FE
BENR-+NAE
172 S BB B AT BT
HRR 2 EERER
RIS SR FTIREE 2 —
PR 2 ) 2 R
RIDEERE LA
£

- RZFE— k=%
— —F OO R
ERZEEERAS
MZZ8: M

- KBRS
Z (B SR A an

FREEZMZEZRE-
(iv) BARER
BABREZEAXAR
ZE—NN\—FRENEES
fREZE °

v) MEBHHE

MEEHFRBERLILR
BHE2hREER 2
R8T RN 28T BR
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of other financial
assets held at the end of the reporting period
and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Notes 2(g) and

2(1)().
Statutory reserves

In accordance with the articles of association
of the subsidiaries of the Group established
in the PRC, these subsidiaries were required
to set up certain statutory reserves, which
were non-distributable. The transfers of these
reserves are at discretion of the directors of the
respective subsidiaries. The statutory reserves
can only be utilised for predetermined means
upon approval by the relevant authority.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
operations into the presentation currency. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 2(w).

(e) Capital management

The Group’'s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for equity shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products
and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable

cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIES B TAIUARKZ7)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 27 EX -FHERRKRE (&)

(continued)
(e) Capital management (continued) (e)

EXEE (&)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For
this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total
debt (which includes bank and other loans), plus
unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash at bank on
hand and short-term investments. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity less unaccrued
proposed dividends.

During the year, the Group’s strategy was to
maintain the adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio to
an acceptable level. In order to improve the Group’s
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares,
raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce
debt.

AEBES K E RS REER
BARRRE EAFBRREEKE
M R B 75 SR 8 = AR [ g ER ER 5
RIZE MNP RA R 28 AR
B2 EEL T R EERR
HEENERREETHAE

REBAKABFEEHER
R GEEMEREERER-
BT & - RRHBIFERTIAE
REEE (EERRTAREME
) MR BRI BB ER 1T F 58
ReASLEHRE - ERBER
BIEFTA R m B R R FT BEIR A

B o
/T

RER - NEEZ K BERE
HEFEHEHEARA L KB &
HKEE BREANREZERR
B NEE A FHEA TR
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MESBERLEEENRDE
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HAESEREERERD
“E-N-NEFER

>
235

<D R



T

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(BRIHFZEIER TAIUARKZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

(f) Capital management

The adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 March
2019 and 31 March 2018 is as follows:

27 BEX-fRERKRE (F)

() EXERE
R-B-—NFR-_F-—N\F=H
=T—B KRABFEEHER
R

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARKFIT
Current liabilities: mEEE:

Bank and other loans RITREMERK 866,401 792,149

Non-current liabilities: FERFEE:
Bank loans RITER 1,498,000 1,541,000
Total debt BmEE 2,364,401 2,333,149
Less: cash at bank and on hand WO RTEELTFEES (544,690) (614,681)
Less: short-term investments W R HRIR A = (160,761)
Adjusted net debt RARFEEE 1,819,711 1,557,707
Adjusted capital RAEEX 4,088,225 4,385,599
Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio ZLFAEFEEHERLL R 45% 36%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES

The Group is not exposed to significant currency risk as
most of the transactions are denominated in the same
currency as the functional currency of the operations
in which they relate. Exposure to credit, liquidity and
interest rate arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group is also exposed to equity price risk
arising from its equity investment in another entity.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIES B TAIUARKZ7)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(a) Credit risk (a)

28 BIEMEERAAE(£)

FERR

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. Management has a
credit policy in place, and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Cash is deposited with financial institutions with
acceptable credit quality. Management does not
expect any of these financial institutions with fail to
meet their obligations.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the
Group as set out in Note 30, the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose
the Group or the Company to credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these
financial guarantees at the end of the reporting
period is disclosed in Note 30.

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
debtor rather than the industry in which the debtors
operate and therefore significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual debtors. At the
end of the reporting period 9% (2018: 28%) and
49% (2018: 63%) of the total trade receivables was
due from the Group’s largest debtor and the five
largest debtors, respectively.

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all debtors requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the debtor’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the debtor
as well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the debtor operates. Trade receivables
are generally due within 3 months from the date
of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from debtors.

AEEZEERRT 2 HEUR
R B R AR FTE & - B IR E
ERIFTEERR  LRESITEA
AXNREEERR -

ReFENGEEERAIREAZ
TREE BEEERRZFTER
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HEERERE xS EERRIE
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)

(BRIEZFEE BRIUAREZS)

28 BIEMEERAAE (&)

(a) Credit risk (continued) () FERR (&)
Trade receivables (continued) FEWERS (&)
The Group measures loss allowances for trade REBERBENBEFERNE
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, HEEEB B2 RBEER
which is calculated using a provision matrix. ZEERE W ABE BT
Trade receivables are mainly due from credit B RBRUERETEREKPEEH
card centres owned by state-owned financial EeRRBMEEERTORR
institutions in the PRC and tenants operating in rEEBERS BYHRLOKE
the Group’s department stores, shopping mall and WIS E 2 HE 2 FIE Bt
supermarkets, and accordingly, the management of rEEERBERAETRREER
the Group considers the concentration and credit RER HRAEEZBEREE
risks to be low. As the Group’s historical credit loss BREERITARKATRTFEHL
experience does not indicate significantly different BEEXKEEE Bt BRES
loss patterns for different customer segments, the FMRAFTECEERBEIEE—
loss allowance based on past due status is not FTERAREEBZTRAREFE -
further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.
The following table provides information about the TREINR_ZE-HNLF=A
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade =+ —HBAREEAEGEZEERR
receivables as at 31 March 2019: REBERCBHREEEBZE
*:
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
RHERZR HEREE EBEEAE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREFT
Current (not past due) BDER (A6 85 ) 0.5 29,850 149
Less 3 months past due  EHINHERE =18 7 1.2 11,708 140
Over 3 months past due  ZEHi#A:E =@ A 100 16,947 16,947
58,505 17,236

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 3 years. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and
the Group's view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &% —
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)
Comparative information under HKAS 39

Prior to 1 April 2018, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was objective evidence
of impairment (see Note 2(I)(i) — policy applicable
prior to 1 April 2018). At 31 March 2018, the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from default
of the counterparty is limited. At 31 March 2018,
no trade receivables were determined to be
impaired.

Credit risk arising from other receivables

The Group measures loss allowance for other
receivables at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated based
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting date.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for the short-term investments of their
cash surpluses, where the raising of financings are
centrally managed by the head office of the Group
to cover expected cash demands. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

At 31 March 2019, the Group had net current
liabilities of RMB978,780,000. The Group has
undertaken and will continue to undertake various
measures in order to further improve its liquidity
position in the short and longer term. Further details
are set out in Note 2(b).

(BrIF=B1EH

B 7% R R Y &

E-NFZA=1+—HIFE
D/\jLXAEIngd_Ei/)

28 BiIEREERAAE (&)

(a)

(b)

FERR (&)
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Br3ESH 585 T AIUAN REZ %))

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 B EMEER AAE (&)
VALUES (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) FBELEAR (£&)

The following tables show the remaining TREBAEBR ZHFITEESRE
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting BERHERARZBTEOINEE
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial S BRABRDIRIES KIRAGIR
liabilities, which are based on contractual Ben=e (BEFERELF R
undiscounted cash flows (including interest BB E AR BB ER
payments computed using contractual rates or, if REMRZMNEFEZFEA
floating, based on rates current at the end of the PO AR B A gt B SREX
reporting period) and the earliest dates the Group Z &P HEEE-

can be required to pay.

2019
“E-NF
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARABRRER A

More than

More than 2 years
Within1  1yearbut  but less Carrying
yearoron less than than More than amount at
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 March
R=A
-FRg®  -FHUE WMEUL =t-H

BEXE BORWE BIRIF RBBIF 28 ZREE
RMB000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR

Trade and other payables RBER A2 RAK
measured at amortised cost = R E M fE(T 2 1,086,170 - = - 1,086,170 1,086,170
Bank and other loans RITREMER 1,011,730 362,693 1,144,636 320,242 2,839,301 2,364,401

2,097,900 362,693 1,144,636 320,242 3,925,471 3,450,571

T
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B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(BRIFZFER TRIKARKZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 BIBEREKEERAAE (&)
VALUES (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) FEBELRAMK (&)
2018
“E-N\E
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ANRERR MM
More than
More than 2 years
Within 1 1 year but but less Carrying
yearoron less than than  More than amount at
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 March
R=A
—ER%k  —FENE RENE =t-A

(c)

REXE BORMEF

RMB'000

RMB'000

ARETL ARETT

BPRDE  BBRRF B kAR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETFL ARETL ARETL ARETR

Trade and other payables REERATECRAE

measured at amortised cost X R E B 1,040,630 = = - 1,040,630 1,040,630
Bank and other loans BOREMER 924,828 324,227 1,299,141 166,685 2,714,881 2,333,149
1,965,458 324,227 1,299,141 166,685 3,755,511 3,373,779

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
interest-bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest
rate risk respectively.

(c)

= A B

AEEZFREREEREH A
B < A BRI R E AR
112 BEEAEES AR
SREFEEB LA EFIRA,

LA

oo o
A

> -

seagmennnas 2411

<D R



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Br3ESH 585 T AIUAN REZ %))

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 B EMEER AAE (&)
VALUES (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued) (o) FERAR (&)
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIE#ER
The following table details the interest rate TRFHFIWEAEEAEREE
profile of the Group’s borrowings at the end of & HAR 2 T =B -

the reporting period.

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
BRAE B F =
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
AR%Frx AREFIT
Fixed rate borrowings: BEE R REE :
Other loans Hih&E R 8.30% 141,000 6.20% 235,176
Bank loans IRITE K 7.40% 553,000 - -
694,000 235,176
Variable rate AR REE
borrowings:
Bank loans RITER 6.20% 1,670,401 6.00% 2,097,973
Total borrowings BEREE 2,364,401 2,333,149
Fixed rate borrowings [& & 7| 2 & & (&
as a percentage of ERfEsADL
total borrowings 29% 10%
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (i) SBMEDH
At 31 March 2019, it is estimated that a RZE—hAhF=ZA=1+—
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points H-EZMEHEMAIEHE
in interest rates, with all other variables held ZERETEZBERT
constant, would have decreased/increased the & & F = — A% 38 40 2k R
Group's profit after tax and retained profits 100 B A8 R 2 538 N
by approximately RMB13,797,000 (2018: RNEBEH % BN &RB
RMB17,049,000). i A ) A R #13,797,000

T(ZT-—NF:ARK
17,049,0007T ) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - % —ﬂi A=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRIEZHEHH  BAIAAREZ3)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 BiEBREERAAE (£Z)
VALUES (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

() R=Emp (&)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising
from floating rate borrowings held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period,
the impact of which on the Group’s loss
after tax and retained profits is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense of
such a change in interest rates. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for the year
ended 31 March 2018.

(d) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes
arising from other financial assets (see Note 18(i)).

The Group's investments in other financial assets
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. The
performance of these equity securities are regularly
monitored.

At 31 March 2019, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 10% in the relevant stock price with all
other variables held constant, would have increased/
decreased the Group's other comprehensive income
by RMB21,471,000 (2018: RMB25,194,000).

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s other comprehensive income
that would arise assuming that the changes in the
stock price had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure this
financial instrument held by the Group which
exposes the Group to equity price risk at the end
of the reporting period. It is also assumed that
none of the Group's other financial assets would be
considered impaired as a result of the decrease in
the relevant stock price, and that all other variables
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for the year ended 31 March 2018.

(i) MBS (E)
Lt BRR M 5 3T TR R R R
EHRARNEBFAFEZ
REBHNXFREZEEM
F$2ﬁ$m$ﬂ$@
£$Elﬁm&%%
&'T%Ea/ﬁnﬂ TETNRE
AR EEHHFEREZ 2
FleZmdste b
EREBE—_Z—\F=A
=+ —BLEFEZHRBE
AT

(d) EZEEERRE

AEEEEECEREEES
ZHEDEREFAR (RKHE
18(i)) °

AEEREMEREEZRER
EBESR M LT - RS
B RECETEMEER-

—h&E=ZA=+—8"
HETEEREE®R LR TB
10% " FEFTE Efbr] BB E =R
BIEZ2BRAT ANEBZEM
2ERE LN, BD AR
21,471,000c (= — \F: A
R #25,194,0007T ) °

BREE ST IERBRREED)
ERSBERBEETEEARE
i EASBEEcZEeR I A
(RREBRSAEEABEKRE
BE)IBERTAEE 2 EMEMH
W 25 15 3% A 2 BB &) o [R B IR
BRASE At rEERE
ABBERE 2 MR ASE R
& - M&F“%ﬁﬁme@ﬂ
%m&%x ------- SIMEREZE
J\E_H E+— HILFEE
zmagﬁﬂﬁo

HAESEREERERD
“E-N-NEFER

-
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2018/19
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28 BIEMEERAAE (&)

(e) DAMEE
(i) BAREBZEMEE

REfE
KA EER
TREJNAEERHE B
RARIR BB B 75 5 22 A
FIR 2 A EHE]FR
RENRAABEHR BE
FUEEFEY S BE/=
ERNNEBMTEZRA
BE-BAREFEIRZ
ERD2EMTEEDE
PR AR TR R
MNERUHRERE:

s HFAfiE:EEH
£ — R A BiE (B
REERRBEEEN
BENEEMSZA
RABRBE)GFEZ

NUIIER

e F_HfAE:ERSE
— A ABE (AR
REERE R 2AE
KB ABR)BY R
EREATAIBES
ABEBEFEZRAR
B NAI B R AR
R ET S BB REH
TZBABE-

e FZAMHE ERE
ARAAIBR 8 A SR
AEZARE



(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

VALUES (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE

(BGIF=EERH BRIAAREZS)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 Bi#EBMEERAAE (&)
(e) Fair value measurement (continued) (e) RPAEE(E&)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured (i) BARBIEZZREE
at fair value (continued) REREF (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NAEER (&)
Fair value
measurements
as at
31 March 2019
categorised
into Level 1
R=ZZB—-hE
=H=+—H
DREFESE
BE—&K
RMB’000
AR®ETFTT
Recurring fair value measurements REMDNAENE
Assets: BE:
Other financial assets Hib & mpEE
— Listed (see Note 18(i)) — W (R HEF180)) 252,600

Fair value measurements as at
31 March 2018 categorised into
RZZ—NF=ZA=+—H

NREHENER
Fair value at
31 March 2018 Level 1 Level 2
R-Z—N\%F
=A=+—8H
/N I=| F— F R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBF T ARBF T ARBFIT
Recurring fair REMARETE
value measurements
Assets: BE:
Available-for-sale AHESHEE
financial assets
- Listed (see Note 18(i)) ~ — L (2K aE18()) 296,400 296,400 -
Short-term investments %5 HA#% &
— Unlisted —JELTH 10,332 - 10,332
R STEFEERERA A
BN -NEER
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(BRIHFZEIER TAIUARKZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)

28 BIEMEERAAE (&)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued) (e) DAESE(£)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured (i) BARBEZZHREE
at fair value (continued) REREFE (&)
Valuation techniques and inputs used in E_RonEAEMER
Level 2 fair value measurements G EHER A BR
The fair value of unlisted available-for-sale FEARFEEMAUHLEES
financial assets in Level 2 is determined MEEMNAARBETIERZ
by using the quoted price of the collective EeRMEEMBONEREK
investment scheme, where these financial B RE HEKREL
assets belong to, and deducting the portion ERBELTHARERS
of fair value of senior trust units, which is (ZREEFERHRAE LR
calculated by reference to the contractual rate SAE)EE-
of fixed returns.

(i) Fair value of financial assets and (i) LHFBAAREBIIRZEH
liabilities carried at other than fair value BEEREBZAALE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial RZZE-NER_F-N
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost F=ZA=+—H &x5E
are not materially different from their fair VA B 7 S 38 85 X AR 1| R 2
values at 31 March 2019 and 2018. cRMITAECERERELA

AEVESRER-
29 COMMITMENTS 29 &I
(a) Capital commitments (a) EAREE

At 31

March 2019, the outstanding capital

commitments of the Group not provided for in the

RZZE-NF=ZA=+—H 'K
SERERAMBHRETEBEL

consolidated financial statements were as follows: RTEREELT
2019 2018
—E-hE ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMF T AREFT
Commitments in respect of purchase of BEWE WEMEZHENAM
property, plant and equipment and REME 2 EIE
investment properties
— Contracted for —BaT4 416,490 593,376

At 31 March 2019, capital commitments in respect
of purchase of property, plant and equipment
and investment properties are for leasehold
improvements to be installed in the Group’s
department store and supermarket operations and
the remaining payments for the acquisitions of
properties.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

29 COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments

(c)

At 31 March 2019, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases

(BrIF=B1EH

BAIAAREZ5)

29 RIE (&)
(b) REHEHEE

R-ZE-NF=A=+—H'R
BB REHERERRE

are payable as follows: Nz &ERENTEAERNT :
2019 2018
—ZE-hF —N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFRT AREFT
Within 1 year — R 31,513 42,059
After 1 year but within 5 years —FHRERFA 59,594 122,659
After 5 years HF 1% 38,773 102,728
129,880 267,446

The Group leases properties for the use by its
department store and supermarket operations, and
office premises under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period of 2 to 20 years,
where all terms are renegotiated upon renewal.
One of the leases includes contingent rentals which

AEERBEEZHEHEETY
EHEAERSRBATISER
EMRER - ZERE—RIE
RE—E=— % M GRKRA
KBRS EHRAEE - EP—1BHE
1"?@%@?5?%%% £ 2 [EE

are calculated based on a fixed percentage on the DEHEEZSHAEE -
department store’s revenue.
Properties leased out under operating leases () REKEHELHA2WE
At 31 March 2019, the Group’'s total future R-ZE—HNE=B=+—H 'K
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable SEBREBEINTRE &SHER
operating leases are receivable as follows: iRk ZEHERIB LN
T
2019 2018
—EB-NF —\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREF T
Within 1 year —F R 29,809 30,957
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFA 49,256 56,396
After 5 years hF% 7,690 15,334
86,755 102,687
RS ERHEZRERA A
—B-N-NEFR

-
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise /nd/cated)

29 COMMITMENTS (continued)

(c)

Properties leased out under operating leases
(continued)

The Group leases out its shopping mall and parts
of its department stores under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to
15 years, where all terms are renegotiated upon
renewal. Certain of the leases include contingent
rentals which are calculated based on a fixed
percentage on the tenants’ revenue.

30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has
issued the following guarantees:

(a)

(b)

A guarantee provided by Ginwa Bell Tower in
respect of an interest-bearing bank loan drawn
by an independent third party in 2005. The loan
will mature in July 2020. In September 2010,
Ginwa Investments provided a counter-guarantee
to indemnify Ginwa Bell Tower on any losses
incurred arising from the above guarantee. As of
31 March 2019, the outstanding loan balance is
RMB60,680,000 (2018: RMB68,200,000).

A guarantee provided by Ginwa Bell Tower in
respect of a payable for acquisition of a property
by Ginwa Investments in August 2005. Ginwa
Investments has defaulted repayment of the above
payable. As of 31 March 2019, the outstanding
balance of the payable is RMB9,500,000 (2018:
RMB9,500,000).

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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—NF=ZA=+—HIFE
(BRIEZFEE BRIUAREZS)

29 EIE (£)
(0 BECEHESHESYE

(&)
AEERBELKEHELHEHER
#@#/U&Ef?ﬁiﬁZ*B DBEY

& o % FA ﬂx%ﬂ*ﬁi%ﬁﬁ ES
tThEE: ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ?ﬁfk B HAR
EHREE :Ffﬂiﬂﬁﬁ‘é@%ﬁﬂ

FR&EZEEB D LETE 23R
e

30 HAEE
REEmR AEED R EUTE

& :

(a)

CIEER — %ﬁ*”‘ﬁﬂ
TETRFRDZEFBIRTT
Rt 2 R -ZEEE
—E-EF AEH R
TFNA- %mhéaﬁ%m
EEREE—TERER ABER
FERATES ZEAEK - &
E-_TET—NEF=ZA=1+—8"
h*@@zﬁ KRB AR
60,680,000 ( =& — \4F : A
E #68,200,0007T ) °

H#EA

CHEEERESTERENR-ZZ
AFENAKE—BEYEZER
FIEMEHZER 2TEREE
HREE FMENRB - HE—
E-hAhFZA=Z+—H ®X
EECZEMNFEHRBAARE
9,500,0007T (ZZE—NF : AR
#9,500,0007T ) °



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE=—FT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

() A guarantee provided by the Group in respect of
an entrusted loan drawn by Huade Investment in
February 2015, where the guarantee is in addition
to the payments made by the Group for its intended
acquisition of commercial properties as mentioned
in Note 17. The loan will mature in July 2019.
Land and buildings held by one of the Group'’s
subsidiaries with book value of RMB1,096,616,000
at 31 March 2019 were pledged for the above
entrusted loan in the amount of RMB600,000,000.
In February 2015 and July 2016, the Group has
obtained counter-guarantees from (i) the project
company developing the above commercial
properties; and (ii) the intermediate holding
company of Huade Investment on the pledge of
its 70% equity interests in the immediate holding
company of Huade Investment.

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors of
the Company do not consider it is probable that a claim
will be made against the Group under any of the above
guarantees. The maximum liability of the Group at the
end of the reporting period under the guarantees issued
is the outstanding amount of the bank loans and liability
of RMB670,180,000 (2018: RMB677,700,000) plus
accrued interest.

(BGIF=EERH BRIAAREZS)

30 AREE (&)

(0 AEEREBERENR_ZFT—H
FZARMZEZXERIRHEE
R ZER T R M 177 2t
AEERKBEEDE AR
INZER - ZEERBER_Z
—NWFLtREH -AARERE—
FAHBARBER-ZZT—NF
ZA=Z+t—HNEEFEAA
K #1,096,616,0007T H) + #b
REFIRLLASEARARK
600,000,0007T ) & 5L B K
H-R-_E—HE_AR-ZT
—NFLtA TXEEEHOERE
L EYE BB RG] i)
EEBECHBEZERARBIE
ERECEEZERARZI0%
AR REE L R ENS REIR ©

RBEBRR ARRIEERBBTK

AR RBEM L ERMEAEE
RERE-ANEBRFERARZE
HERETZEaEERHAEEREZ
RITERKEEARK670,180,000
T (ZF—)\F: AR%677,700,000
JC) INFEETFI B, o

-
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Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Br3ESH 585 T AIUAN REZ %))

31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 31 EXBEAEIRS
TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in BRZEMEREREMEODFTIRE 24
these financial statements, the Group entered into the ERIN REBITRETATERNBEA
following material related party transactions. TR 5o

(a) Transactions with equity shareholders

(a) EEXARNARRRKEBBAL

and their affiliates, and a director of the DUR—BREEETZRS
Company
2019 2018
=B-hEF —TN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETI

T

Net decrease/(increase) in advances 2K B f:E A &L
from related parties (3hn)FEE (ZHEM))

(see Note (i) (47,604)
Guarantees provided by a director of MR¥IFEFRA A G —RESE

the Company for the Group’s bank ~ AXEB ZRTERIRHE 2

loans at the end of the reporting ER

year 505,176
Further details on the guarantees the Group EBAAREE REE A TREER
provided for related parties are set out in Note 30. ZHE— T B30 -
Note: Kt &t
()  The advances are unsecured, non-interest bearing () ZREREERE RERIE

and have no fixed terms of repayment.

2 50 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Key management personnel remuneration

(c)

Remuneration for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors
as disclosed in Note 8 and the highest paid
employees as disclosed in Note 9, is as follows:

(BGIF=EERH BRIAAREZS)

31 EXEEALRF (F)

(b) TEEBAEHM

TEEBEABZHM (BEME
STMBEC N TARRERTZH
BN EAREDN TET&
SFMEE ZHRB)MT

2019 2018
—E-NEF —FT—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®FRT ARETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in %4 3285 & H b & #1438 7l

kind
Retirement scheme contributions RIREFEIRE R

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
Note 6(b)).

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

None of the related party transactions disclosed in
Note 31(a) above constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

(c)

17,683 17,655
819 229
18,502 17,884

FMeBEA ATEIRA] A
( RFf5E6(D)) ©

LHRABRERBERS 2B
2K

bt B RE31(a) AT B BR 2 B A
IXRSBEBK EHARANF14
BEMAE ZBER S RIFERE

> -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MBHRRNTE
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

32 COMPANY LEVEL STATEMENT OF

(BRIEZFEE BRIUAREZS)

32 AEIEEPBBMRRER

2019 2018
—E-nE T )\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt &t AR¥ T ARBF T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment I ER ] = 1,077
Interests in subsidiaries NN E 2,460,689 2,302,194
2,460,689 2,303,271
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H h & W 5k 31,862 29,759
Cash at bank and on hand RITHEF N FHEE S 123 114
31,985 29,873

Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H th & {5 30 216,277 201,587

216,277 201,587
Net current liabilities REBEEEHE (184,292) (171,714)
NET ASSETS EEFH 2,276,397 2,131,557
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BR A R k1S 27
Share capital % 2 199,369 199,369
Reserves {1 2,077,028 1,932,188
TOTAL EQUITY ERAEE 2,276,397 2,131,557

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 28 June 2019.

Chan Wai Kwong, Peter

Director

EF

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R R Y &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Decrease in carrying value of assets measured at
fair value

Due to the recent uncertainties surrounding the stock
markets in the PRC, the Group’s investments in Ginwa
Enterprise A-Shares (see Note 18) have experienced a
decrease in value by approximately 22% since the end of
the reporting period.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The directors of the Company consider the immediate
and ultimate holding company of the Company at 31
March 2019 to be Maritime Century Limited and Ginwa
Investments, respectively. Neither of these companies
produces financial statements available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS,
AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2019

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of new standards and
amendments to standards which are not yet effective for
the year ended 31 March 2019 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. These include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

33

34

35

(BISHHY  TEIUARE L)
WERBRHFAREE
BARBEHEZEEZREERD

HRNOCHRERT 2 T EENE 8
BERARE NEEHSEERA
Rz ®wE(RWE18) ZBE TR
22% °

HEERERERLQF

RARAEERER ARARZE—N
FZA=+T—RAZEEREKERA
7% Bll &Maritime Century Limited &2
SERE - ZEFARWEEHAIHA

RERZ A HmEK -

CHEMAEHAREE-Z—N
FZA=t—-BLEFEENZ
A EARZREBZEERE

HETRZEUEHRRAH &<
AR ASEEMBZBEEAREEZ
—NEFEZA=+—BItFEERE R
RRZEVBERREMROFETER &
HAZEFT - EBE T A REERASE
EiEEEE -

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUT BB 2 & %R

S HEER

HKFRS 16, Leases
AR BREENE 165 [HE

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments

Bh (BRMBRERERBS)RBRLR (RN EENTET I

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
BRI RELAN - FE_ T+ FAHFELE

Amendments to HKAS 28, Long-term interest in associates and joint ventures
BEETERE28F 2 R MM ER AR A EREZ Rk

1 January 2019
—T-NF-A—H

1 January 2019
“E-NF-HA—H

1 January 2019
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MBHRRNTE
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS,

AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2019 (continued)

The Group is in process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments, new standards and
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects
of the new standards which may have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements. Further
details of the expected impacts are discussed below.
While the assessment has been substantially completed
for HKFRS 16, the actual impacts upon the initial
adoption of the standards may differ as the assessment
completed to date is based on the information currently
available to the Group, and further impacts may be
identified before the standards are initially applied in
the Group’s interim financial report for the six months
ending 30 September 2019. The Group may also change
its accounting policy elections, including the transition
options, until the standards are initially applied in that
financial report.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in Note 2(k), currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and
accounts for the lease arrangements differently,
depending on the classification of the lease. The Group
enters into leases as the lessee.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ=—F— NF=A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS,

AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the
way that lessors account for their rights and obligations
under a lease. Once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no
longer distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees
will account for all leases in a similar way to current
finance lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement
date of the lease the lessee will recognise and measure
a lease liability at the present value of the minimum
future lease payments and will recognise a corresponding
“right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset
and liability, the lessee will recognise interest expense
accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease liability,
and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead
of the current policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis
over the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee
can elect not to apply this accounting model to short-
term leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or
less) and to leases of low-value assets, in which case the
rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as
a lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment
which are currently classified as operating leases. The
application of the new accounting model is expected to
lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to
impact on the timing of the expense recognition in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the period of
the lease.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—F—NF=H=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Br3ESH 585 T AIUAN REZ %))

35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS, 35 EAEAMEMARBE=Z—N

AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019. As allowed by HKFRS 16, the
Group plans to use the practical expedient to grandfather
the previous assessment of which existing arrangements
are, or contain, leases. The Group will therefore apply the
new definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts
that are entered into on or after the date of initial
application. In addition, the Group plans to elect the
practical expedient for not applying the new accounting
model to short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets.

The Group plans to elect to use the modified
retrospective approach for the adoption of HKFRS 16 and
will recognise the cumulative effect of initial application
as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity
at 1 April 2019 and will not restate the comparative
information. As disclosed in Note 29(b), at 31 March
2019 the Group's future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases amount to
RMB129,880,000 for properties, the majority of which is
payable between 1 and 5 years after the reporting date
or in more than 5 years. As the Group’s future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
are limited, therefore, the Group does not expect that
changes in accounting policies according to HKFRS 16 as
described above could have a significant impact on the
Group’s financial results upon initial adoption of HKFRS
16.

FZA=1T—-BLEFEEN
ZHAEARBREBZBES
6P

BERMBRELEAF 165 [HE ]
(%)

ERUBMEENEIGSHEN T/
F-A—BRZERBZFEREE
M BB MEERE165% 1 FF
HEN AEEFERBATEES
AR AHERHSEEHEZR
B LA R 2GR Bt
AEEE/EBMBREERE165
HHEZHEREANEXERBH
K2R Z B K o R B 5
EEMAITREN L T EE
AEARNEHHEMMEEEEECH

4%0

AE B R EE RSB AR
MBEBTBHRELENE 165 WiFE
REANRFEERAEE T —N
FNA—BHESFVEHOAE M
T ELEE R o 3k 5E29(0)Fr
BE R-_ZE—hLhF=ZA=+—8"
AEERYWERTAIRMBELERY
BETZARKERERBEBAARK
129,880,0007T ' 8 N E H 7B 3R A
HgE—=2AFRNHBBEAFRNL T -
HRAEERTAIRELCEHER
TRZARRFEREREEGR Bt
AEFEBHR B XIRPNEBHHBRE
B E 1658 - I X AT AR IEE S
BT FS RS X RIS 165% 2 @ 5T IBUR &

TEHAGKBE M REEEEERNY

o,
2

I
256

\\

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018/19



GINWA




	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	財務摘要及關鍵業務指標
	五年財務資料摘要
	主席報告
	管理層討論及分析
	董事履歷
	董事會報告
	企業管治報告
	環境、社會及管治報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益表
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	財務報表附註
	封底

